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Dear Shareholders,

I would like to thank you for your long term trust and support of
Huarong Energy. On behalf of the Huarong Energy Board, | am
pleased to present our results for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Group has achieved a number of milestones throughout the
2021, including a substantial amount of debt extension and the
Acquisition of Nantong Zhuosheng. Those actions have set the tone
for the Group’s future development, as well as demonstrating that
the Group has moved on from the legacy impact gradually.

Looking ahead to 2022, despite the fluctuations of the COVID-19
pandemic continuing to create a series of uncertainties, the
overall global economy is recovering slowly through the rapid,
and large-scale vaccination programs and sustainable recovery
policies implemented by the respective governments. The Group
will continue to closely monitor the development of the pandemic
and market changes and respond flexibly to make appropriate
decisions. Amid the difficult general economic environment, the
Group has implemented various cost control measurements, and
maintained strong and resilient financial positions through prudent
management of debt levels and liquidity across the board, including
negotiation with lenders in relation to the extension of existing
financial obligations of the Group. The Group remains positive
on the progress and is exploring other initiatives to increase the
liquidity of the Group including different financing options.

The oil exploration sector was operating under pressure since the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and encountered challenges on oil
price fluctuation and the unpredictable market demand. The recent
Russia-Ukraine conflict is generating additional uncertainties of
oil demand in the region. Despite a degree of demand risk being
mitigated with the rise in oil price, the Group has continued the
implementation of company-wide cost saving measures, to provide
sufficient liquidity for the sector. Together with the conservative
operational management approach, such as postponement on the
capital expenditures plan and temporarily reduced production,
these measures generated significant protection to the business
value under the uncertain environment. The Group remains
positive with the business model in long term, and the Group is of
the view that the new oil well development method shall improve
and achieve a better production efficiency on the oil well-drilling
operation. It is expected the new oil well development method which
has been proved, shall improve, and achieve a better production
efficiency in the oil well-drilling operation.
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.The Group has also continued to diversify its revenue stream to
ease the sole reliance on the oil exploration operation throughout
2021. With the completion of the Acquisition of 50.46% of the equity
interest in Nantong Zhuosheng in January 2021, it has brought in
significant positive impact instantly. The demand for oil storage
remains strong in PRC, and it is expected the oil storage business
will continue to bring in consistent income and profit to the Group.
The Group is currently conducting relevant feasibility studies, to
analyze the possible economic benefit from a potential capacity
expansion.

As part of the diversification strategy, the Group has broader
varieties of services, and builds up a robust customer portfolio
to solidify the underlying turnover and profit. The Group trading
division continued to expand in PRC through the synergies brought
in by Nantong Zhuosheng. Whilst the transaction volume has
significantly increased since the beginning of the Year, it has
improved both the Group revenue and profit margin. The Group
will continue to seek the relevant business development to further
improve the positive impacts that the new business brought in.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

Business Review

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB316.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), compared to a
revenue of approximately RMB34.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Comparative Year”). The Group generated
a gross profit of RMB53.1 million mainly from the oil exploration
business, the newly acquired oil storage business, as well as the
trading business. This compared to a gross loss of RMB6.4 million
for the Comparative Year.

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB185.1 million for the Year, while profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company was RMB782.6
million for the Comparative Year.

The decrease of profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was mainly driven by the discharge of the Relevant Guarantees
(as defined below). There was no Relevant Guarantees discharged
during the Year (the Comparative Year: RMB2,164.7 million), and the
accrued interest for the financial guarantee contracts contributed
RMB163.9 million (the Comparative Year: RMB164.7 million] to the
loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

The Group’'s net deficit position as at 31 December 2021 was
improved compared to 31 December 2020, which decreased by
RMB6.0 million.

Disposal and Relevant Guarantee

On 9 October 2018, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (the "Agreement”) to dispose of the core
assets and liabilities of its shipbuilding, offshore engineering,
engineering machinery and marine engine building segments (the
“Shipbuilding and Engineering Businesses”, together with the
holding company of the Shipbuilding and Engineering Businesses,
referred to as the "Disposal Group’] with an independent third
party, Unique Orient Limited (the "Purchaser”’] (the "Disposal”).
The Disposal constituted a very substantial disposal for the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
An extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on
13 December 2018 in which the Disposal was approved by the
shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company signed the second supplemental agreement on
3 March 2019 regarding the Disposal, pursuant to which (1) the
transfer of the sale share of Able Diligent Limited (the "Sale
Share”), the holding company of Disposal Group, to the Purchaser
shall take place on or before 31 March 2020; (2] the Purchaser
agreed to procure the release or discharge of the relevant
guarantees provided by the Company in respect of borrowings owed
by the Disposal Group [the "Relevant Guarantees’]; and (3] the
Purchaser agreed to execute a share charge over the Sale Share in
favour of the Company.

The Disposal was completed on 10 March 2019 (the "Disposal Day"]
when the Sale Share was transferred to the Purchaser. All the
assets and liabilities associated to the Disposal, except the financial
guarantee contract as mentioned hereafter, were derecognized on
the Disposal Day. The Company signed the third, fourth, fifth and
sixth supplemental agreements on 29 August 2019, 30 October
2019, 25 March 2021 and 25 March 2022, respectively. According to
the latest supplemental agreements, the Purchaser will procure
the release or discharge of the Relevant Guarantees and complete
the relevant registration before 31 December 2023.

The Group and the Purchaser have been working closely to procure
the release or discharge of all remaining Relevant Guarantees in
full and it was agreed that all debts owing by the Disposal Group will
be assigned to the Purchaser when the Relevant Guarantees have
been released or discharged in full and the relevant registration
have been completed.

Despite there has been no Relevant Guarantees discharged in the
Year, the Company has taken the following actions in respect of the
release and discharge of the Relevant Guarantees since Disposal
Day:

()  the Company has ongoing discussions with the Purchaser on a
regular basis regarding the status and progress of the release
or discharge of the Relevant Guarantees;

(i) the Company, together with the Purchaser, has been actively
negotiating with the relevant banks and lenders to release or
discharge the Relevant Guarantees; and

(i) the Company is also maintaining its relationship with the
banks and the lenders of the Disposal Group so that no action
will be taken by them to demand immediate repayment of its
outstanding borrowings under the Relevant Guarantees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

The Company and/or the Purchaser (as appropriate] have prepared
and submitted discharging proposals to the relevant banks and
lenders since 2018, with an initial goal of discharging the Relevant
Guarantees in batches by 2020. However, despite that the above
actions had been taken by the Company and the Purchaser, the
Relevant Guarantees could not be fully discharged in 2020 and 2021
because of (1) the ongoing distraction and suspension of business
caused by the novel coronavirus pneumonia (the "COVID-19")
throughout 2020 and 2021; and (2] the fact that the discharging
process of banks was time-consuming and procedurally and
administratively complicated, particularly given that each bank
or lender would have its own internal review procedures as well
as approval hierarchy. As the discharging progressed further,
additional time was required for the relevant banks and lenders to
conduct their internal risk assessment in respect of the discharging
proposals. As the Company is only in the capacity as the guarantor
of the Relevant Guarantees, the Company may not always be
in the position to negotiate with the relevant banks and lenders
concerning certain financial conditions or obligations which would
be imposed on the Purchaser. Such discussions could only be
initiated by the Purchaser, and the Company would not have control
over the relevant progress and timing.

Nonetheless, both the Company and the Purchaser are committed
to procuring the full discharge of the Relevant Guarantees by 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

As at the date of this report, the latest status of the Relevant MRAFREBH @ HEEER (KA ESLE
Guarantees (classified by the Company as Relevant Guarantees Ato  AHHBERAZD » WELXE) Rk A
D for ease of reference] and the expected time for discharging are R FEHIFF KA T

summarised as follows:

Relevant Expected Time of

Guarantees 2021 Interim Status Current Status Discharge

GELER R —EC-FHRHRE = AT R 5 R BR B

Relevant Relevant Guarantee A discharged in  — —

Guarantees A full on 30 September 2020.

MERAFERA HEEFRAER-_ZE_TFENA — -
=+HEEHER -

Relevant The discharging proposal was The relevant bank is remaining at By the end of 2022

Guarantees B approved by the relevant division by  the finalization stage.
the end of 2020.

H B8 ¥ R B HEABFPER-_T_FTFFRY HBARTEERKREEBEEER - R-T-__FFX
BAERRERES VA Bl

The relevant bank has completed
the disposal provision process.

HEARTEEKEEERBTHEF -

Relevant Relevant Guarantee C discharged in  — —
Guarantees C full on 30 June 2020.
HEERC HEERCER-_ZE-_ZTFRA - —
=t RZEER -
Relevant The revised proposal is still subject  The relevant bank has transferred By the end of 2022
Guarantees D to internal review procedures by the creditor’s right to an
the relevant bank’s head office. The independent financial institution
relevant bank was going through in December 2021. The transferee
the procedures in granting the final has commenced the guarantor
approval of the revised proposal. discharging process.
B FERD RETEBRDAFHERBRTAR HRARTER_F_—F+_AK R-T-_FFX

MAREERF  HBRTEE BEREET RBLSBHEE - A
WERTEETEZZAAEN ﬁ:%)\aﬁﬁﬁé?%f%/\ﬁﬂ?%iﬁ°
B e

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this report, the Relevant RZ-E-_—F+_A=+—HEAXHKEAR
Guarantees provided by the Company to the Disposal Group in the 8 » QA A A H & £ B2 # Eﬁﬂ?i%f‘?
process of being discharged or released amounted to RMB5,634.0 BREFMIEEER(BEAS LA E)
million (31 December 2020: RMB5,440.1 million), inclusive #AARKS4LIABIL(ZE-Z ¢‘|‘_
of principals and interests. In consideration of such financial AB=+—8: ARESLOIBET) - tEB%
guarantees, the Group recognized financial guarantee contracts of EHEERMONRE  AEEBRR T ISER
RMB4,709.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB4,545.1 million) which ~ &K A R4 70908 B T (ZE_TF+=
will be released upon the releasing or discharging of these Relevant  A=+—H: ARELLLSIFETL)  HR R
Guarantees. MRl MREBR % S REMER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

Details of the Disposal were disclosed in note 18 of the 2019 annual
report, and the announcements of the Company dated 9 October
2018, 15 November 2018, 25 December 2018, 4 March 2019, 11
March 2019, and the circular of the Company dated 23 November
2018.

Debt Restructuring

Together with the Disposal, the Group has also conducted the
following measures to optimize its debt structure with an aim to
ease the financial burden of the Group. The lenders have been
supportive in general to the Group and the overall situation has
been improved compared to the Comparative Year.

[a] Repayment of a secured loan

The secured loan was secured by certain assets of the
Disposal Group, and the Group has bundled the settlement
of the loan in together with Relevant Guarantees D. This loan
was a secured bank loan and has been transferred to an
independent financial institution in December 2021.

It is the intention of the Company to repay such secured loan
by utilizing the US dollar facility entered with a shareholder
of the Company (the “Shareholder”) in 2018 (the “Facility”).
The Facility has a total amount of USD250 million. It is an
interest-free and unsecured facility with a maturity date of 31
December 2023. The Company expects to utilise the Facility
to repay the outstanding secured loan in batches and all such
repayments shall be made by the end of 2022. Based on the
best knowledge and information available to the Company
after discussions with the Shareholder, the Shareholder is
committed to providing the Facility required by the Company to
settle the outstanding secured loan in full in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

[b] Extension of maturity date of promissory notes

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had outstanding
promissory notes of RMB2.2 billion (31 December 2020:
RMB1.9 billion).

The Company has been in continuous discussions and
negotiations with the promissory noteholders with the
objective of obtaining their agreements to extend the
overdue liabilities during the Year. The management of the
Company has taken a proactive approach and had numerous
discussions with all the promissory noteholders regarding
the extension of maturity dates of the promissory notes. By
31 December 2021, the maturity date of promissory notes
with aggregated principal amount of RMB968.5 million were
successfully extended to June 2023.

Despite the remaining noteholders have not yet granted the
final consents to the Company for extending the maturity of
the remaining liabilities, the Company has been proactively
negotiating the extension of the maturity dates of the
promissory notes with these noteholders. These negotiations
were not finalized as at 31 December 2021 as certain
commercial terms remain in discussion and finalization.

The Company is currently working out a plan to settle the
outstanding promissory notes, which would depend on the
Company'’s financial performance and upcoming discussions
with the financial institutions on refinancing. As at the date of
this report, no definite settlement terms have been reached
by the Company with any relevant parties in this regard. The
management of the Company has been actively following
up on the status and progress of the above matters and has
been continuously monitoring the relevant progress and
development through regular meetings.

These aforesaid debt-restructuring actions are devised to align with
the Disposal to improve the overall financial position of the Group.
The Group expects that the completion of the Disposal and the
successful release or discharge of Relevant Guarantees shall have
a positive impact on the extension of maturity date, and settlement
of promissory notes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

Obtaining Financial Resources

To further improve the Group's financing position for its future
development, the Group has continued to utilise certain financing
arrangements during the Year, mainly being the Facility entered
with a shareholder in 2018. This Facility has a total amount of
USD250.0 million. It is an interest-free and unsecured facility with
an initial maturity date of 31 December 2023. Up to the date of this
report, the Company had utilised approximately USD129.4 million,
mainly for the oilfield development, repayment of remaining debts
and general working capital.

The Company also expects to continue to utilise the Facility for its
repayment of debts, its capital expenditure on the Energy Business
and for general working capital purpose. Due to the prolonged
impact of COVID-19, the Group’s operations in Kyrgyzstan was
impacted with various temporary restrictions. Coupled with the
recent outbreak of the Russo-Ukrainian war, the unpredictable
market price in Kyrgyzstan, and globe demand on refined product,
it is expected that expenditures in the Energy Business would
only start to be resumed by the Group by 2024, the earliest. The
management of the Group is taking a prudent approach to manage
the capital expenditure of the Energy Business and will continue
to monitor the development of the oil market in making any capital
expenditure decisions.

The Company and the Shareholder are engaged in ongoing
discussions as to the provision of further financial assistance by the
Shareholder to the Company, which is still preliminary and subject
to further discussion. If any such plan is materialised, the Company
will make announcement accordingly.

Energy Exploration and Production

The Group acquired 60% interest in the project involving five
oilfields zones located in the Fergana Valley of the Republic
“Kyrgyzstan Project”), which marked a
breakthrough of the Group into the energy exploration and

of Kyrgyzstan [the
production industry in 2014.
Under the agreements entered into with the national oil company

KbiprelzxepHedTeras ("Kyrgyzjer
Neftegaz” Limited Liability Company), a subsidiary of the Company

of Kyrgyzstan,

was granted rights to cooperate with the national oil company of
Kyrgyzstan in the operation of the five oilfields zones, namely, Maili-
Su IV, Eastern Izbaskent, Izbaskent, Changyrtash and Chigirchik.
The first three oilfields zones are located at the northeastern
part of the Fergana Valley while the latter two are located at the
Southeastern part of Fergana Valley. The total area covered by
these five fields is approximately 545 square kilometers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the exploration front, the Group has drilled a total of 80 wells
across the five oilfields zones, including 69 in exploration, and 11
currently being construction-in-progress. The Group has also held
a number of appraisal wells for exploration and development. As at
31 December 2021, 69 wells were at production (2020: 63 wells).

For the Year, the Kyrgyzstan Project recorded sales of 134,210
barrels (bbl) (2020: 113,493 bbl) of light crude oil. Revenue from the
Energy Business was approximately RMB34.4 million for the Year,
increasing by approximately 56.4% from RMB22.0 million for the
Comparative Year.

The increment of revenue in 2021 was primarily driven by the
increase in both selling price and sales volume. Despite the local
oil price and demand have improved in the past few months,
the management of the Group is foreseeing the consumption
of oil will continue to be restrained by COVID-19, and the slow
recovery of the global economy. It is expected that the impact of
COVID-19 continues to persist throughout 2022, while the global
economic landscape will remain complicated and challenging.
The recent Russian-Ukraine conflict is also creating uncertainties,
and impacting the recovery on demand of refined products
simultaneously.

In response to the uncertainties as mentioned above, the
management of the Group has acted conservatively, and applied
a consistent approach on managing the operation, including
postponing the capital expenditures plan, temporarily reduce
production, and implement company-wide cost-saving measures,
with an aim to maintain its financial positions while protecting
value in an extended uncertain environment. The Group has been
implementing a new oil well development method which has been
proved to improve and achieve a better production efficiency on
the oil well-drilling operation. The Group remains positive with
the business model in long term, and the Group is of the view that
the new oil well development method shall improve and achieve a
better production efficiency on the oil well-drilling operation.

The management of the Group is committed to maintaining its
liquidity and will manage its business through this unprecedented
market cycle.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

Oil storage and trading

As disclosed in the 2020 annual report, the Group entered into the
Acquisition Agreement on 23 October 2020, pursuant to which the
Group conditionally agreed to acquire approximately 50.46% of
the equity interest of Nantong Zhuosheng Petrochemical Co., Ltd.
("Nantong Zhuosheng”) (the "Acquisition”). The Acquisition was
completed on 22 January 2021.

Nantong Zhuosheng is principally engaged in provision of tank
storage and associated services for fuel oil and related products
in the PRC. It has (i) 37 storage tanks with total volume of 242,000
cubic meters; (i) land and buildings with land area of 412,120 square
meters and gross floor area of 6,156.27 square meters; [iii) certain
shoreline rights; and (iv] a bare land with total area of 33,334.19
square meters.

Nantong Zhuosheng possesses the facility, capacity and expertise
in the provision of oil storage services. The Board believes that the
Group can accumulate sufficient experience in the operation and
management in this area, and further expand its business presence
within the oil sector after acquiring Nantong Zhuosheng. This
Acquisition also reflected the Group’s strategy of investing in oil-
and-gas-related storage and logistic projects, which would enable
the Group to expand its energy business vertically.

Since the completion of the Acquisition, Nantong Zhuosheng has
generated revenue of RMB57.9 million and a net profit of RMB18.4
million.

Benefiting from the customer resources of Nantong Zhuosheng,
which is a part of the acquisition synergism, the Group has entered
into oil commodity market and start establishing stable customer
relationship through the trading entities. During the Year, the
trading business has generated RMB224.5 million revenue together
with a net profit of RMB3.1 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Proved and Probable Oil Reserve and Estimates

A competent person’s report was prepared in September 2018
in accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System
(PRMS] to estimate the oil resources and reserves as of 30
June 2018. The following table sets out the revised estimates
of the Group’s reserves as at 31 December 2021 by using the
abovementioned report as the basis:

SRR e

KRBEMSRZAHRENGE
R-ZE—NFLA BREAGHEREE
FIEPRMS) BB EEBALTRE - HE
E_T-N\FANAZTENAHRERNE
EETTHE - TRIINHE_T=_—F
+Z A=+t HASEEREBAREZE
BilHEEmE:

Proved plus

Unit: million tonnes Proved probable
=N Rg=n- ] HE EE MR
Maili-Su IV HFEEHIV 13.6 18.17
East Izbaskent RFHERE 5.10 8.15
Izbaskent 7 HT B2 52 45 4.95 5.04
Total reserves as at 30 June 2018 (the basis date) #HZ-ZT—\FA=Z+HZ
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31 December 2021 HMATTRHE 23.52 31.23

Financial Review

The Group’'s operating results for the Year were primarily
contributed by the Company and its subsidiaries engaged in the
energy exploration and production, as well as the oil storage and
trading business.

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB316.8 million (for the Comparative Year: approximately
RMB34.8 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 810%. The revenues are derived from: (1) the trading
business generated additional RMB224.5 million revenue together
with a net profit of RMB3.1 million; (2] the newly acquired business,
Nantong Zhuosheng, brought in storage revenue of RMB57.9 million
since the date of the Acquisition; and (3] the sales of crude oil from
the Kyrgyzstan Project contributed approximately RMB34.4 million
(for the Comparative Year: approximately RMB22.0 million).

Bf %5 [0 &

KEE KRB @EEEEERAAAT
REM B AT - E 1 RER R
AT e B 5 R o

iy #&

RAFE  AEEHEREHARKES68
BELT(ILEE  HARKILAST)
FRERLEIMNZBI0% - WEKBNESE
BELERINME ARE24588 7T EF
FEMNBARBIIBEE T QFWEELE
BEREVERMESTENERFEEAR
Bo79EET  ROEERAEHRBHEER
HAMEARELBEET(AILER QA
R#2208&7T) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
FERE2021

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

Cost of Sales

For the Year, the Group's cost of sales increased by approximately
540% to RMB263.7 million (for the Comparative Year: RMB41.2
million), which was largely in line with the new trading revenue
stream.

Gross Profit/Loss

The Group recorded gross profit of approximately RMB53.1 million
for the Year compared to gross loss of approximately RMB6.4
million for the Comparative Year. The majority of the increase arises
from (i) improve in oil price and higher demand of crude oil has
affected the Oil business gross profit margin significantly; and {ii)
Nantong Zhuosheng brought in additional RMB18.4 million net profit
to the Group.

General and Administrative Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s general and administrative expenses
decreased by approximately 40% to RMB28.9 million (for the
Comparative Year: RMB48.5 million). This was mainly attributable
to the reduction of legal and professional fees, as well as
the implementation of cost control measures in the existing
businesses.

Other Gains — Net

For the Year, the Group's other gains — net was RMB0.3 million (for
the Comparative Year: RMB16.4 million), and the movement was
mainly due to the decline of net foreign currency exchange gain
associated with working capital for the Year.

Finance Costs — Net

The Group’s finance income for the Year increased by approximately
102% to RMB74.0 million (for the Comparative Year: RMB36.6
million). It was mainly due to the recognition of imputed interest
gain of interest-free loans from the shareholder loan which was
extended during the Year.

Finance costs for the Year increased by approximately 43% to
RMB103.3 million (for the Comparative Year: RMB72.2 million), and
the increment was mainly due to the decline of net foreign currency
exchange gain associated with the borrowings for the Year.

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year

During the Year, the Group recorded total comprehensive loss
of approximately RMB194.0 million (for the Comparative Year:
total comprehensive income of RMB664.4 million), of which
total comprehensive loss attributable to the equity holders of
the Company was approximately RMB202.8 million (for the
Comparative Year: income of RMB680.0 million]. The decline of
total comprehensive income for the Year was mainly driven by
the discharge of the Relevant Guarantees. There was no Relevant
Guarantees discharged during the Year (for the Comparative Year:
RMB2,164.7 million discharged), and the accrued interest for the
financial guarantee contracts contributed RMB163.9 million (for the
Comparative Year: RMB164.7 million) to the loss for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Going Concern

The Group recorded a net loss of RMB177.2 million (for the
Comparative Year: profit RMB765.0 million) and had an operating
cash inflow of RMB28.4 million (for the Comparative Year: outflow
of RMB9.0 million] for the Year. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had a deficit of RMB7,893.1 million (2020: RMB7,899.1 million)
and the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB6,988.3 million (2020: RMB7,423.4 million). The Group
maintained cash and cash equivalents of RMB23.9 million (2020:
RMB16.1 million) as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, borrowings of the Group, amounted to
RMB3,580.1 million, out of which RMB598.0 million were overdue.
As at 31 December 2021, overdue interest payables amounted to
RMB431.0 million. Certain borrowings of the Group contain cross-
default terms, causing borrowings of the Group of RMB8.6 million
at 31 December 2021 to become immediately repayable.

A series of plans and measures have been taken to mitigate liquidity
pressure and to improve the financial position of the Group. In order
to enhance the liquidity and improve the financial position of the
Group, the Group has restructured its operations, refinancing its
debts and proactively liaising with relevant financial institutions to
discharge the Relevant Guarantees.

Details regarding uncertainties on the going concern of the Group
and the respective plans and measures are set out in the section
headed “Going Concern Basis” in Note 2.1(b] to the consolidated
financial statements.

Borrowings

The Group’s short-term borrowings decreased by RMB526.2 million
from RMB1,943.6 million as at 31 December 2020 to RMB1,417.4
million as at 31 December 2021, and the Group’s long-term
borrowings increased by RMB713.4 million from RMB1,449.3 million
as at 31 December 2020 to RMB2,162.7 million as at 31 December
2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

As at 31 December 2021, our total borrowings were RMB3,580.1
million (as at 31 December 2020: RMB3,392.9 million), of which
RMB124.1 million (approximately 3.5%) was denominated in RMB
(as at 31 December 2020: RMB12.6 million (approximately 0.4%])
and the remaining RMB3,456.0 million (approximately 96.5%) was
denominated in other currencies such as USD and HKD [as at
31 December 2020: RMB3,380.3 million (approximately 99.6%)).
Approximately 87.7% of the borrowings bear interests at fixed rate
(as at 31 December 2020: approximately 86.0%).

Significant Investments

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any other
significant investments during the Year.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 23 October 2020, the Group entered into the Acquisition
Agreement, pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed
to acquire 50.46% of the equity interest of Nantong Zhuosheng.
For details of the Acquisition, please refer to the announcements
dated 23 October 2020, 16 November 2020, 4 December 2020, 14
December 2020 and circular dated 24 December 2020 respectively.
The Acquisition was completed on 22 January 2021.

Save for the above, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals of investments during the Year under review.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets.

Foreign Exchange Risks

The Group incurred net foreign exchange gain of approximately
RMB101.0 million (for the Comparative Year: gain of RMB151.3
million) due to the appreciation of RMB against USD and HKD
during the Year, which resulted in exchange gain on certain USD-
denominated and HKD-denominated liabilities, such as trade and
other payables and borrowings of the Group.

Capital Expenditure

For the Year, our capital expenditure was approximately RMB10.8
million (for the Comparative Year: RMB13.7 million], which was
mainly used in the energy exploration and production segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

Our gearing ratio (measured by total borrowings divided by the sum
of total borrowings and total deficit] increased from approximately
75.3% as at 31 December 2020 to approximately 83.0% as at
31 December 2021. Affected by the total comprehensive loss of
RMB194.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, as well
as the increment of non-controlling interests on acquisition of
RMB199.9 million, the total deficit was reduced to approximately
RMB7,893.1 million as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December
2020: RMB7,899.1 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contingent liabilities of
RMB925.0 million (as at 31 December 2020: RMB895.0 million],
which was resulted from certain Relevant Guarantee provided
by the Company to the Disposal Group that did not meet the
recognition criteria for Financial Guarantee Contracts.

Credit Assessment and Risk Management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents, outstanding trade and other
receivables. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB23.9 million (as at 31 December
2020: RMB16.1 million), of which approximately RMB14.6 million
(approximately 61.1%) was denominated in RMB and the remaining
RMB?9.3 million (approximately 38.9%) was denominated in USD,
HKD and other currencies. The Group does not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

All of the Group’s cash and bank balances, short-term and long-
term bank deposits were placed with reputable banks which the
management believes are of high creditworthiness and without
significant credit risk.

The Group carries out customer credit checks prior to entering into
sales contract with customers. The Group offers credit lines after
evaluating the customer’s credit profiles, financial conditions, past
experiences and other factors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 158
employees (as at 31 December 2020: approximately 95 employees).
Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments] for the
Group were approximately RMB19.5 million for the Year (for the
Comparative Year: approximately RMB16.3 million). The principal
elements of remuneration package includes basic salary and other
benefits, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus
and/or share options granted under an approved share option
scheme. Such remuneration should reflect work complexity,
time commitment, responsibility and performance with a view of
attracting, motivating and retaining high performing individuals.

Additional Information On Auditors’ Modified
Opinions

The Board wishes to draw the attention of the shareholders of the
Company (the "Shareholders”) to the section headed "Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” as contained in the Independent Auditor’s
Report dated 28 March 2022 issued by the Company’'s auditors,
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, now contained in pages 90 to 93 of this
annual report. On the basis set out therein, our auditors do not
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

As explained in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”, the auditors’
disclaimer of opinion were principally caused by the multiple
uncertainties relating to going concern.

As set out in Note 2.1(b] of this report, the directors of the Company
have been undertaking a number of measures to mitigate the
liquidity pressure, to improve its financial position, to refinance its
operation and to restructure its debts. Despite that the auditors
could not obtain sufficient evidence regarding the going concern
of the Group, the Group's overall financial position for the year
ended 31 December 2021 had improved comparing to that of 2020.
With all the measures mentioned above (refer to the "Business
Review" section of "Management Discussion and Analysis’], we
are expecting the Group’s overall financial position to be further
improved in the year to come.

The Board and audit committee agreed with the views of the
management and the auditors regarding the uncertainties relating
to going concern. There is no disagreement by the Board, the
management nor the audit committee with the position taken by the
Company’s auditors regarding the disclaimer of opinion.

The Directors will continue to use their best efforts to protect and
uphold the Company’s best interest, including ongoing negotiation
with various lenders over the debt restructuring arrangements. The
Group, the Directors and the management are proactively to resolve
matters relating to disclaimer of opinion throughout the financial
year 2020.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors

The Board, which oversees the Company’s operations through
several committees, has ultimate responsibility for the
administration of the affairs of the Company. The Board consists of
seven Directors, four of whom are executive Directors, and three of
whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Chairman of the Board,
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Qiang, aged 60, an executive Director, the Chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group
in 2004 and was appointed as an executive Director on 24 October
2010. He was further appointed as the Chairman with effect from
26 November 2012. He is also the chairman of our finance and
investment committee, a member of our corporate governance
committee and a member of our remuneration committee. He is
responsible for overseeing the overall operations of the Group. In
2002, Mr. Chen obtained his doctorate degree in naval architecture
and ocean engineering from Harbin Engineering University (¥ BB
B L% K2) and an MBA degree from China Europe International
Business School (H X Bl & T 7 £ Bt ). Mr. Chen obtained a
master's degree in professional accounting (EMPAcc) ( & ¥ &
5 ® & ) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and was
awarded the CFO Qualifying Certificate from the Shanghai National
Accounting Institute (£ /8 BIZR & 5 2Bz ) in 2010. He also obtained
a bachelor’s degree in marine power engineering from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University [ = /8 22 # X2 ) in 1982. He also completed
the Rongsheng Global Leaders Program of the Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania in October 2011. Mr. Chen once
served as an assistant to the general manager and subsequently a
deputy manager of Jiangnan Shipbuilding Group Co., Ltd. (T f i&
W& B B PR A F]). He was an executive deputy general manager
and subsequently the vice-chairman to the board of directors and
general manager of Shanghai Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
(EBINSEEMBR AT, and was one of the founders of the
company. Mr. Chen is one of the experts on the national expert
database of the PRC and was named as one of the “one hundred
entrepreneurial talents” by the Jiangsu provincial government.
In 2011, he was also a top-tier chief scientist enrolled in the 4th
“333 Talents Cultivation Project” of Jiangsu Province. In 2010, the
prestigious Norwegian shipping magazine “TradeWinds” ranked
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him the 41st among the “100 Most Influential People in Shipping
Today”. In 2012, Lloyd's List ranked him the 88th among the “100
Most Influential People in Global Shipping Industry of 2012".
Mr. Chen enjoys special government allowances granted by the
State Council and has won many domestic awards and has been
granted many honorary titles, for example, the State Scientific and
Technological Progress Second Class Award (B 2% B} 8 3% iy 3 25
Z % #€) in 1990. Mr. Chen is a committee member of the Jiangsu
Shipbuilding and Offshore Engineering Assessment Panel of
Professional Qualification (T &% & M AR EL ) F TR S B E K 1lT
ERrES)

Mr. HONG Liang

Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Hong Liang, aged 50, is an executive Director and chief
operating officer of the Company. Mr. Hong joined the Group in
2006 and was appointed as an executive Director on 24 October
2010. He is @ member of our finance and investment committee.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Hong
is primarily responsible for investment and financing, capital
as well as cost and budget management. Mr. Hong obtained his
bachelor’s degree in accounting from Shanghai University (£
KE] in 1994. He obtained the Master of Executive Professional
Accountancy (EMPAcc) from Shanghai National Accounting Institute
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong in August 2010. He also
completed the Rongsheng Global Leaders Program of the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania in October 2011. Mr. Hong
has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance and strategic
investment gained from his service at investment banks. Mr. Hong
worked at Shenyin and Wanguo Securities (FR iR & & 3% % 2 7))
as an assistant manager of division two of the Shanghai investment
banking department from 1994 to 1997, the deputy general manager
of the Shanghai investment banking division of CITIC Securities
Limited (15 & 75 B R & £ 2 71), the general manager of the
investment banking division of United Securities Company Limited
(Bt & 7% FH B 9 2 A1) from 1998 to 1999, the deputy manager
of the investment banking division of CITIC Securities Limited
(R {Z B H D A F)) from 1999 to 2002, the general manager
of the investment and development division of Shanghai Sunglow
Investment Co., Ltd. (/85 ik B £ B AR 2 F]) from 2002 to
2004, and the deputy general manager of the strategic investment
division of Shanghai Dasheng Holdings Limited (/8 K& & E X
A]] from 2004 to 2005.
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Ms. ZHU Wen Hua

Executive Director

Ms. Zhu Wen Hua, aged 53, is an executive Director. Ms. Zhu was
appointed as an executive Director on 31 December 2013. She
is a member of our nomination committee. She has served as
vice-chairman of Rongsheng Heavy Industries since May 2015.
She served as an assistant supervisor of the supervisory audit
department and a supervisor of the bidding control department of
Rongsheng Heavy Industries, a subsidiary of the Company, since
2009 and January 2012 respectively. She also has served as an
assistant to the president of Rongsheng Heavy Industries since
October 2013. Since March 2014, she has served as vice-president
of Rongsheng Heavy Industries, as well as head of the cost control
department and director of the bidding office. She is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Zhu graduated from
the Graduate School of the Shanghai University (/8 KE#f 38
A EF) in May 2010 studying a professional postgraduate course
in Management Science & Engineering. She also completed the
Rongsheng Global Leaders Program of the Wharton School of the
University of Pennsylvania in June 2012.

Mr. NIU Jianmin

Executive Director

Mr. Niu, aged 55, is currently the president of
KelprelaxepHemTeras [(Kyrgyzier Neftegaz Limited
Liability Company], an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, since March 2018. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Niu was graduated from the Russian
major of Kunlun Vocational College in Xinjiang (3758 2 B % K
2)in 1991 and graduated from the Russian language and literature
of Tashkent Normal University (38 11 % Bl & KX 22) in 1995. In 2018,
he entered the Kyrgyz Humanities University (& 8 & H7 A XX K 22)
and studied for a master’s degree in economic management. Mr.
Niu has over 30 years of experience in oil and energy industry. Prior
to joining the Company, he served as the deputy general manager
of Xinjiang Yaxin International Economic and Trade Co., Ltd. (¥ 5&
TEEBRLCERHHERAR from 1991 to 2002. He was also the
general manager of Xinjiang Lishida Aluminum International Trade
Co., Ltd. (s H T E R ZE BB A F]) from 2002 to 2009. From
2009 to 2018, he was employed in several oil and energy related
companies, mainly responsible for acquisition, exploration and
development of Kazakhstan oilfield projects.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Jin Lian

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Jin Lian, aged 76, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 July 2013. He is the chairman of our corporate
governance committee and nomination committee and a member
of our audit committee, finance and investment committee and
remuneration committee. He was the secretary general of China
Association of the National Shipbuilding Industry from May 2006
to August 2015. Mr. Wang has over 40 years of experience in
shipbuilding industry. He previously held various senior positions,
including deputy director general of the international bureau of
China State Shipbuilding Corporation (H B fis #f T 2 48 22 7)),
director general of the planning and development department of
China State Shipbuilding Corporation (Bl A1 T2 £ E A7), vice
chairman of Shanghai Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. (_E /84N &
B M A PR A F]) and vice chairman of Hudong Heavy Machinery
Co., Ltd. (B E# R D BB A F]). Mr. Wang holds the senior
engineer (researcher level] qualification in China. He graduated
from Beijing Institute of Aeronautics (currently named as Beihang
University) (3E Rt 22 2 B - R A 4L R 2= i R K2 in 1969.

Ms. ZHOU Zhan

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhou Zhan, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director.
She was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 21 May 2014. She is the chairman of our audit committee
and remuneration committee and a member of our finance and
investment committee and nomination committee. She is currently
a partner at Beijing Promise Certified Public Accountants General
Partnership (Jb ;X TR E {5 & 5T B = 7% F7). She participated in
founding Sino-Reality Certified Public Accountants (22 & & 5t A1 =
W% FT) in 1997, where she served as a partner from 1997 to 2013. Ms.
Zhou has more than 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and taxation. Ms. Zhou holds Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Public Tax Advisor qualifications in the PRC. She
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (7
B 4% UK K ) with a bachelor's degree in economics in 1983.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAM Cheung Mau

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Cheung Mau, aged 65, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Lam was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 November 2015. He is a member of our audit
committee and corporate governance committee. Mr. Lam has over
30 years of experience in the auditing and finance. He previously
held various positions, as officers in the audit department of Hua
Chiao Commercial Bank, in the corporate planning and budgeting
division of the finance department of Bank of China (Hong Kong)
and was an audit manager of Han's Laser Technology Industry
Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Lam graduated in 1982 from the accounting
division of Xiamen University (&P X&) with a bachelor’s degree in
economics.

Company Secretary
Ms. LEUNG Yin Fai

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, aged 57, was appointed as the Group's
company secretary on 27 July 2018. Ms. Leung has been a
director of K E Corporate Services Limited (a company secretarial
services provider] since April 2016, the managing director of K E
Management & Consultancy (Shanghail Co., Ltd. since August
2015 and an independent non-executive director of Lotus Horizon
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 6063) since March 2020.
Ms. Leung was a director of KCS Hong Kong Limited from August
2008 to October 2014 and an independent non-executive director of
Green leader Holdings Group Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 0061)
from April 2014 to January 2020.

Ms. Leung was admitted as a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (currently known as Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants] in the United Kingdom in July 1995. Ms.
Leung was also admitted as a fellow member of the CPA Australia
in May 2004 and is currently a member of HKICPA. Ms. Leung
obtained a master’s degree in commerce from the University of
New South Wales, Australia in November 2002.
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The Directors are pleased to submit this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities and Analysis of

Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 on pages
205 to 207 to the financial statements.

Details of the analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to
gross profit for the year, by operating segments, are set out in Note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), comprising analysis of the Group performance during
the year, description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2021 as well
as indication of likely future development in the business of the
Group are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate
Governance Report” contained in this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is shown in the section headed “Five-Year
Financial Summary” of this annual report.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 96 to 97 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy and Dividends

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on, among
other things, the Group's current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirements. The payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to compliance with any restrictions under
the Laws of the Cayman lIslands, the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations. The Board will review the dividend policy from time to
time and may exercise at its absolute and sole discretion to update,
amend, and/or modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any specific period.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 2 June 2022 to Wednesday, 8 June 2022, both days
inclusive, during which no transfers will be registered, for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on Wednesday, 8 June 2022 (2022 AGM"). In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 1
June 2022.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2021, no reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders (2020: Nil).
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results for the year ended and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and for the previous
four financial years are set out in the Five-Year Financial Summary
section on page 214 of this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Share Option Schemes

On 24 October 2010, the Company conditionally approved and
adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of enabling the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued by
the Company pursuant to the exercise of the share options under
the Share Option Scheme is 140,000,000 Shares, representing
10% of the total issued share capital of the Company on the Listing
Date. As at 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this report,
the total number of Shares in respect of the outstanding options
granted under the Share Option Scheme was 24,761,000 Shares,
representing approximately 0.52% of the total issued share capital
of the Company comprising 4,770,491,507 Shares. The exercise
price per Share of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is HKD9.70. During the Period, no share options had been
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to
each participant (including both exercised and unexercised options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of grant.
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s outstanding
share options held by the Directors and certain employees of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme and their movements
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TEREBARBESELETREEFAELAR
FIEREFTIBETITRITEERENDFBU
REBEE_E_—F+t_A=+—HIEE

during the year ended 31 December 2021: ) &
Number of share options
BREXE
Asat Asat
1 January 31 December Exercise Exercisable
Name of grantees Date of grant 2021  Granted Exercised Cancelled  Lapsed 2021 price (HKD) period
RZE=-F
R-2=-% = e
ARALR RHBH -A-H gY B i A =t-H (Bm) Ld
Mr. Chen Qiang 30 April 2012 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000 9.70 Note
REit “3-CF s
MA=+A
Mr. Hong Liang 30 April 2012 2,800,000 - - - - 2,800,000 9.70 Note
EREL “3-CF s
MA=+A
Ms. Zhu Wen Hua 30 April 2012 900,000 - - - - 900,000 9.70 Note
AXIELL “3-CF s
MA=+A
Senior Managementand 30 April 2012 7,061,000 - - - - 7,061,000 9.70 Note
other employees
(in aggregate)
BRERER “3-CF s
HiEE(AR) BmA=TH
Total 24,761,000 - - - - 24,761,000
Att
Note: B 5E

No share options are exercisable prior to the first anniversary of 30 April 2012 ("Date
of Grant”). On each of the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the
Date of Grant, a further 20% of the share options granted to each grantee may be
exercised, provided that no share options shall be exercised after 30 April 2022.

Particulars of the Company’s Share Option Scheme is set out in

Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

A=+A%TE -
WM -

By S 2 B

BEEREAIR-_Z——FNA=+R(REEHD
—BEFEERATR RELAY BT WEF =
BE MRFRABEFARATERAZERANE—T
Riz20%BRE EREBERETR-_T-_F0

ARBIEREFENFBHINGEETH

R-ZZBZ—F+ZRA=+—08  KARAIKB
REFBHI N AR E M |MRM EIS -
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Connected Transactions
Exempt Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company entered
into certain related party transactions which also constitute fully
exempt connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, details of which are set out below:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong (a
Shareholder of the Company) and/or entities controlled by him
or his close family members, agreed to provide security-free
and interest-free loan facilities to the Group for working capital
purposes for an aggregate amount up to RMB1,628,025,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, directors and
shareholders of the Company or entities controlled by them
provided guarantees and security in respect of certain bank
borrowings and refund guarantees of the Group.

As the above financial assistance was provided by connected
persons for the benefit of the Company on normal commercial
terms (or better to the Company) and no security over the assets
of the Group is granted in respect of the financial assistance, the
financial assistance constitutes connected transactions of the
Company exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders” approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of
the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in the normal course of business are set out in Note
32 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions which constituted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules are set out in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” above, and the Company
has complied with the applicable requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A

BEXS

ERRBEERS
BEe—Z2-—F+-_A=+—HIFE XK
RAGFIVETHEB RS  ZEXHNE
M EMBEBUAEZEE TEZEN R Z2H
BRSPS FBEOT

BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—BIFE &K
ANAIBRREEREER,  SHEXERE
RHRNEERERAEEREANEZEE
SHERARLEEN  AfTeBERZAR
#1,628,025,0007T °

BE-T-—F+-A=t—BLFE &
AREFRBERE L EHOE R ARE
8% T IRAT 1 BOFUR B (R IR G R IR
-

MR ERREATREOIBET IR
ARB M BB —REEEF(EHEENR
ARRDIEL > MAXEBAREEEERY
XA ER R - RI|E LA BIZE14A90
R BEVBIXRBERARAZHER
5 HU#MRETHER RERBIBER
HERARTE ©

B RE RS
AEBRHEEBSPETHNERBEE 2
SHBHINRGEVEHMRMFEI2 - ZF
B EHREBBEBTINZRAEBERS 15 EHE
THHMBEE AR SEIN X EERS]
— 8 RARBEEST TR FUATZR
BRARTE °



Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no
purchases from major suppliers since the operations and capital
expenditure of the Group were minimal. The three largest
customers of the Group together accounted for approximately
53.5% of the Group’s total turnover of the year, which the largest
customer accounted for of approximately 40.9%. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or any of their
associates, or any shareholders of the Company (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers or customers.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company and approved by the
Board, based on prevailing market conditions and with reference
to other companies of a similar size, business nature and scope
as the Company. In addition, the Company may grant share
options to eligible directors and employees as incentives for their
contributions to the Group.

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is
to ensure that Directors are fairly rewarded and they receive

appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of performance.

The principal elements of the Directors’ remuneration package
include:

e  basic salary and other benefits;

contribution to pension schemes;

e discretionary bonus; and

e  share options granted under an approved option scheme.
Details of the Directors’ emoluments, the five highest-paid
individuals and senior management of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2021 are set out in Notes 20 and 26, respectively, to
the consolidated financial statements.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

FTERXFRMHER
BE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HBILEE "
HRAASENKERERNRASTEREEE
BI7KFE - BT AN 52 B 0 £ R) = B R R
TRE AEEN=ZHAHANELEMAER
EEAFEREETLNG  HAHEXK
HEFIER409% - BEZZT-_—F+=A
—T—HIEFE ARAEFEXAFENT
BB ALHBEESMEAANEEARAQFE
BITIRS% A ER AR RARIEMBE R EES
AEBAAMERNAELPHEMER -

M < B

EEMe IRBERTSBEARZER
B EBEEREBRENEMITF &
ARBHFMHEESHBYHESTSHE -
AN - KRB RERAEREZTREER T
BERE FRAEFHASEERMNER -

AEEFHECHREIBESEERRESE
BRAFHRMY EEMBHESRESNKER
IH -

E=EMeMAANIERARRE:

e HAFEREMEN:
o RS FFEHER:
o MBI R

e MRECEMEMNBRESIRON
FBRCHE -

REBEE-TE-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE "
AEBESHE  ANRSFHALTES
BEBEFBOANEN GRS BRI T
20%%26 °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
FERE2021

31



32

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Directors

Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer]
Mr. Hong Liang (Chief Operating Officer]

Ms. Zhu Wen Hua

Mr. Niu Jianmin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jin Lian
Ms. Zhou Zhan
Mr. Lam Cheung Mau

Mr. Hong Liang, Mr. Niu Jianmin and Mr. Wang Jin Lian are due to
retire from the Board by rotation at the 2022 AGM in accordance
with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company as at the date of this Report are set out in the
Directors and Senior Management section on pages 21 to 25 of this
annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
had entered into a service contract with the Group which was not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts that are Significant in
Relation to the Company’s Business

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” above, no contracts of significance [as
defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) or arrangements in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company or its holding
company or a subsidiary of the Company or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors were interested in
any business apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of
the Group.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or
Any Specified Undertaking of the
Company

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SF0")) which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the "Model Code"):
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(A) Long Positions in Shares and Underlying

(B)

Shares of the Company

(A) RAD T IR 43 548 B8 R 12 BV 47
B

Number of Shares Interested

BERENROEAE
Equity

derivatives Percentage of

Personal Corporate Corporate (share issued share

Name of Directors interest interest interest options})? Total capital®

BRASTETA HEBITRA

BB (PN $ DEE T DEE T (BB e )2 &t Bt

Mr. Chen Qiang — — 27,200,000 14,000,000 41,200,000 0.86%
PBRo& SE 4

Mr. Hong Liang - - - 2,800,000 2,800,000 0.06%
HREE

Ms. Zhu Wen Hua - — — 900,000 900,000 0.02%

RKXEL+
Notes: B =

1 27,200,000 Shares (before taking into account the 14,000,000 Shares
that may be granted to Mr. Chen Qiang pursuant to share options) are
directly held by Boom Will Limited. Boom Will Limited is 100% directly
beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Qiang.

2 These interests represented the interests in underlying shares in
respect of share options granted by the Company to these directors as
beneficial owners, the details of which are set out in the section headed
“Share Option Schemes” above.

3 These percentages have been compiled based on the total number of
issued shares of the Company of 4,770,491,507 as at 31 December 2021
and rounded to two decimal places.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Options

The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the share
options (being regarded as unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives) of the Company are detailed in the section headed
“Share Option Schemes” above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
Directors and chief executive [including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age)] had any interest in, or had
been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares,
warrants or debentures, if applicable] of the Company or its
associated corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to
the SFO.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of substantial shareholders
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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FERRRADB R
2 2
FE =
R-E-_—F+-_A=+-—H FEK=H
(ARABEEXHESTHAERIIN RAQ
AR DR HEABE T RIBE
AR EEAENEEEFESCMH
IR

Number of shares Percentage of
and derivatives issued share
Name of substantial shareholders interested capital”
BEERSNROR HERTRSG
FTERRER STETAHEA EEal=4
China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. 7,006,000,000 146.86%
Ms. Zhao Xuejun? 1,420,120,000 29.77%
HE R Lt
Skyline Asia International Limited? 1,420,120,000 29.77%
Action Phoenix Limited? 1,150,000,000 2411%
Mr. Wang Ping® 288,659,794 6.05%
F A
Kingwin Victory Investment Limited® 288,659,794 6.05%
ZHBNIREBR AR
Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong* 388,301,031 8.14%
o 7 5 AR
Fine Profit Enterprises Limited* 388,301,031 8.14%
FREEBRAG
Mr. Mei Liang® 348,000,000 7.29%
18R 7 &5
Top Acton Limited® 348,000,000 7.29%
Mr. Ho Kwok Leung Glen® 342,000,000 717%
o] B AR 4 AR e
Mr. Lai Kar Yan¢ 342,000,000 717%
BE B
China Development Bank® 342,000,000 717%
Castle Giant Investments Limited? 270,120,000 5.66%
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Notes:

Save
not b

This interest represents the interests directly held by Minsheng Bank
[Shanghai] and Minsheng Bank (Suzhou) in the 6,639,880,000 underlying shares
and 366,120,000 underlying shares of the Company respectively in relation
to the Subscription Convertible Preference Shares issued by the Company.
Both Minsheng Bank (Shanghai] and Minsheng Bank (Suzhou) are branches of
China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd.. As such, Minsheng Bank (Shanghai) and
Minsheng Bank (Suzhou) will also not be regarded as a public Shareholder
in the event that Minsheng Bank (Shanghai)l and Minsheng Bank (Suzhoul,
individually or in aggregate, hold 10% or more of the issued share capital of
the Company upon conversion of the Subscription Convertible Preference
Shares. Minsheng Bank (Shanghail and Minsheng Bank (Suzhou) may be
subject to the obligations to make a general offer under the Takeovers Code in
the event that they, individually or in aggregate, hold 30% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company upon conversion of the Subscription Convertible
Preference Shares. Pursuant to the Company’s Amendments and Restatement
of Memorandum and Articles of Association, if the issue of ordinary Shares
following the exercise by a holder of the Convertible Preference Shares of the
conversion rights would result in the Company not meeting the Public Float
Requirement immediately after the conversion, then the conversion and the
number of ordinary Shares to be issued pursuant to such conversion shall
be restricted to the maximum number of ordinary Shares issuable by the
Company which would not in the reasonable opinion of the Company result in a
breach of the Public Float Requirement.

These represent the same interests of Action Phoenix Limited and Castle
Giant Investments Limited. Each of Action Phoenix Limited and Castle Giant
Investments Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Skyline Asia International
Limited, of which is 100% directly beneficially owned by Ms. Zhao Xuejun.

Kingwin Victory Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Ping. This
presents the same interest of Kingwin Victory Investment Limited.

This represents the same interest of Fine Profit Enterprises Limited ("Fine
Profit”) and Wealth Consult Limited ("Wealth Consult’) of 21,744,800 shares.
Wealth Consult is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fine Profit, of which is wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong. Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong was therefore deemed to
have an interest in the shares in which Fine Profit was interested.

Top Acton Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Mei Liang. This represents the same
interest of Top Acton Limited.

Mr. Ho Kwok Leung Glen and Mr. Lai Kar Yan (the “"Receivers”) were appointed
on 25 June 2019 as the receivers of China Development Bank holding
342,000,000 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

These percentages have been compiled based on the total number of issued
shares of the Company of 4,770,491,507 as at 31 December 2021 and rounded
to two decimal places. All interest stated above represent long positions.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had
een notified of any persons (other than the Directors or chief

executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this report, there
has been sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact to the Group. Any changes in the applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees from time to time. As far as the Company is aware,
it has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Company.
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Environmental Policies and
Performance

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness
in our daily business operations. We encourage environmental
protection and comply with environmental regulation and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees. In
the course of its daily operations, the Group adheres to the principle
of recycling and reducing. It implements green office practices
such as double-sided printing and copying, promoting using
recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by switching
off idle lightings and electrical appliances. The Group will review
its environmental practices from time to time and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the
operations of the Group’s businesses to enhance environmental
sustainability.

Further details of the Group's environmental policies and
performance will be disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Relationship with Customers and
Suppliers

The Group has been maintaining friendly negotiation with its
customers and suppliers to develop long-term relationships.
Further details in relation to the major customers and suppliers
identified during the Period are disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Major Customers and Suppliers” in this report and in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings in the
shares of the Company.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section on pages 40
to 57 of this annual report.
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred
or sustained by him as a Director or other officer of the Company
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and
officers liability insurance in respect of the relevant legal actions
against the Directors.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited,
who will retire at the conclusion of the 2022 AGM. Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for re-appointment of Crowe (HK] CPA Limited as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2022 AGM.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing these financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors
are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Qiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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The Board and the management of the Company strictly adhere
to the principles of good corporate governance, which is vital to
prudent management and the enhancement of shareholder value.
These principles emphasise transparency, accountability and
independence. Set out below are those principles of corporate
governance adopted by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company complied
with the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "Code’] contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, save for the deviations as described in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Code provision C.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of the
chairman of the board and the chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Chen Qiang had performed both the roles of chairman of the
board (the "Chairman”) and chief executive officer of the Company
in deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the Code during the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Company believes that it is more
efficient and effective for the Company to develop its long term
strategies and in the execution of its business plans if Mr. Chen
Qiang serves as both the Chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company.

The Board
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chen Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer], Mr. Hong
Liang (Chief Operating Officer), Ms. Zhu Wen Hua and Mr. Niu
Jianmin, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wang Jin Lian, Ms. Zhou Zhan and Mr. Lam Cheung Mau. The
Board considers this composition to be balanced, and reinforces
a strong independent review and monitoring function on overall
management practices.

Full details of changes in the Board during the year and up to the
date of this report are provided in the "Report of the Directors” on
pages 26 to 39 of this annual report.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the Directors and
Senior Management section on pages 21 to 25 of this annual report.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies as
well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board is responsible for considering and deciding on
matters covering the Group’s overall strategies, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, approving Directors’
appointments to the Board, major capital transactions and other
significant operational and financial matters.
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Our independent non-executive Directors offer diverse industry
expertise, serve the important functions of advising the
management on strategies, ensuring that the Board fulfils high
standards of financial and other mandatory reporting requirements
as well as providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.

Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational responsibilities are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management. Major responsibilities include:

e execution of business and operational strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board;

e preparation of reports and accounts for the Board's approval
before publication;

e adoption of the remuneration policy approved by the Board;

e implementation of internal control and risk management
procedures; and

e compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

Board Practices

The Board holds at least four regular meetings annually at,
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group's business
development, operations and financial performance. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings.
All regular Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which a
schedule of matters is addressed to the Board and the Directors
are invited to include matters of special concerns for discussion
in the agenda. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
then sent in full to all Directors at least 3 days in advance or within
reasonable time prior to the relevant Board meetings.

All Directors have access to the Board papers and all related
materials and are provided with adequate information by the
management to enable the Board to make informed decisions on
the matters to be discussed. Directors should declare any conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the
Board has determined to be material, the matter should be dealt
by a physical Board meeting rather the a written resolution. The
minutes of the Board meetings have sufficient details of the matters
discussed at Board meetings which are prepared and kept by the
Company Secretary and are opened for inspection by any Director.
The Directors are free to access to the management for enquiries
about further information, when required, and the Directors can
obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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Attendance Records of Directors and Board
Committee Members

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held four
regular Board meetings and two general meetings. The agendas
and accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in
a timely manner. The Chairman of the Board shall ensure the
Directors being properly briefed on issues arising at those Board
meetings.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board
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also held a meeting with all independent non-executive Directors, EWEEMPATESHFENIB R NHE 2
without the presence of the other executive Directors. BIFRPTESFTRITEH -
Continuous
Professional
Meetings Attended/Held Development
LEEERY EREATRY BEERER
Corporate Type of
Audit  Governance ~ Nomination Remuneration General Trainings
Name of Directors Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meetings (Notes)
bRER SEAER
EEpg Bz ENZEE Z8® REZEE HMzEe RRAE (Bt &)
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. Chen Qiang (Chairman/ 4{0 - 33 - 111 iy AB
REEE(EE)
Mr. Hong Liang 4fh - - - - 22 AB
HREE
Ms. Zhu Wen Hua bfk - - 11 - 072 AB
RAXFERL
Mr. Niu Jianmin 3k - - - - 012 AB
FRREE
Independent non-executive Directors
BUFHrEE
Mr. Wang Jin Lian 4 44 3/30 1/ 11 112 AB
IRERE
Ms. Zhou Zhan 4fh 4f40) - 1 /1 12 AB
AREZT
Mr. Lam Cheung Mau 4k bJh 33 - - 12 AB
MEERE
Note relating to attendance records of meetings: B eSS SR AL

1 Chairmen of the Board and the Board Committees are indicated by (C).
Notes relating to attendance records of training:

A Reading and online studying.

B In-house training.
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Continuous Professional Development

Code Provision C.1.4 of the Code stipulates that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Group also makes available
continuous professional development to the Directors at the
expense of the Company and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company arranged
Directors to join an in-house training on (1) Listing compliance; and
(2) Anti-Corruption Regulations to enhance their capacities to carry
out directors’ duties.

Beside, every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package from the Company's
external legal advisor ensuring that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company's operation, business, the relevant
laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and governance policies.
The company secretary also provides the updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from time to time.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of independent non-executive Director, whereby
at least one of whom possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive
Director a written annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is satisfied with the
independence of all the independent non-executive Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may
affect his/her independence.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The procedures for appointing and re-electing directors are set out
in the Articles of Association. The Board is responsible for selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship, taking into
consideration factors such as appropriate professional knowledge
and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal
skills.

Under the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors must
retire, and if eligible, may be subject to re-election at each annual
general meeting. Furthermore, any Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board should hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting.

To further reinforce accountability, any further re-appointment of an
independent non-executive Director who has served the Company’s
Board for more than nine years will be subject to separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Hong Liang, Mr.
Niu Jianmin and Mr. Wang Jin Lian will retire by rotation at the 2022
AGM. All retiring Directors, being eligible, has offered themselves
for re-election as Directors at the 2022 AGM.

Each of the executive Directors entered into renewed service
contracts with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 24 October 2019.

Each of the independent non-executive directors is appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date of
their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

Details of Directors’ interests in the Shares are set out in the
“Report of the Directors” section on pages 26 to 39 of this annual
report.
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Model Code on Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standards of the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the Company’'s code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Directors’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities undertaken for the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2021, no claim was made against the Directors.

Board Committees

The Board has established an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the "Remuneration
Committee”), a nomination committee (the "Nomination
Committee”], a corporate governance committee (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”) and a finance and investment committee
(the “Finance and Investment Committee”) with defined terms of
reference. Details and reports of the committees are set out below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established to review the Group’'s
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems
and make relevant recommendations to the Board. The Audit
Committee comprises of three members: Ms. Zhou Zhan, being
chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Wang Jin Lian and Mr. Lam
Cheung Mau, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.
Ms. Zhou Zhan, as the chairman of the Audit Committee, possesses
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
main duties of the Audit Committee are to audit and supervise
the financial reporting procedures of the Group, consider the
appointment, re-appointment and remuneration of the auditor and
any matters related to the removal and resignation of the auditor.
In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for examining and
inspecting the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including conducting reviews, on a regular
basis, in respect of the risk management and internal control
over various corporate structures and business procedures, and
considering their potential risks and imminence, so as to ensure the
effectiveness of the Company’s business operations and to achieve
its corporate objectives and strategies. The scope of such reviews
covers finance, operations, compliance and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee held

four meetings. The following is a summary of the work of the Audit

Committee during the year:

e reviewed and made recommendations for the Board's
approval of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020;

e reviewed and made recommendations for the Board's
approval the Group's interim condensed consolidated financial

information for the six months ended 30 June 2021;

° reviewed and made recommendations for the Board's
approval the re-appointment of the external auditor;

. reviewed the external auditor’'s remuneration and terms of
engagement;

° reviewed the reports from the external auditor;
e reviewed the annual audit plan;

e reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group;

e review of the reports from the internal auditor; and

. reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee, and the Audit Committee is of the opinion that
such financial statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended the
Board's approval of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24 October 2010
and has been delegated with the responsibility of determining the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing and approving the specific remuneration
packages of all Directors and making recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration of independent non-executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
members: Ms. Zhou Zhan (an independent non-executive Director]
being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Chen
Qiang (Chairman of the Board and an executive Director) and Mr.
Wang Jin Lian (an independent non-executive Director).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held a meeting. The following is a summary of the work
of the Remuneration Committee during the year:

e annual review of the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company, and

. reviewed and made recommendations to the Board the
directors’ fee for Independent Non-executive Directors.

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 20 and 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to Code provision E.1.5 of the Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended

31 December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (RMB)
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April 2012 with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee comprises
of three members, namely Mr. Wang Jin Lian (an independent
non-executive Director) being the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, Ms. Zhu Wen Hua (an executive Director] and Ms. Zhou
Zhan (an independent non-executive Director).

The key duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(a] to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b)  toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select, or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(c)] to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
and

(e] to review the policy, procedures and criteria for the nomination
of directors.
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The Nomination Committee is to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. To
ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, a formal, considered and transparent procedure
Is in place for selection, appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly succession [if
considered necessary), including periodical review of such plans.
The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or
fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon the
recommendation of the proposed candidate by the Nomination
Committee. The criteria to be applied in considering whether a
candidate is qualified shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to
the diversity of the Board as well as the effective carrying out by
the Board of the responsibilities. Further details of the selection
criteria and the procedure are set out in the terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination

Committee held a meeting. The following is a summary of the work

of the Nomination Committee during the year:

e reviewed on the structure, size and composition [including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

e assessed the independence of each of the independent

non-executive Directors; and

e reviewed the retirement plan of the Board.
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Nomination Procedures and Criteria

A shareholder may at any general meeting nominate a candidate
for directorship if, within the 7 days commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of such general meeting, such shareholder
(being entitled to attend and vote at such general meeting and not
being the candidate] gives to the company secretary a written notice
of his/her intention to propose such candidate for election and also
a written notice signed by such candidate of his/her willingness to
be elected.

Other than the nomination of directors by shareholders, at
present, candidates for directorship may be nominated by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, who will provide the Nomination
Committee with notice of such nomination once a candidate has
been identified.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board with respect to the nomination
of candidates for directorship by making reference to the
Company’'s Board Diversity Policy, which was adopted by the
Board on 26 March 2013 and various aspects of the candidate,
including (but not limited to) his/her education background,
professional experience, experience in the relevant industry and
past directorships. In particular, for candidates to be independent
non-executive directors, the Nomination Committee assesses
his/her independence under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Then,
the Nomination Committee will make its recommendations to the
Board for consideration and approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Company pursuant
to the resolutions passed at a Board meeting held on 26 March
2013. The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, the nomination and the board appointments
during the year ended 31 December 2021 were made after
considering the board diversity in a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

The Board emphasis on diversity (including gender diversity)
across all levels of the Group. As at the date of this annual report,
the Board comprises seven Directors, two of whom are female, it
stands at 28.6%. The Board considers that gender diversity on the
Board has been achieved. Further details on the gender ratio of the
Group and initiatives taken to improve gender diversity across the
workforce (including senior management), together with relevant
data, can be found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”, which sets out on pages 58 to 89.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference. The Corporate Governance
Committee comprises of three members, namely Mr. Wang Jin Lian
(an independent non-executive Director) being the chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee, Mr. Chen Qiang (Chairman of
the Board and an executive Director), and Mr. Lam Cheung Mau (an
independent non-executive Director).

The key duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are as
follows:

(a] to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c] to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

le) to review the Company's compliance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules) and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Corporate
Governance Committee held three meetings. The meetings were
held:

e reviewed the compliance with the Code and the relevant
disclosure in the draft 2020 Annual Report and the draft 2021
interim report;

e reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and

e reviewed the corporate governance policy in relation to
the disclosure on inside information and the proposed
appointment of members of the inside information disclosure
committee.
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Finance and Investment Committee

The Finance and Investment Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference. The Finance and Investment
Committee comprises of four members, namely Mr. Chen Qiang
(Chairman of the Board and an executive Director] being the
chairman of the Finance and Investment Committee, Mr. Hong
Liang (an executive Director), Mr. Wang Jin Lian (an independent
non-executive Director) and Ms. Zhou Zhan (an independent non-
executive Director).

The key responsibilities of the Finance and Investment Committee
are as follows:

(a) to develop and review the Company's investment
policies, financial strategies and objectives and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to consider, evaluate and review major project investments,
acquisitions and disposals of the Group and to make
recommendations to the Board;

(c] to conduct post-investment evaluations on investment projects
of the Group;

(d) to arrange and approve banking facilities, loans, financial
instruments, guarantees and indemnities of the Group;

(e) to approve the opening and cancellation of bank or securities
accounts of the Group and to approve the authorised
signatories and mode of operations of the accounts;

(] to oversee the overall management of all the risks of
the Group, including, without limitation, the financial and
operational risks by setting and formulating risk management
policies and strategies; and

(g) to review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness and
risk management policies and framework in identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board places great importance on internal controls and is
responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of those risk management and
internal control annually. The Company has provided directors
training materials, which contain, amongst other things, inside
information regulatory requirements, prepared by the Company’s
external legal advisor in order to ensure the company is compliance
with regulatory requirements.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives and
to protect the Group's assets and information. It aims to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatements, losses,
damages or fraud and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operations systems. The Board has delegated the design,
implementation and ongoing assessment of risk management and
internal control systems to the management, while the Board,
through its Audit Committee, oversees and reviews the adequacy
and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management procedures in place. Qualified
personnel of the Group maintain and monitor these systems of
controls on an ongoing basis.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management
systems. The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems semi-annually through the Audit Committee.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no irregularity or
material weakness was noted within any function or process. The
Audit Committee is satisfied that the risk management and internal
control systems had functioned effectively as intended.

The Company had established internal audit function and regularly
carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control in order to ensure that they are able to
meet and deal with the dynamic and ever changing business
environment.

The Board considers the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The
Board further considers that there was no issue relating to the
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group.
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In addition, the Board and/or its committees have also reviewed
the adequacy of the Company’s resources, staff's qualifications
and experience, training programmes and the related budgets in
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

Inside Information

The Company has established a disclosure committee to oversee
disclosure of inside information in accordance with a policy on
disclosure of inside information (the “Disclosure Policy”). The
Disclosure Policy sets out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner
and in such a way so as not to place any person in a privileged
dealing position and to allow sufficient time for the market to
price the listed securities of the Company with the latest available
information of the Company.

All directors and employees of the Company must comply with
the Disclosure Policy which provides guidelines to the directors,
senior officers and other relevant employees of the Group to ensure
proper safeguards in place to prevent the Company from breaching
the statutory disclosure requirements of inside information.
The Disclosure Policy also includes appropriate internal control
and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information and relevant steps to be taken.

The Disclosure Policy also stipulates that dissemination of inside
information of the Company shall be conducted by publication of the
relevant information on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company, according to the requirements
of the SFO and the Listing Rules.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

Company Secretary

Ms. Leung Yin Fai is the Company Secretary of the Company
and responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and ensuring that the
Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures and all applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the
company secretary is responsible for facilitating communications
among Directors as well as with management.
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The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Leung Yin
Fai, as its company secretary. Mr. Hong Liang, executive director
of the Company, is the primary contact person whom Ms. Leung
Yin Fai can contact. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
company secretary has undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

External Auditor and Auditor’s

Remuneration

The Company has engaged Crowe (HK] CPA Limited as its external
auditor. The aggregate remuneration in respect of services provided
by external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HKD3.3 million (2020: HKD3.4 million), of which
HKD3.0 million (2020: HKD3.0 million) represents annual audit and
other audit-related services.

Directors’ Responsibility for
Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Responsibility

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and of ensuring that the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements of the Company is in
accordance with the applicable standards and requirements.

The statement of the auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 90 to 93 of this annual
report.

Going Concern and Mitigation
Measures

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a net
loss of approximately RMB177.2 million and had an operating cash
inflow of RMB28.4 million. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
a deficit of RMB7,893.1 million and the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB6,988.3 million. While the Group
only maintained cash and cash equivalents of RMB23.9 million.
These conditions, together with others described in Note 2.1(b] to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. However, a number
of measures have been undertaken to improve the Group’s liquidity
and financial position, to refinance its operations and to restructure
its debts. For further details of these measures, please refer to
Note 2.1(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Under the Articles of Association, in addition to regular Board
meetings, Directors of the Company, on the written requisition of
any one or more shareholders of the Company holding not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company which carry voting rights,
shall convene an extraordinary general meeting to address specific
issues of the Company.

The requisition must (i) specify the objects of the meeting, the
name of the requisitionist(s), their contact details and the number
of ordinary shares in the Company held by them, (i) be signed by
the requisitionist(s) and [iii) be deposited at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

The Directors must, within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition, proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting to be held within a further 21 days. If the Directors fail
to convene the extraordinary general meeting as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s] as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Investor Relations Department
whose contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Huarong Energy Company Limited
Suites 1508-10, 15/F, Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Email: cosecldhuarongenergy.com

Tel no.: +852 3900 1888

Fax no.: +852 2180 7880

The Investor Relations Department will forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or the relevant Board
committees and answer any shareholders’ questions (where
applicable and appropriate).
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Shareholders’ Meetings

The Company regards the AGM as an important event as it provides
an invaluable opportunity for the Board to communicate with the
shareholders of the Company. All shareholders are given at least
20 clear business days’ prior notice to attend the AGM. During
the AGM, the Directors are available to answer questions which
shareholders may have. Poll results are published on the websites
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company in
a timely manner.

All shareholders of the Company have the right to be informed and
participate in material matters of the Company as prescribed by
laws and the Articles of Association.

Investor Relations

The Group is committed to regular and proactive communication
with its shareholders. It has adopted a policy of disclosing clear,
adequate and relevant information to its shareholders in a timely
manner through various channels. This policy is regular reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Board considers that the Company has effectively
communicated with Shareholders during the year. The Board
communicates with its shareholders and investors through various
channels. The Board members meet and communicate with
shareholders and investors at annual general meetings and other
general meetings.

Investor Relations Department responds in a timely manner to
letters and telephone enquiries from shareholders and investors
of the Company. An email contact cosecldhuarongenergy.com is
available to shareholders and investors of the Company.

The Company's website (http://www.huarongenergy.com.hk]
facilitates effective communications with shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders of the Company by making up-to-date
information relating to the Group’'s business developments,
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information available electronically and on a timely basis.
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Overview

China Huarong Energy Company Limited (the “Group” or “we”]
is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report [the "Report’] for 2021 to demonstrate the Group's
commitments, policies and performance in corporate sustainability.
The Group is principally engaged in energy exploration and
production business in the Republic of Kyrgyzstan ("Kyrgyzstan”),
and oil storage and trading businesses in the People's Republic
of China ["PRC"). We were granted rights to conduct the energy
exploration and production business by holding 60% interests in
the projects involving five oilfields located in the Fergana Valley of
Kyrgyzstan. Moreover, we holds 50.46% of the equity interest of
Nantong Zhuosheng Petrochemical Co., Ltd. for the provision of oil
storage and trading businesses.

About this Report

This Report has been prepared in strict compliance with the
requirement under Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide") of Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. It covers the Group's energy exploration
and production business in Kyrgyzstan, oil storage and trading
businesses in the PRC, and the offices in the PRC and Hong Kong
for the period from 1st January 2021 to 31st December 2021
(the "Reporting Period”). Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs")
that need to be revealed compulsorily as required by the ESG
Guide are all addressed in the "Environmental Sustainability”
and “Social Sustainability” sections of the Report. Alongside with
the reporting principles of the ESG Guide, general disclosure
of the Group’s ESG procedures was illustrated through the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Both Chinese and
English versions of the Report have been uploaded to the Group’s
website www.huarongenergy.com.hk and HKEXnews website
www.hkexnews.hk.
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Stakeholders Engagement

Stakeholders refer to the groups and individuals materially
influencing or being influenced by the Group’s businesses.
Our stakeholders include government, regulatory authorities,
shareholders, investors, directors, employees, customers,
suppliers and general public. We strongly believe that establishing
effective communication channels with stakeholders is essential
for the Group's business development and creates long-term
corporate values. It also helps the Group better understanding
the sustainability topics which are important to its stakeholders
and respond appropriately, relevantly and effectively. During
the Reporting Period, we utilized the following channels to
communicate with stakeholders. This Report is prepared based on
those ESG topics that our stakeholders consider important.

Stakeholders
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Communication Channels

] BERE

Government/Regulatory Authorities

Shareholders/Investors

Face-to-Face Interviews
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Annual General Meeting

Investor Meetings
Corporate Website

BRE/REE RRBFRE
REESG:
b X AUk
Directors Board Meetings
5% Exg93
Employees Staff Trainings
Exchange Meetings
(== EIE
RmERE
Customers Customer Interviews
On-site Visits
Complain/Enquiry Hotlines and Mailbox
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RI52E
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Suppliers Supplier Meetings
On-site Visits
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General Public

Management Media Interviews
Corporate Website
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B HBREARS

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback, especially on our
sustainability policies and performance. Readers are welcomed to
share their views with the Group at cosec(dhuarongenergy.com.

Sustainability Materiality
Assessment

Different companies need to pay attention to different sustainability
topics due to their unique business operation models. In view of the
Group’s inclusion of the oil storage and trading businesses in 2021,
we specially appointed an independent sustainability consultant
to conduct a sustainability materiality assessment to identify the
sustainability topics that are most concerned by stakeholders
under the Group’s new business model. The Group invited various
stakeholders to participate in a survey prepared by the independent
sustainability consultant. Invited stakeholders were required to
select the most important options among a series of sustainability
topics related to the Group’s businesses, and then we formulated
the materiality assessment matrix set out below. This scientific
materiality assessment helps the Group to identify and prioritize its
ESG matters, and to help the Group formulate more effective ESG
strategies.
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Sustainability Materiality Assessment
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Importance to the Group's Development
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. Employment and Labour Practices {Eff &% T

* Community #t[&

A Environmental Impacts IRiE5/2

. Operating Practices &:8#1E
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Greenhouse gas emissions

Climate changes

Use of energies

Water consumption and sewage treatment

Land use, pollution and restoration

Solid waste treatment

Use of raw/packaging materials

Mitigation measures to protect environment and natural
resources

Composition of employees

Employee remuneration and benefits

Employee occupational health and safety
Employee development and training

Prevention of child labor and forced labor
Responsible procurement

Management of suppliers’ sustainability works
Product quality management

Impact on the environment of products
Customers satisfaction about products

Marketing and promotional strategies of products
Protection of intellectual property rights
Protection of customers information and privacy

Prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

Anti-corruption policies and whistle-blowing procedures
Corporate governance

Support for local community

Public welfare and charity
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Board Inclusiveness

The Board of Directors (the "Board”) of the Group is the highest
governing body primarily responsible for the formulation of
its sustainability strategy. The Board regularly integrates
the Group’'s sustainability objectives into its businesses,
identifies and manages its sustainability risks and provides
improvement recommendations. The Group also engaged an
independent sustainability consultant to facilitate the collection
and consolidation of its sustainability data as well as provide
recommendations on its future sustainability development.

Board Statement

The Board takes overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG matters
and their integration into our strategies. It guides the management
and monitoring of sustainability matters that have been identified
as relevant to the Group. To ensure effective implementation of
the Group's sustainability policies, the Board requires the Group’s
related departments to provide their sustainability performance
regularly. The Board will review the Group’'s material sustainability
issues and risks regularly, and ensure appropriate risk mitigation
measures are in place. All sustainability disclosures, policies,
targets and performance of the Group are reviewed and endorsed
by the Board.
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A. Environmental Sustainability

This section primarily discloses the Group's policies and KPIs
on emissions, use of resources, and the environment and
natural resources in 2021.

A.1 Emissions

The Group is fully aware that crude oil exploration and
extraction consume a large amount of natural resources
which will cause a direct impact to the environment and
generate greenhouse gases [the "GHG"). Therefore, we
firmly abide the “green production” principle and strive to
enhance the crude oil extraction rate and productivity. We
strictly complies with relevant environmental laws and
regulations of Kyrgyzstan. Our pollutants are discharged
in strict accordance with statutory requirements and
standards to ensure the emissions of GHG, sewages
and wastes do not exceed the limits stated in the laws.
We recruited environmental protection engineers for
reporting our environmental protection performance
in every quarter. They regularly on-site inspect the oil
wells, land and energy usages in the production, and
identify the risky environmental and safety procedures
in the production processes to avoid any major accidents
damaging the ecological environment. Furthermore,
the Group appointed external consultants to provide
professional advices and monitor the entire production
process. The State Inspection for Environmental and
Technical Safety of the Kyrgyzstan conducts annual
inspections of the Group and provides inspection reports.
During the Reporting Period, the State Inspection for
Environmental and Technical Safety of the Kyrgyzstan
issued an environmental protection non-violation
certificate to the Group, proving that there was no
excessive emission against the national permitted
emission levels.
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For the oil storage and trading businesses, we have set
up a special environmental management department
and arranged dedicated environmental management
personnel to be responsible for environmental
management. We regularly carry out environmental
protection education to all employees to enhance
their awareness of environmental protection and
pollution control capabilities. The education mainly
focuses on the environmental pollution problems of
the Group, introducing waste sources and treatment
methods, possible environmental pollution accidents
and emergency responses. We regularly monitor the
surrounding environmental quality, find problems and
analyze the causes of pollution in a timely manner,
and provide targeted pollution prevention and control
measures to avoid further environmental pollution
accidents. In addition, we take effective pollutant
purification measures to reduce the pollutants in
production waste, such as sewage treatment stations and
oil and gas recovery devices.

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
54.39kg of Nitrogen Oxides, 0.78kg of Sulphur Oxides
and 5.03kg of Particulate Matter. The total GHG emission
from the Group were 1,809.3 tonnes COz for the same
period. It was mainly from the production processes
(Scope 1), and electricity consumption in daily operations
(Scope 2) and paper usage and staff business travels
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(Scope 3). MEEAMBEIABRRIT(E=
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Gases Unit Amount
R B B BHE
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) kg 54.39
S TR
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg 0.78
maltyw Tr
Particulate Matter kg 5.03
R T
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RIE - HERERKRS

Table 2: GHG Emissions in 2021 K- —E--FHERE
HE
KPIs Unit Amount Intensity*
FRERER B B E BE*
Scope 1 [Direct Emissions) Tonnes of COz 125.9 0.40
FE—HR(EEHER WE o —|ALIREE
Scope 2 (Indirect Emissions) Tonnes of COz 1,677.3 5.29
F_R(EEHFR W —|ALIREE
Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions]  Tonnes of COz 6.1 0.02
55 =48 CH A 42 BF ) W —|ALIREE
Total Tonnes of COz 1,809.3 5.71
HEt WE - —SALIRE 2

Note: Intensity was calculated by dividing the Group’s revenue of
RMB316.8 million in 2021.

There are opportunities for the Group to generate
hazardous wastes due to oil and sewage leakages
in its operations. For the crude oil exploration and
production business, we notice that the leakage of
unrefined crude oil will have catastrophic impact on the
ecological environment. Therefore, we deployed strict
measures to closely monitor oil pipelines and equipment.
Our production sites are with sewage tanks and anti-
seepage cloths, and there are also oil booms and oil
suctions at the wharf to prevent waste materials and
liquids from penetrating into the soil. We hired qualified
outsourcers to handle discharged sewage and to ensure
it met the discharge standards required by the laws.
Besides, the waste liquid will be transported to a central
collection point for treatments and then stored in sealed
oil cylinders, which must be processed by qualified
outsourcers.

For oil storage services and trading businesses, our
production sites, facilities and equipment, safety
protection, fire protection, life-saving and environmental
protection equipment all meet the safety requirements
of relevant laws. We conduct regular inspections and
maintenance of facilities and equipment. We are equipped
with sufficient anti-fouling emergency equipment, such
as oil booms and oil skimmers.
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The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group
were mainly from solid wastes in daily operations from
production sites and offices, such as plastics, paper
and domestic garbage. The Group has implemented
classification for waste collection and management.
Wastes will be classified and stored in recyclable and
non-recyclable categories. Recyclable wastes will be
transported to recycling centers or waste treatment
plants. We return those used production equipment and
parts to suppliers for reusing. We also reduce waste
from the source. Offices have basically been in paperless
working mode, and we encourage employees to use
electronic documents and electronic communications
to reduce paper usage. In addition, we encourage
employees to reuse old office equipment and reduce
disposables. We also effectively plan the meals in the
canteens to reduce food waste.
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Wastes Types Unit Amount Intensity*
BE Y BE B BHE mE*
Non-Hazardous Waste Daily Solid Waste kg 19,750.0 62.35
BEBEEY BEEREED T

Note: Intensity was calculated by dividing the Group's revenue of
RMB316.8 million in 2021.
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A.2 Use of Resources

The Group strictly controls the use of various resources
in operations and launched a series of internal control
systems for the procurement and use of resources.
During the Reporting Period, the main resources
consumed by the Group were electricity, water, gasoline,
diesel and paper. The products of the Group do not
consume packaging materials.

Table 4: Usage of Various Resources in 2021
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Resources Unit Amount Intensity*
= B ERE BE*
Electricity kWh 3,822,845 12,068.05
B TR

Water m3 1,561 4.93
X AVAV I N

Gasoline liter 43,442 13714
T H NV

Diesel liter 8,870 28.00
5 om ~F

Paper kg 670 212
Aok T

Note: Intensity was calculated by dividing the Group's revenue of
RMB316.8 million in 2021.
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Electricity

The Group's use of electricity was mainly from the
production sites and daily business operations in
offices. We believe that the reduction in electricity
consumption will reduce the GHG emission. During
the Reporting Period, we encouraged employees
to reduce electricity consumption and provided
energy-saving and emission reduction educations
to ensure all of our staff observing the energy
saving measures. Meanwhile, we actively explored
the adoption of more environmentally friendly
technologies in business operations and operating
procedures. Followings are the electricity saving
measures implemented by the Group:

v Display environmental protection signs such
as "Please turn off all the lights after work”
in prominent positions in production sites and
offices to remind conservation of electricity

v Promote the use of energy-saving lighting
systems such as LEDs

v Keep the air conditioning system operating at
25 degree celsius

v Check the electrical shutdown status regularly
everyday to prevent people from leaving
without turning off the electrical appliances

v/ Hire professional maintenance specialists to
repair and clean the air-conditioning system
regularly

v Purchase products with energy efficiency
labels
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Water

The Group’s water usage was mainly from the
production sites and daily business operations in
offices. We regularly emphasize the importance of
conserving water to our staff and require them to
save water. We cut off unnecessary water usage
from the sources. We regularly review the water
usage in different production and office areas, and
turn off the faucet valves in areas without water
demand and stop water supply during non-office
hours. In addition, we promote the usage of water
conserving equipment and explore measures to
recycle water. Sewage in the production process
will be collected and retreated through the recycling
system.

Gasoline and Diesel

The Group’s use of gasoline and diesel were mainly
from its vehicles. We advocate to use the premium
gasoline and diesel. We establish stringent
management system for the use of the Group's
vehicles. It is recommended to use the Group's
vehicles collectively for business activities and to
take the public transportation as much as possible
for non-emergency business activities. Meanwhile,
we purchased low-fuel consumption vehicles if
possible to reduce GHG emission.

Paper

The Group’s paper consumption mainly came from
the production sites and daily business operations in
offices. We fully utilize working online and revising
manuscripts on electronic media. We advocate the
use of double-sided of the paper when printing is
required, and minimize the printing and distribution
of paper documents. Communications between
departments are mainly carried out by emails to
instead of hard-copy documents. At the same time,
we continue to improve the information automation
process, so as to transmit documents and publish
notices on the online network.
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A.3 Environment and Natural Resources

Apart from the resource consumptions and emissions
discussed above, the Group's operations did not have
other direct and material impact on the environment and
natural resources.

A.4 Climate Change

Climate change is one of the most severe challenges
facing the world. Rising temperatures and extreme
weather are threatening our community and business
operations. The Group regularly reviews the impact
of its daily operations on the climate change, and is
committed to adopt environmental friendly operating
measures to reduce GHG emission and the pressure on
global climate change. Meanwhile, we proactively assess
and manage the climate-related risks to our operations
while increasing our resilience to climate change. During
the Reporting Period, the Group identified the following
climate-related risks which may induce operational and
financial disruptions, and included them in the monitoring
list and arranged the corresponding mitigation actions.

Climate Risks
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Mitigation Actions

R 1 B AR R 15 i
Physical Risk Extreme weather caused by climate v Develop emergency response
change may lead to serious natural measures to maintain the normal daily
incidents such as hurricane, flooding business operations.
and wild-fire, which will affect the daily v/ Commit to adopting environmentally
operations. friendly and low-carbon operating
measures to reduce GHG emission and
pressure on global climate change.
BAR R RIEFSIENBHRARAIEEERE v SICHFATEBETEENES
BREEBAXLEEMHWEE SRk EEER
WAE - EMFERTEERKERE V BOEBRERFREREERE R
BEREBHFBAEHERRERELH
J& 71
Transition Risk ~ More stringent policies and reporting v/ Conduct regular reviews and analyses
requirements for corporate of the sustainability reporting
sustainability by various governments requirements of different business
and regulatory authorities. locations.

v Appoint independent sustainability
consultant to enhance ESG disclosure
and data collection.
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Looking forward, the Group will continue to closely
monitor the environmental protection policies
and regulatory trends in Kyrgyzstan, the PRC
and international community. We shall invest in
corresponding environmental protection measures if
necessary, and enhance the Group’s overall performance
in sustainability.

A.5 Emission Target

After communicating with stakeholders and considering
the potential business development in coming years,
the Group has set emission targets of the GHG emission
intensity, hazardous/non-hazardous waste produced
intensity and the intensity of the use of various resources
will be maintained at the level of the Reporting Period
for the next 3-5 years. We will continue to adopt the
measures in this Report to achieve the targets.

B. Social Sustainability

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies and KPIs
on employment, occupational health and safety, development

and training, labour standards, supply chain management,

product responsibility, anti-corruption and community

investment in 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the COVID-19 outbreak continued
to bring along challenges to the businesses and operations of
the Group. We have been closely monitoring the development
of the pandemic and taking necessary measures to protect

our employees and customers. Followings were the anti-

pandemic measures adopted by the Group:

v

Compile and implement the "Plan for Pandemic
Prevention and Control”. Establish an organizational
structure to implement specific pandemic prevention
and control measures. Specify the division of tasks and

formulate emergency plans

Strictly prevent the importation of overseas pandemic
cases and ensure the safety of front-line non-boarding
operators and boarding operators at the Group's
terminals. According to the latest requirements put
forward by the pandemic prevention and control
departments of the governments of different business
locations, the “Special Class Management Plan
for Pandemic Prevention and Control of Ships on
International Voyages” has been formulated

Conduct pandemic prevention knowledge trainings
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Strictly limited various communications such as
documents, items and personnel between production
sites, sales, administration and back offices

Disinfected the production sites and offices. Reported
daily body temperatures and health status of staff and
conducted PCR tests regularly

Provided necessary masks, gloves and sanitizer for those
who must go out to work

Actively contacted the pandemic prevention departments
in different business locations. Strengthened security
work during the special periods and kept abreast of the
latest national pandemic prevention policies. Adjusted the
on-site workflows according to the development of the
pandemic

Employment

Talents are the most valuable asset of the Group and
they are the driving forces for sustainable corporate
development. Thus it is our obligation to provide our staff
a fair, open, safe and healthy working platform.

The Group has appointed human resources specialists
to strictly implement the recruitment, dismissal and
welfare policies in accordance with the requirements of
the related employment laws of Kyrgyzstan and the PRC.
In Kyrgyzstan, we actively advocate the localization policy
and maintain the required local employee employment
ratio to enhance employment opportunities for local
citizens. We strictly prohibit discrimination against local
employees. Once found, there are severe penalties
for the violators. As our employees are from different
countries and races, we notably insist on equality
among all our employees of different nationalities,
ethics, races, genders, religious beliefs and cultural
backgrounds. We also pay special attention to the rights
of female employees and ensure them getting fair
promotion opportunities. We provided allowances during
the International Women’'s Day and organized female
employees to carry out special festival activities.
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The Group is committed to attracting talents to join.
We prepare annual recruitment plans at the beginning
of each year. We strictly comply with the laws in
different business locations and in accordance with the
requirements of the industries to recruit the best talents
from professional graduates or practitioners related
to their positions. All our employees were recruited
in accordance with the principles of openness and
fairness. The Group's trainings, promotions, dismissals
and retirement policies are irrespective of employees’
gender, race, age, disability, family status, marital
status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs, nationality
or any other non-job related factors. We conduct pre-
employment training for new recruits, which mentoring
on-site by experienced staff. In Kyrgyzstan, when signing
an employment contract, Chinese-Russian bilingual staff
handbook for the corresponding post will be provided
and signed to protect the employees’ rights. The Group
strictly follows the local minimum wages requirement
under the laws of different business locations, and pays
the social insurance and provides retirement benefits
for its employees. Employees’ working hours and rest
periods are complied with the laws. In addition to the
statutory paid leaves, there are sick leave, maternity
leave, wedding leave and compassionate leave for the
employees. In order to retain talents, staff performance
evaluations of the Group are carried out on both quarterly
and annual basis to promote those well performed and
high caliber employees. Annual outstanding employees
are selected based on the results of the annual
evaluation. Meanwhile, the Group has established a
clear dismissal system. All dismissals are reasonable,
legal and followed the provisions of the laws in different
business locations and staff handbook.

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of employees
of the Group was 158.
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Male Female

5 e

135 23

Full-time Part-time

X B

144 14

Kyrgyzstan PRC (including Hong Kong)

B HE(EEE)

53 105

<30 years old 31-40 years old 41-50 years old 251 years old

=tmEUT Et+—EZE0+tH MN+—Zf"t5 Et+—mE UL

34 41 43 40

Senior Management Middle Management General Staff

EREEE HPREERE —-®RET

12 14 132
Five employees were resigned during the Reporting REEFRIME BB THASE - A
Period which represented an annual turnover rate of BFERKRER32% -
3.2%.
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RIE - HERERKRS

A CE—FRHAT

2021 7
Male Female
B z
3 2
Kyrgyzstan PRC (including Hong Kong)
EWEE HE(EE®)
3 2

<30 years old

=+EHEUT

31-40 years old
=t-EN+®E

41-50 years old
mt—EHE+H

251 years old

Et—-m&E UL

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in full
compliance with relevant employment laws and
regulations regarding remuneration, dismissal,
recruitment, promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, welfares, etc.
We did not receive any complaints or disputes concerning
employment.

B.2 Occupational Health and Safety

Crude oil exploration and production business is a
technical industry involving many processes with
potential health and occupational safety risks. Thus the
Group pays special attention to employees’ health and
occupational safety, and continuously improving the
operating environment and production procedures to
reduce the use and emission of hazardous substances
and to minimize occupational health risks.
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We firmly adhere to the laws related to occupational
health and safety in different business locations, and
set up safety committee to be mainly responsible for
labour protection, equipment safety, enterprise working
conditions, personnel training and business knowledge
inspection. In Kyrgyzstan, we hired dedicated safety
and environmental protection engineers to carry out
daily supervisions and rectifications in accordance with
the local laws, and to report safety performance of the
Group in every quarter. The person-in-charge of the
production and engineering departments conduct daily
inspections in particular focusing on high risk locations,
eliminating hidden safety hazards, and conducting
immediate on-site safety educations and rectifications.
We provide protection equipment for dangerous jobs
and conduct regular safety inspections for production
sites. The Group established disaster response code to
all employees with clear safety process guidelines and
contingency measures in response to oil leakages. We
also closely monitor oil pipelines and equipment through
a combination of on-site regular patrols and random
inspections.

The Group’s businesses are susceptible to fires and
thus formulated various fire emergency measures.
Smoking and igniting fire in the production sites are
strictly prohibited. Electricity danger signs are put
in place to remind employees to pay attention to fire
safety. We require our staff to keep the working places
clean, tidy, smoke-free, non-toxic, non-hazardous,
healthy and safe. The Group also unifies the signs of
dangerous goods and standardizes the use and storage
of flammable and explosive materials. We placed escape
route maps in conspicuous places in our working places
and established a person-in-charge system. Those
places are equipped with emergency medical kits and
firefighting equipment. It is strictly forbidden to occupy
emergency exits by any items. There are regularly
inspections for fire protection facilities to ensure they are
not damaged or expired. Fire drills are also arranged
periodically. The Group agreed with the fire brigade in
different business locations to deal with the emergency
situations together.
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The Group provides work clothes, shoes and safety
helmets to every front-line production staff. They are
also equipped with fire extinguishers to ensure safety.
In order to further protect the health of our employees,
they are required to provide medical proofs before on
board and they will undergo physical examinations every
year. If any abnormal situation is found, appropriate work
arrangements and medical follow-ups will be made. Our
staff are also protected by the insurance purchased by
the Group. We conduct quarterly safety and occupational
health trainings for our employees to enhance their
awareness of safety and health. The Human Resources
Department arranges regular meetings with employees
to help dispatch work stress and takes care of their
mental health. In the event of a fatal accident, the
Group will provide immediate assistances to the injured
employee and the safety committee will investigate each
accident to prevent reoccurrence of similar incident.

During the past three years, there was no work-related
fatalities and loss of working days due to work injury for
the Group. We did not in violate of any relevant laws and
regulations regarding occupational health and safety.

B.3 Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of on-the-job
training for the development of its employees. Learning
new knowledge and skills for our staff can enhance
our competitiveness. Our training system consists of
three parts: pre-job training for new employees, on-
the-job training and self-improvement training for
existing employees. Human Resources Department
is responsible for enhancing the employees’ on-the-
job skills and passing the assessments of professional
authorities of different business locations. Employees
must obtained relevant professional qualifications before
on board or they have obtained the vocational training
certificates issued in each business location. The Group
provides examination leave to encourage employees
to study or obtain professional qualifications. We are
fully responsible for the internal training costs and
partially responsible for those external training costs,
which would help to accomplish our business needs and
personal development.
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B -

Table 7: Training Hours of Employees by Ft —E—FEETH
Category in 2021 Bl & 7 79 25 3l B &7
Senior Middle
Management Management General Staff Total
BREEE THREEE -RET &t
Number of Training Hours 5P B R (/B 97 134 2,251 2,482
Number of Employees BET#H 12 14 132 158
Average Training Hours per ~ &% 8 TF 53
Employee i (/)N EF) 8.1 9.6 171 15.7
Male Female
£ e
Number of Training Hours 1% 91 B ) (/)N Bp) 2092 390
Number of Employees BTHHE 135 23
Average Training Hours per Employee &4 8 T ¥ 3915 5 B5 8 (/)N B) 155 17.0
B.4 Labour Standards B.4 % T %A
The Group is fully aware that child and forced labour AEBRDEHEET KA

HERERRE

During the Reporting Period, the Group arranged all
its staff to participate the quarterly safety trainings and
each department arranged its quarterly departmental
business trainings. We provided a total of 2,482 hours of
training for the entire staff, which represented an average

of 15.7 hours of training per employee.
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violate basic human rights and thus strictly abides the

lawful employment in each business location. During

the recruitment process, we verify the job applicants’

personal identification documents including identification

cards, academic certificates, previous work records,

military service certificates, medical reports and etc.,

to ensure their ages and nationalities are correct.

Meanwhile, we offer vacations and alternative leaves in

accordance with the laws of each business location. For
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any overtime works during the peak season, we provide
vacations for overtime workers in accordance with the
laws of each business location to ensure sufficient rest
of our staff. The Group will issue warnings and even
dismissal if there is any violation of laws and regulations

related to child and forced labour.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not in
violation of any laws and regulations related to the
prevention of child and forced labour.
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B.5 Supply Chain Management

In light of the Group’s strong support for sustainability,
we also expect our suppliers to fulfill their social
responsibilities and preferably select those suppliers
which are the most environmental friendly and socially
responsible. It is our responsibility to monitor the
sustainability performance of the entire supply chain.

We have formulated the "Administrative Measures
for Bidding” and all our tenders are conducted in
open manner. Suppliers are given the opportunities
to participate in fair and transparent biddings. A
tender committee was formed to strictly implement
our transparent bidding policy and is responsible for
assessing the bidders and their proposals. All selected
bidders will be publicly announced. Explicit obligations of
the suppliers are stated in the contracts with guarantee
deposits to constraint their contractual obligations.
We conducted comprehensive evaluations and ranking
for all potential suppliers including their pricings,
services, financials, environment protection awareness,
occupational health and safety and loyalty. During the
procurement process, we are required to approach at
least three potential suppliers. Selected suppliers are
required to pay attention to the environmental risks
that may arise in their operations and manufacturing
processes. The Group takes all measures to avoid
conflicts of interests and prevents bribery in the
procurement process. We strictly require our suppliers
to declare their interests to prevent transfer of benefits
and corruption. The Group insists on selecting reputable
suppliers to ensure service quality. An independent
supervisory institute is appointed to carry out annual
inspection on items such as safety, environmental
protection and labour protection for each supplier. We
conduct supplier interviews based on the findings of
the supervisory institute and requested the suppliers to
rectify and fulfill their obligations. Warnings will be given
to suppliers who failed to comply.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had 143
suppliers, of which 11 from Kyrgyzstan and 132 from the
PRC.

RIE - HERERKRS

BSHERERE

AEBRNIXFHAHEER B
BRI TR IR R API A B R BE R
BETHEEME  BEREERR
REZALSEENHER I
ERERBHRERNAURSERREA

3

BABIE TCRIERE R IDE) -
ERSHEBARPEAET
RTHEBAFERABRFNSHE
e BMKITHEZES
BEATERNARERER - ¥
SR B MR ETRE > H
FHHERETEREMR AE
EERTHABHKEHOES A
RESHEOARTEEBRNERE
%o R HBEEHREEETE
EEE - BRRAMNERRES
hoRBEE - MBEEN  RE
REER  BEERERZ2REH
BEHNER - EREBES - FH
PHREL_@ABEHRERES -
ABHHEFFTFEIEEZER
BERREPARELANARRE
R\ o 7N SR B R ER — YD HE Bt
RERBEEPHANZHRR
BrEERERE 1T/ o TAPIERAS B R
EEHRHAE LB S x
£ AEEBRSEEZEEEERD
HEn ABERREEE XX
ABYEERBHE —RHER
BERFELZE  RR - SHRE
FHAETRE - RMEHER
EaLMNERETHERD
H o WERKETER N ETHRE
&% HTABATATTHH
ERHELES -

RIESREAR - ANEE KB43R E
EEAE EFNEXKXETHS
B 12K KEFH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
FERE2021

79



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HEREREE

B.6 Product Responsibility B6EmE

The Group strongly believes on maintaining product AEERELERBENNE
quality to create maximum values for our customers B THRARMNTFAIERK
and to earn their trusts and supports. To ensure the BE BRRZFPNGEEEXR -
Group's product quality complying with the laws of BMHEERE S RUNE -
different business locations, we have formulated policies REMNEREER S KEN
regarding product acceptance. The Group regularly EEED o REEE Y E M
assesses its product quality and timely checks and BR2ETRN  RNERMER -
prevents deficiencies in advance. For the products TERKRA - HAFEEENE
that do not meet the standard, we will evaluate with m RMERERTHEH U
the experts and put those unqualified products into TERNEREKERAND &
written content for improvement in future. We provide EZEmEBEE - BMARHEEIR
work process and product knowledge trainings to our HIERBMEmMBHFI - %
sales representatives. We never made false publicity TRERBERSE  FIEHI
for our products as all external product publicities EmEEATESEEEEHE
should be approved by the management before being & - FAIEHNEEAMD o B - ARE
released. Meanwhile, the Group exchanges information EtglHEMmnmishAEELR
and negotiates issues with other market participants S5 HBEEE ARRERY
to facilitate the establishment and maintenance of a RgEEREFOTHND TR
healthy and orderly market as well as a fair competition FHIRE -

environment.

Professional and reliable services are also reflected in FEASENREEBRETREN
the protection of intellectual property rights. The Group BEEL AEEERVRER
has established a management system for handling NMEBRMBEENER RS
patent affairs and intellectual property rights, including BREFEFMZRMEBE -  NEBE
patent acceptances and applications. In daily operations, EEBREYS  BREHRIERE
the Group refuses to provide or use any products or o] 32 [ hiR 2 3l S0 8 25 R Y 2 o 3k
services that violate copyright or intellectual property RS - BMEGESEERE®R -
rights. All of the software and information used are with FrEERANRGMEEAARS
legal licenses and the Group only procures genuine JEFEFH] o

products.

The Group emphasises the importance in protecting the rEEERRERERARERT
privacy of its customers and suppliers. Data could be BRAL o BRI SR AER MM
only be collected and used by the supplier and customer ERLEFERAP - EREE
management departments. Personal data collection Al EFEERGEHEBLRER
consent must be obtained before collecting data from WEAZEHKERZER  BH
suppliers and customers. The consent clearly states the WERFIAERKENER - M
purposes of data collection and the data collected will WS B BB E R AIEE T SR
only be used for the purposes for which it was originally MEMAZ R EZRES
collected. We also often remind our staff regarding the ITAREEHEHERNER -2
Group's requirements for data management and require RKEIRZBREHE  BRHLER
them to sign confidentiality agreements. Apart from SEERINRIN - TRBH R
prevention of the information leakage of the Group, we REFPEMBEIEREM -

prohibit the improper uses of supplier and customer
information.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate
any laws and regulations regarding the product
responsibility, intellectual property rights and data
privacy. We also have no products sold being recalled
and received complaints.

B.7 Anti-Corruption

The Group believes that integrity business operation is
the foundation of corporate social responsibility, which
is also the cornerstone for maintaining the corporate
competitive advantage. The Group is committed to
achieving high integrity and accountability, and strictly
complies with all laws related to anti-corruption and
anti-bribery in different business locations. We require
employees to sign the “Integrity Practice Commitment”,
which prohibits them in participation of any corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering activities.
It is strictly forbidden for our staff to accept any gifts
from suppliers or customers. We also provide regular
business ethic and anti-corruption trainings to our
staff, and provide them with a declaration of interest for
accepting gifts. Disciplinary violations will be stopped and
handled immediately in case of any violations. Employees
who violate the law will be handed over to the judicial
authorities. During the Reporting Period, the Group
arranged 64 hours of trainings to the staff and directors
in relation to anti-corruption. In addition, the Group’s
anti-corruption policy was introduced to suppliers before
signing contracts and suppliers are required to sign the
“Bidding Integrity Agreement”.

There are independent internal audit department and
internal audit regime for the Group. Internal auditor is
responsible for the Group’s internal audit supervision
and the establishment of the internal control system.
Based on the results of internal audits, management will
organize regular meetings to implement relevant works
and prevent the risks of corruption. In addition, the Group
has appointed an independent third-party auditor with
international qualifications to conduct financial audits
twice a year to reduce operating risks and strengthen
anti-corruption management.
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The Group encourages reporting of misconduct.
Whistleblowers may report any suspected misconducts
to the audit committee of the Group through designated
email-box. The audit committee will investigate any
suspicious or illegal acts to protect the interests of the
Group. Investigations are handled confidentially and
management will take corrective actions to resolve
the proven frauds. The audit committee will report the
misconduct events at least once a year to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive
any corruption lawsuits against the Group or its
employees. Meanwhile, the Group and its employees
were not in violation of any of the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

B.8 Community Investment

The Group endeavors to community building. We leverage
our resources to contribute to the society and assist
each business location to become a cohesive and caring
society. We pay special attention to fostering employees’
awareness of social responsibility and encourage them to
voluntary participate in charity events, which allow them
integrating with local communities.

In Kyrgyzstan, we are the member of the Kyrgyzstan
Mining Association and were the sponsor the Kyrgyzstan
Petroleum Workers' Festival. In order to promote the
employment, apart from offering working opportunities
to local residents, the Group cooperated with local
authorities to provide Mandarin introductory courses to
local residents. In addition, we provided free Lianhua
Qingwen Jiaonang and other pandemic prevention
supplies to local residents.
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Report Disclosure Index Hw®EWEERS
Page
'R
A. Environmental
AR5
Aspect Al: General Disclosure
Emissions
EBEA: #Hy —BwE
Information on:
(a]  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERMABERBHNR RKEIHHOBES AEMNETEEYHN 63-64
EEEN:
() BE:R
b) ETFTHBETABEAZENHBERZRROINEHR -
KPI AT The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
R AMIERAL BEMMER A REE - 64
KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
MREMERAM2 BER@EEDREREZ (BEDEEREHERE (A 65
MR R(ER) BERE(MNSEEEN - BAR
Meat &)
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
RBENEIRAS MELEEREMRECAMFE)L(MER EZE 65
(MABESEML  §ERKBAHE) -
KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
MREWERANL FEEETEEVEEUMARE) R(MER) ZE 66
(MMABESEN BERKMEAE) -
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s] set and steps taken to
achieve them.
B AEDIERAIS MM ZMBERERRER SEDELBBZEMRR 71
KPIAl1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

MRENMIBERAN HABREEELEZTEEYMN R RBEMAEIZ  65-64/7
WREESERAENEEEEMEIRAFE -
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Page
BR
Aspect A2: Useof  General Disclosure
Resources
BEA2: ERER —KREE
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.
BERERER(BIEEIR KK EMRME) B BUR - 67-69

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.q.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s] and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
MBREBIRZEA2 RELESNEER SBEERME - |3oh) 67
BEEUTETRSFAREIREE(MANSGEESE
- BERBEFTHE) -

KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FASEMIERAZ2 BRKERERE (WMUBEESEN - BEAREH) 67
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
FRBEMIERALS MM IHNERERMZBERERREINELAR 71
PRERERH) 2 B -
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
RSB IERAZL fIMSKBUB AR LRI BERME - A RETE 69
RAAKMEEBEREAEIELARARIMOTRE -
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products
(in tonnes] and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
MRERIERAZS HEKAMABEMHNAE(UEAE) R(ER) 67
HEEBMEE -
Aspect A3: The General Disclosure
Environment and
Natural Resources
JEHA3: —RIE
RERRRER Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources.

HMEZETAHRBERRRERENEAZENBE - 70
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

FARENIEZAS] HAEBEHHRRERRAERNEATEREH 70
NEEEHTENTH -
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Page
BR
Aspect A4: Climate General Disclosure
Change
BEAL: RIREL —REE
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
TEHRRE EH —REBELREREYER 70

B. Social
B.#g

KPI A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

FRAEMERALL REEKRARSEHETAELEZENERRAKRA 70
WEE REHTH -

Employment and Labour Practices

EBREREIER
Aspect B1:
Employment

EmEB1:1EfE

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(a]  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRAFMLFE BRELRET TERE RY FERS  Zlt- 72-75
B4R DA Ko EL At 135 48 1 4R A &9
() BEE:R
b) ETHETABEAZENHBERZLRINEH -
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type [(for
example, full- or parttime), age group and geographical
region.
BREMIEIEBIY RS - BEBN(MEBEFRR)  FRAH &t 74
BEESWEBRAR -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.
MR EMIEREB2 RMER  FRENRBEESHEERKLE - 75
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Page
BR
Aspect B2: Health  General Disclosure
and Safety
EBmB2: — R EE
REEZR Information on:
(a]  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
FRRHZE2TEREMERERCBRELBEN: 75-77
(&) BE: K
b) ETHETABEAZENHBZEZRRINER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in
each of the past three years including the reporting year.
A MIEREB2] BE-FERERFE)EFAITHNABEL 77
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
FABEAA N IE1EB22 HITBBRATIEAS 77
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
FARRAE B IRB23 MR B ERER T 28 - U RBEHRT 75-77
REERTE -
Aspect B3: General Disclosure
Development and
Training
EmEB3: — AR EE
BRRIEI Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.
EHARNEERTIEREMNANB L RENBE - HAEIES - 77-78
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
FASEAEAIEIER3 RMUFIREEEN(NSAERE dREEE)E 78
DHXIEEBDL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
FASEMIEEB32 RMERIREEBERE D  BREEEKZINFH 78
i5S a
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Page
BR
Aspect B4: Labour General Disclosure
Standards
BEBL: ZETHEA —KRHEE
Information on:
(a]  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRAILETHRHISETH: 78
(&) HE: &
b ETHETABERZENHBEIEZRRONER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
RASEMIRIRBL] Wl HEENEEABRETREHET- 78
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.
FASRE I RBL WA AR RERBREERABBAMRIN S 78
B e
Operating
Practices
EEEM
Aspect B5: General Disclosure
Supply Chain
Management
fE HBS : —RIWE 79
HEEEE
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENREREERARBRER -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
A MIEIRBS BRI oM HEEREE - 79
KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
FASEAENIE1EB02 WA EHERAKERNED  AERNTEREIEN R 79
HEHHE  AREBEATRERTE -
KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
FARENIEEBSS WABEANEEREERANRERTEARY 79
BO - U RBRARTRERTA -
KPI Bb5.4 Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
FASRAEMIEIEBEL MM EREHENRFEREZARRER MRENE 79
Bl ARMEEATRERTA -
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Page
BR
Aspect Bé6: Product  General Disclosure
Responsibility
BEBs:EmEME —KRHEE
Information on:
(a]  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
ERMREERVNRENREREZE  BS BRLELEBEEENALM 80-81
HITEH
() EE:K
b ETHBETABEAZENHBEZRRINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
FREMIEEB) EEACEXEMEH PR 2 BREEEMMAR 81
W B D -
KPIB6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
FAREMIERBL2 EEHMNERERBORFHEBEURES X - 81
KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
FABEMIEIRB6] R EEERRENZERTENED - 80
KPI Bé.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures
FBAENIEIRBL W B ERTBIEREM@KIEF 80
KPIB6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
FABAEMIEREBLS HMHEBEEEHNRERALBEHE  URBBERTR 80
ERE -
Aspect B7: General Disclosure
Anticorruption
BEB7: R&ES —MRHE
Information on:
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
ERAMLEE R RFEREREN: 81-82
(@ BER: K
b BITEETABEAZENHBZZLRRINER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
FARAEMERBL RERPAAHETAXHEHRERLIECEENES 82

RAAEFHEE RFRER -
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BR
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
FASRAE IR IRRT2 M BIER R BEREF  URBERAATRERT 81-82
e
KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
B NIERBTS MmN EERETRHNREFHEI - 81
Community
HE
Aspect BS: General Disclosure
Community
Investment
EEB8: HERE —MHE
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BHNHR2ERTREEMEHETENBREEXBEDH G ERLR 82
MEE R R o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).
MSEMIEIRBS] HIERER(MHE REFHE BIFR @& 82
B X -85)-
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.
RSB NIEREBS. AR IBBMHAE RS ERKRE) - 82
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY
LIMITED
lincorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Huarong Energy Company Limited (the "Company”] and
its subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) set out on pages 94 to 213,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to
the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and whether the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Because of the significance of the matters described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a deficit of
RMB?7,893,114,000 and the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by RMB6,988,267,000. The Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents of RMB23,883,000 as at 31 December 2021.

On 9 October 2018, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of the core assets and liabilities
of shipbuilding, offshore engineering, engineering machinery and
marine engine building segments (the "Shipbuilding Business”,
together with the holding company of the Shipbuilding Business
referred to as the "Disposal Group”) with an independent third
party. Pursuant to certain supplemental agreements signed with
Unique Orient Limited (the "Purchaser”), an independent third
party, the sale shares of Able Diligent Limited, the holding company
of the Disposal Group, was transferred to the Purchaser on 10
March 2019. As at 31 December 2021, financial guarantees provided
by the Company to the banks and lenders of the Disposal Group,
inclusive of principals and interest, amounted to RMB4,709,049,000.
The Group has considered the impact and recognised financial
guarantee contract of the same amount as at 31 December 2021.
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During the year, the Group’s operation was focused primarily on
the energy exploration and production segment (the "Energy
Business’), and oil storage and trading segment [the "0Oil Storage
Business”) together with the corporate headquarters referred
to as (the "Remaining Group’), the development of which has
however been limited due to market conditions and availability
of funds for investing in exploration and drilling of wells. As at
31 December 2021, borrowings of the Group (the “Borrowings
of Remaining Group”), amounted to RMB3,580,089,000, out of
which RMB597,969,000 were overdue. As at 31 December 2021,
overdue interest payables of the Remaining Group amounted to
RMB431,040,000. Certain borrowings of the Remaining Group
contain cross-default terms, causing Borrowings of Remaining
Group of RMB8,618,000 as at 31 December 2021 to become
immediately repayable. The Remaining Group had cash and cash
equivalents of RMB23,883,000 as at 31 December 2021.

These conditions, together with others described in Note 2.1(b] to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position,
to refinance its operations and to restructure its debts which are
set out in Note 2.1(b] to the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome
of these measures, which are subject to material uncertainties,
including (i) whether the Group is able to obtain the agreement
from the banks and lenders to release or discharge the Company’s
guarantees for the borrowings owed by the Disposal Group; |iil
whether the Group is able to convince the banks and lenders not
to demand for repayment of the outstanding loans of the Disposal
Group before the completion of the release of the Company’'s
guarantees; (i) whether the Group is able to negotiate with all
existing promissory note holders to make further arrangements
including extension of the maturity dates; (iv] whether the Group is
able to negotiate with the relevant financial institution and lender
for the renewal or extension for repayment for the borrowings;
(v) whether the Group is able to obtain waivers from the relevant
promissory note holders for the due payment in relation to those
notes that have cross-default terms and extend the repayment
dates when they fall due; (vi) whether the Group can successfully
implement a business plan for its Energy Business and Oil Storage
Business to generate cash inflows; and (vii) whether the Group can
obtain additional sources of financing, including those to finance the
Energy Business and draw down from the various facilities made
available to the Group by entities controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong
and a close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong, during the year
as and when needed.
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Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities. The effect of these adjustments has
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Responsibilities of Directors and
Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

Chung Wai Chuen, Alfred
Practising Certificate Number: P05444

B M AR

P BT L R AR A B RS
WREAENWEME

BZMAEERREREBSTHEREN & &
SENGFEAVBBRRETEN  LHAEXK
BEHE - HMER BTUERER)R
TR ARREREEMBER o A
TERABRENABTREMEMALTAE L
FARERMEE - A HRABREEHR

BERTERNER —HMKENEER
ﬁﬁﬂi EEBRADMEENETBREAR
ZEGAVBBRRNEABEREHER -

REERERENZEGNEXEFEN
BETENER TR 'J(f Bl BB &
SE YEEITTAFHEMERET -

BEAE(EREHGERFERAA
ZES ]

&% —E-—F#=/B=+/\H
EEr
HMEBERE - PO5LLL

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
FERE2021

93



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RS B IR R 3R

As at 31 December 2021 R-E - —F+-F=1+—H

2021 2020
—E=-—F —E_EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ihg=2 AR T ARBFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - REREE 6 363,294 258,913
Right-of-use assets EREEE 7 213,468 -
Intangible assets mEEE 8 694,588 714,757
Goodwill s 8 33,347 -
Prepayments TE SR8 11(b) 13,143 —
1,317,840 973,670
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 10 4,305 818
Trade receivables JR& W BR R 11(a) 11,924 1,005
Other receivables and prepayments B JEWRIE RN FHIE  11(b) 23,757 14,376
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRTEEBEY 12 23,883 16,064
63,869 32,263
Total assets HWEE 1,381,709 1,005,933
DEFICIT & At
Capital and reserves attributableto ZQATEZFEHA
the Company’s equity holders EBhEERREE
Ordinary shares LR 13 2,021,534 2,021,534
Convertible preference shares A B3R (EB kR 13 3,100,000 3,100,000
Share premium f& 5 % & 13 8,374,605 8,374,605
Other reserves HAib 15 85,449 103,199
Accumulated losses . (21,650,940) (21,465,874)
(8,069,352) (7,866,536)
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR = 176,238 (32,530)
Total deficit Al (7,893,114) (7,899,066)

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

As at 31 December 2021 R Z-—&+-fA=+—H

2021 2020
—EC-—F —EZFTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 AR® T ARBETFTT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Borrowings e 17 2,162,674 1,449,322
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEEE 18 60,013 —
2,222,687 1,449,322
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables FE S BE X K HoAh B~ 2018 16 925,672 966,976
Borrowings f& & 17 1,617,415 1,943,569
Financial guarantee contracts B IERE L 30 4,709,049 4,545,132
7,052,136 7,455,677
Total liabilities BaeE 9,274,823 8,904,999
Total deficit and liabilities wWEMREE 1,381,709 1,005,933

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 213 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2022 and signed on

its behalf by

Chen Qiang
BR 38
Director

EFE

Hong Liang

g 2
Director

EFE

VA b #R& BF 5 R 0 3R R B B Y B R — 6 2

F,{a o

FUR2BEMREAMBRRLCEFTE R
T _FZA-+NBH#ETHTIAL

RREFEETE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
eETHEWRER

Year Ended 31 December 2021 B2 - E-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR®BT T AR¥EFTT
Revenue U %% 5 316,774 34,800
Cost of sales i & AR 19 (263,698) (41,227)
Gross profit/(loss) EFHE(EE) 53,076 (6,427)
Other income H e A 272 —
Selling and marketing expenses 85 & M T 5 1 B R X 19 (2,654) (14)
General and administrative expenses — & 7T & A 19 (28,852) (48,473)
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ #1% « 5 & & H&
and equipment B B R 6 - (296,559)
Impairment loss on intangible assets 4& 2 & & i (B /&5 18 8 - (864,374)
Other gains — net Hph o am — 55 21 252 16,393
Operating profit/(loss) e FIE (EE) 22,094 (1,199,454)
Finance income Bh & W A 22 73,965 36,641
Finance costs BE KA 22 (103,296) (72,233)
Finance costs — net BEKA - FHE 22 (29,331) (35,592)
Change in provision for financial VBERGHNEES
guarantee contracts 30 (163,917) 2,000,011
(Loss)/profit before income tax RETSBLAT (B18),FE (171,154) 764,965
Income tax expense ST X 23 (5,998) (8)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(E8)/FE (177,152) 764,957
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE1E (B8, MR8
Equity holders of the Company RAmERTFAA (185,066) 782,599
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR & 7,914 (17,642)
(177,152) 764,957

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEHEWER

Year Ended 31 December 201 B ZE B -—F+_A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®BT T AR¥EFTT
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (&8 FlHE (177,152) 764,957
Other comprehensive loss for the FEHMEZHEER:
year:
ltems that may be reclassified to AREFTHEEERZ
profit or loss HH
— Exchange difference on —REBINEEELER
translation of foreign I 5 =58
operations (16,826) (100,518)
Other comprehensive loss forthe KBRBEFEHME2EER
year, net of tax (16,826) (100,518)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2ME(EE) WH
for the year waE (193,978) 664,439
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  JE{E 2@ (E1E), W
attributable to: e
Equity holders of the Company RARRERFTEA (202,816) 679,987
Non-controlling interests SE 15 AR #E 2R 8,838 (15,548
(193,978) 664,439
2021 2020
—E=-—F —T-THF
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
(Loss)/earning per share R (ER) BT
— Basic/diluted —BAR 27 (0.02) 0.07

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

E\.,—a o

NEHFaEHbERERBERNE—H2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERZEER

Year Ended 31 December 2021 B2 - E-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRBERTARSE
Convertible Non-
Ordinary  preference Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
shares shares  premium  reserves losses Total interests Deficit

&R
EER Bik RORE HtBE 2HER a4 FERER BE4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR AR¥Tn ARWTR ARETR ARETn AR¥TR
(Note13] ~ [Note13) ~ [Note13)  [Note 5]
(WE3) (R (FE3) (W)

Balance at 1 January 2021 R-E--f
-A-BR&ESH 2,021,534 300,000 8,374,605 103,199 (21,665,874)  (7,866,536) (32530)  (7,899,066)

(Loss)fprofit for the year 18)/ %% - - - — (1850080 (185,066) M6 (171152)
Other comprehensive (loss/income ﬁ%@ 8/l ﬁ
Exchange difference on translation of #8850 & BME K

foreign operations EE - - - (17,750) - (17,750) 924 (16,826)
Total comprehensive (lossfincome  £E2MH

for the year (F8)/ hadE - - - (177500 (1850680 (202,816) 8838 (193978

Non-controlling iterests on WERBRAMEER
acquisition of subsidiary [Note2] %% (Hf 5 25) - - - - - - 199930 199,930

&h 202153 3,100,000 8,374,606 85,449 (21,650,940 (8,069,352 176,238  (7,893,114]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

Year Ended 31 December 201 B ZE B -—F+_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KRR RERAAES

Convertible Non-
Ordinary preference Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
shares shares  premium  reserves losses Total interests Deficit
g
LER Bk BROEE EtEE ZAER i EFPREE 4B
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note 13 Noteld)  Notel3]  (Note 13)
(eE3)  (WsE3)  (WsE3) (Bss)
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-E-EE
-A-BR&ESH 202158 3100000 8374605 WINAT (22253809 (8546523 (16,982 (8,563505)
Profit/loss for the year FEFE/ (BE) - - - - TR 859 (17662 76957
Other comprehensive income/(loss] £t 2 E Wz /
(B#)
Exchange difference on translationof /M EEME R
foreign operations g - - - 02612 - (102812 2006 (100518
Total comprehensive income/(loss) B2
for the year b/ (B8)48 - - -l TR2AM eTBT  (195M8)  esh4%d
Transactions with equity holdersin RS AEEA 2 E%
their capacity as owners FEANR S
Lapse of employee share options B EZREX M - - - (.33 5,33 - - -
Total transactions with equity HEAREAZER
. hodersinthee opacyssowners SEANZBAR R T L L B N S I -
Balance at 31 December 2020 it e 23
tZA=t-AH
g8 200153 3100000 8374600 103199 (21465874)  (7866,536) (32530) (7,899,066
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be A LG ER S REEBEWMH T2
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

Year Ended 31 December 2021 B2 - E-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

2021 2020
= —E_FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & ARBT T ARBF T
Cash flows from operating REKLETBHNEESR
activities
Cash generated from/[used in) reEms/ AR
operations 29 34,008 (2,573)
Interest paid =X PURS) (1,866) (6,443)
Income taxes paid ERRED (3,783) -
Net cash generated from /(used in) & & EE T8, (AT )
operating activites 1 ReF®@® 28359 (9,016
Cash flows from investing REBRETHNEESR
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEWX BMELRE
equipment (10,823) (13,743)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant H&E¥ % - B E &
equipment 8 P15 SR 279 1,614
Net cash inflow from acquisition of 2R B UK B K B 2~ TE’\]L@@
subsidiary mAFER 25 159 —
Net cash used in investing RETEBFAESTE
activities ... Loy 12.129)
Cash flows from financing REBMETHNRESR
activities
Proceeds from other borrowings H A {85 R B RTS8
and advances 40,806 215,139
Repayment of other borrowings BEHMER (50,758) (96,207)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEX — (124,029)
Net cash used in financing activities B & EEFTAE € F 5 (9,952) (5,097)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRELEEY
and cash equivalents i, G A) 5 8,022 (26,242)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRELEREFEY
beginning of the year 16,064 42,851
Exchange difference on cash and RehkBReEEDH
cash equivalents fEHER (203) (545)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY
at end of the year 12 23,883 16,064

EHREREREHEENME—H#2

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in A E 4R
conjunction with the accompanying notes. B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

China Huarong Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 February 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. Its registered address is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statement.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("'RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as modified by the accounting
policies stated below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Except as described below, the accounting policies
adopted are consistent with all the year's presented
rules unless otherwise stated.

aRE B IS R R M R

—RER
FEEZEREKROEBERQATERA
ADR-_ZTE—ZTFE_A-HREHS
HERRVEEREHBHMK L A
MEERAGE - ARRAMEMM U A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands °

ARRABBREERRAR - MBRFE
ZEBHNGE M HRKRM IS -

BIERTTRIEA » BRIGRE M RRIA
ARSI -

FTESHBE
RAUZEGRAUERRSEANTE
SEHBERIINWOT - BRIERBIEHA -
BEREBREERERRIMENNMAE
FE o

21 B E %
la) &HEH
RKRABGFEPBEHRER TIIZH
BB 7 3R 45 22 Bl ([ B BR B 7%
WEERDRE - Z4A 9
BHRRTIIZE S K AELR
2 MR T Tl ® s R
BT VE A 3 BB BR AN o

2 TR R B 75 95 6 R R
GANBRABEEALT
EAGIHEE - HRERED
ERAARENTHRE
B IR 1B -

B Nt & SN BRIE S ITR]
B RN ESRERES
BEFEERMEHRMAA 5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
[b] Going concern basis

2 FESFHEEw

2.1 B E % (@)
[b) FFEREHE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a
deficit of RMB7,893,114,000 (31 December
2020: RMB7,899,066,000) and the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB6,988,267,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB7,423,414,000). The Group maintained
cash and cash equivalents of RMB23,883,000
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB16,064,000).

On 9 October 2018, the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with
Unique Orient Limited (the "Purchaser’), an
independent third party, to dispose of the core
assets and liabilities of the Shipbuilding Business
(the "Disposal Group”) at a consideration of HKD1
(the “Transaction”). There were certain conditions
precedent pursuant to the Transaction, which
included, but not limited to, the successful issuance
of certain convertible preference Shares ("CPS”)
to certain bank creditors of the subsidiaries of the
Disposal Group, and the release or discharge of the
relevant guarantees provided by the Company in
respect of the debts of the Shipbuilding Business
(the "Relevant Guarantees”). The conditional sale
and purchase agreement and the issuance of CPS
were approved by the shareholders of the Company
and CPS were issued in December 2018.

102 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

2 FESFHEEw

21 R E Em)
{b} .'}"‘T/lﬁn(«’éég‘g(%g)

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b] Going concern basis (Continued)

On 3 March 2019, supplemental agreements were
signed with the Purchaser, such that (1) the transfer
of the sale shares of Able Diligent Limited, the
holding company of the Disposal Group, to the
Purchaser shall take place on or before 31 August
2019; (2] the Purchaser agreed to procure the
release or discharge of the Relevant Guarantees;
and (3) the Purchaser agreed to execute a share
charge over the sale shares in favour of the
Company. On 10 March 2019, the Group transferred
the sale shares of Able Diligent Limited to the
Purchaser.

On 30 October 2019, a supplemental agreement
was signed with the Purchaser, such that the
share charge over the sale shares in favour of the
Company executed by the Purchaser was replaced
by a deed of indemnity provided by the Purchaser.

As at 31 December 2021, financial guarantees
provided by the Company to the banks and lenders
of the Disposal Group, inclusive of principals and
interest, amounted to RMB4,709,049,000. The Group
has considered and recognised the corresponding
impact of such financial guarantee contracts as at
31 December 2021.

R-ZZT-NE=ZA=H &
BENRFMAHE A
(1) & & B 3% & 2 & Able
Diligent Limited @ & 77 8 %
WERD BRZT—NF
NAB=+—BZA#ET:
(2)E 77 @ B 18 B % B ok iR B
ﬁﬁfﬁ}?%'&m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁu
RRAFIREm AREERD
J¢Hx1"f£#ﬁ cHRZE—AN
F=ZA+H AEEKAble
Diligent Limited A 38 & B& 17
BETER -

Z-hEF+A=+8"
EﬁiﬁﬁﬂAﬂT%ﬁﬁTﬁJuﬁ -Vl
NARBI /X AR EHER
eI RO ERBE TR
BOBERERE -

E/\\_s_*iJr A=+—
$ jr—lfﬁﬂ'&ﬂjmx
Eﬂ%?x/\%@tﬂ’qﬂﬁ%%
REEAEEAEIAAR
#4,709,049,0007C - AEEE
EETR_ZT_—F+_A
:JF*EIEE* BB ER
BRMEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b] Going concern basis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB3,580,089,000, out of which
RMB597,969,000 were overdue, while borrowings
of the Group amounting to RMB8,618,000 contained
cross-default terms as at 31 December 2021 and
became immediately repayable. Total overdue
interest payables of the Group amounted to
RMB431,040,000. These borrowings are further
explained below:

() The Group had promissory notes with
an aggregated principal amount of
RMB?2,209,229,000 outstanding as at 31
December 2021, out of which approximately
RMB235,947,000 and RMB13,037,000 had been
overdue since 2020 and 2021 respectively. The
outstanding promissory notes amounting to
RMB8,618,000 became immediately repayable
pursuant to the cross-default terms under the
relevant loan agreements.

(i) The Group had other borrowings of
with an aggregated principal amount of
RMB1,064,434,000 outstanding as at 31
December 2021, out of which approximately
RMB42,559,000 had been overdue since 2020;
and

(i) The Group had secured borrowing of
RMB306,426,000 which was overdue in
accordance with the repayment date of
the agreement as at 31 December 2021.
The borrowing has been transferred to an
independent financial institution in December
2021.
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2 FESFHEEw

21 REEE @)
(b] 7B EHE (&)

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—
H AEBEERAEARE
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NEE R A R 18,618,000
TEeERXXEHNGER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

21 REEE @)

(b] Going concern basis (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties, which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of
the Company have, during the Year and up to the
date of the approval of these consolidated financial
statements, taken the following measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the
financial position of the Group, to refinance its
operation and to restructure its debts:

i) The Group has been actively negotiating
with the relevant banks and lenders of the
Disposal Group to release or discharge the
Relevant Guarantees. Since the date of the
Disposal till 31 December 2021, guarantees of
RMB2,210,636,000 had been discharged while
RMB4,709,049,000 are expected to be released
in year 2022.

il The Group is also maintaining its relationship
with the banks and the lenders of the Disposal
Group so that no action will be taken by
them to demand immediate repayment of its
outstanding borrowings under the Relevant
Guarantees.

(b] 7B EHE (&)

bR R AR T B R
M ATREE AN E MR A
RERNELEARRE -

ERLEABER ARBESE
RAFERBEREZFTEL
EMBEHRRABPEHBMIAT
B ARRRBEE S
YEREAEEMBAR - [
RUHLELETHERENS
MER:

) O AEB -—EHEEMENR
BT EEEED
BRAEDT UEK
S EBRABEER- B
HEEREE-_T=-—
F+-A=+—8" A
R #2,210,636,0007T 2
EREHR MAREK
4,709,049,0007C 78 Ef #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 R E Em)
[b) Going concern basis (Continued) [b) 754848 & H ¥ (@)
il The Group has also been actively negotiating i) AEET—BEEGBE

with the relevant financial institution and
promissory note holders regarding the
borrowings of RMBb597,969,000 to take the
following actions:

(a) As at 31 December 2021, outstanding
promissory notes amounting to
RMB248,984,000 which were not
extended nor repaid upon the schedule
repayment dates and thus become
overdue, and RMB8,618,000 become
immediately repayable pursuant to the
cross-default terms under the relevant
loan agreements. The Company is in
the process of negotiating with these
promissory note holders for further
arrangements, including the extension of
maturity dates and obtaining waiver from
the lender for the due payment pursuant
to the relevant cross-default terms.

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
other borrowing of RMB42,559,000 which
was overdue. The Group is in the process
of negotiating with the relevant lender for
extension of repayment and renewal of
such borrowing.

(c] As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
secured borrowing of RMB306,426,000
which was overdue. The borrowing was
transferred to an independent financial
institution in December 2021. The Group
is in the process of negotiating with the
relevant financial institution for extension
of repayment and renewal of such
borrowing.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

2 FESFHEEw

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b] Going concern basis (Continued)

iv)

V)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
drawn down USD129,393,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB821,915,000) in total
from the loan agreement, provided by an
entity controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong,
who agreed to provide a loan facility up to
USD250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,588,025,000) to the Group for the
funding of the oilfield operations of the energy
exploration and production segment. As at
31 December 2021, the carrying amount
is RMB691,343,000 and it is payable by 31
December 2023.

The Group has focused on its operations in
development of the energy exploration and
production segment. During the period, a
number of wells were in production in the
Republic of Kyrgyzstan ("Kyrgyzstan”).
Management expects to realise an increase
of oil output through further development and
expansion of this segment, thereby generating

steady operating cash flows.

21 R E Em)
{b} .'}"‘T/lﬁn(«’éég‘g(%g)

iv)

v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2 FESFHEEw

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 R E Em)
[b) Going concern basis (Continued) [b) 754848 & H ¥ (@)
v]  (Continued) v (&)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
drawn down RMB9,066,000 from the loan
agreement, provided by an entity controlled
by a close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi
Rong, who agreed to provide a loan facility
up to RMB40,000,000 to the Group for the
funding in respect of the energy exploration
and production segment. In addition, the Group
also entered into a cooperative framework
agreement during the year ended 31 December
2018 with an independent third party who
agreed to provide materials for the exploration
and production of crude oil with an aggregate
amount up to USD500,000,000, in exchange
for an option to purchase up to 70% of the total
crude oil produced by the Group at 92% to 95%
of the market price as a form of repayment
until all the liabilities are repaid. Such facility
has not been utilised up to 31 December 2021.

The Group has further expanded its business
presence within the oil sector through
the acquisition of Nantong Zhuosheng
Petrochemical Co., Ltd. ["Nantong
Zhuosheng”) which completed on January
2021. Nantong Zhuosheng possesses the
facility, capacity and expertise in the provision
of oil storage services. The management
expects by acquiring Nantong Zhuosheng shall
reflect the Group's strategy of investing in oil-
and-gas-related storage and logistic projects,
which shall enable the Group to expand its
energy business vertically.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

2 FESHBER w

2.1 B E % (@)
(b) #3484 & B (@)

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b] Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors have reviewed the Group’'s cash EFCENEEBRGRERE
flow projections prepared by management that 5_7 ——Ft+ZA=+—
covered a period of not less than twelve months BEL+Z@EAPRN AR

from 31 December 2021. They are of the opinion
that, taking into account the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months from the date
of the statement of financial position. Accordingly,

E@mfﬁi//mgfﬁi E‘J e

E ZREE st & R E

CAEEBERENEE
é@ﬁﬁ%ﬁwéhﬁé
T WEEEITAEMBEMRRRK
MEBREART-EAR
NI ER - Bt &

the directors are satisfied that it is appropriated ZHEE UBBREWER
to prepare the consolidated financial statements MBEREMBMERBRE -

on a going concern basis. Notwithstanding the
above, significant uncertainties exist as to whether
management of the Company will be able to
achieve its plans and measures as described above.
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group's

BEN  AARERERE
BN £ Pt E R H 5T 8 &
B FEAE RN TREEM -
AEBMETAE BECLSER
B hﬁ?KE@
BRRINERUTEE - ES

ability to generate adequate financing and operating TREHEE &K E fﬁ S

cash flows through the successful fulfillment of the £

following plans:

iJ  obtaining the agreement from the banks and i) ﬁfiﬁ&fﬁi”/\ﬂiﬁﬂ
lenders to release or discharge the Relevant * DA %R R SK AR BR Bt
Guarantees for the borrowings owed by the %ﬁ%}aﬁﬂfﬁtﬁf/ﬁﬂjﬁ'ﬂ
Disposal Group; HEAER:

il convincing the banks and lenders not to
demand for repayment of the outstanding
loans of the Disposal Group before the

i) FARERIT R AR AR
FAERRIRTTR AT &
KEEHERERNRE

completion of the release of the Relevant BER
Guarantees;
il negotiating with all existing promissory i) BREEAEARE

note holders of outstanding principals of
RMB2,209,229,000 together with accrued
interests thereon for further arrangements
including extension of the maturity dates;

iv]  negotiating with the relevant lender for the
renewal or extension for repayments for the
other borrowing of RMB42,559,000 that was
overdue as at 31 December 2021;

2,209,229,0007T (& [ &
EErFME)MEIRE
EHEBERBAERY
LATE#E— 2B B
EREEA

vl BRZZE=—F+=A
—+—HE®mBENEM
B A RB42,559,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b] Going concern basis (Continued)

V)

vi)

vii)

viii)

negotiating with the relevant financial
institution for the renewal or extension
for repayments for the borrowing of
RMB306,426,000 that was overdue as at 31
December 2021;

obtaining waiver’'s from the relevant
promissory note holders for the due payment
in relation to those notes that have cross
default terms and extend the repayment dates
when they fall due;

implementing a business plan for its energy
exploration and production segment, as well
as the oil storage and trading segment to
generate cash inflows; and

obtaining additional sources of financing other
than those mentioned above, including those to
finance the energy exploration and production
segment, and the successful drawdown of the
various facilities made available to the Group
by entities controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong
and a close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi
Rong, as described in management’'s plan
above, as and when needed.

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned

plans and measures, it might not be able to continue

to operate as a going concern, and adjustments

would have to be made to write down the carrying

value of the Group’'s assets to their recoverable

amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which

might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets

and non-current liabilities as current assets and

current liabilities. The effect of these adjustments

has not been reflected in these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c] New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretation adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2021:

Amendments to IAS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concession

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Benchmark Reform
and IFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

[d] Issued but not yet effective International
Financial Reporting Standards

2 FESHBER w

21 R E Em)
ld) E 78 7 18 /5 7k 4 3¢ B9 B
BB 7% 3R & 2E R
BEEMBERZZ=_—F—A

Standards, amendments and interpretations that

have been issued but not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2021 and not
been early adopted by the Group as of the reporting

— RS A M EREFE R E
M E AR E R WS EL R
RERMHEL - BFT LR

period are as follows: = (N

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
RATRE 2%
BRNEEBELN
Amendments to [AS 37 BRSNS Onerous Contracts — Costof ~ BBAY - BIANMMK 1 January 2022
CHEN! Fulfilling a Contract S “5--f-f-H
Amendments to IFRSs ERE RS L Annual improvements to IFRS BB BB EERIZE -\ 1 January 2022
CHEY standards 2018-2020 Cycle EE_TCREENVE “TZZF-/-H

EBs:
Amendments to IAS 16 BEHERZE  Property, Plantand Fqupment: 1% BERRE  fElE 1 January 2022
CHEY Proceeds before intendeduse R ATAIFTE 0B “2--E-A-R
Amendments to IFRS 3 BEBREEBEIR  Reference to Conceptual HRER22ZER 1 January 2022
CHEY Framework “Z--E-f-H
Amendments to 1AS 1 BesEdEI% Classification of Liabiliesas ~ BEAEATHEENE 1 January 203
CHEY Current or Non-current RHARE “E-ZF-f-H
IFRS 17 BYHRREENZTR Insurance Contractsandthe  REBANREBET 1 January 2023
Related Amendments “E-ZE-R-H
Amendments to [AS 1 and BBSENEIER  Disclosure of Accounting Policies &3 Bk 2 5 & 1 January 2023
IFRS Practice Statement 2 IWW#WEE\‘JJ% S

REEIR(BF)
Amendments to 1A5 8 BR e EAFH Definition of Accounting Fstimates & 3T fA3f 2 £ 1 January 2023
(BiT%) “E-=£-5-H
Amendments to IAS 12 AReHENE0% Deferred tax related to Assets and E—RAEEEHEERS 1 January 2023
(BiI%) Liabiliies arising froma Single BRI E M & Z22ZF-/-H
Transaction

AmendmentstolFRS 10and BB EIEREEZ 0% Sale or Contribution of Assets  REAERHBENFFHA To be determined
1AS 28 BBETEREME  betweenan nvestor andits ERECHEERE FEE

(a5 Associate or Joint Venture GRA

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of the new or revised standards that
have been issued but either not yet effective for the
financial period beginning 1 January 2021 or not
been early adopted by the Group which are relevant
to the Group’s operation. The Group believes that the
application of amendments to IFRSs, amendments
to IASs and the new interpretations is unlikely to
have a material impact on the Group's statement
of financial position and performance as well as
disclosure in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 ZEANRREREZER
accounting =]

(a) Subsidiaries (a) BB LA

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 ZEANRREREZER
accounting (Continued) Al ()

[b) Changes in ownership interests [b) HEEEEZZE

2 FESFHEEw

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.3 Business combinations

23 EKEH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether

AR R DR KA X
A GiARR - TR T

equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The Aol A& E - WEMEBAR 2

consideration transferred for the acquisition of a CEERER:

subsidiary comprises the:

(i) fairvalues of the assets transferred i) FEZEEAECANE

(i) Lliabilities incurred to the former owners of the (] FrBEBENBEEAES
acquired business ZBE

(i) equity interests issued by the group (i) A& E 1T R

(iv] fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

(v) fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
and acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity
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or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial B -BRERTREENSRAR
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changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

RIEHER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
FERE2021

115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors of the Company who
make strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a] Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the "functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b] Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
[b] Transactions and balances (Continued)

lc]

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in profit or loss within
‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in profit or
loss within ‘other (losses)/gains — net'.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as derivative financial
instruments are recognised as part of the fair value
gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities [none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6 Oil properties

2 FESFHEEw

2.6 A E

The successful efforts method of accounting is used
for oil exploration and production activities. Costs are
accumulated on a field-by-field basis. All costs for
development wells, support equipment and facilities, and
proved mineral interests in oil properties are capitalised
within construction in progress under property, plant
and equipment. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed when incurred. Costs directly associated
with an exploration well, and exploration and property
leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised within
construction in progress until the determination of
reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that commercial
discovery has not been achieved, these costs are charged
to profit or loss.

Once commercial reserves are found, construction
in progress relevant to oil properties are tested for
impairment, or whenever facts and circumstances
indicate impairment. No depreciation and depletion is
charged during the exploration and evaluation phase.
When development is completed on a specific field, it is
transferred to oil properties.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the exploration and evaluation assets’ carrying
amount exceeds their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration and
evaluation assets’ fair value less costs of disposal and
their value in use.

Qil properties are depreciated using the units-of-
production method. Unit-of-production rates are based
on proved developed reserves, which are oil reserves
estimated to be recovered from existing facilities using
current operating methods. Oil volumes are considered
to be part of production once they have been measured
through meters at custody transfer or sales transaction
points at the outlet valve on the field storage tank.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.6 Oil properties (Continued)

2.6 A HYE @)

Proven oil properties are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

The Group's buildings, including buildings under
construction, are stated at revalued amount. All other
property, plant and equipment, except for construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition and construction of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2 FESFHEEw

27 ¥ - BERRE@®

Except for oil properties, the depreciation of which
is calculated using the unit-of-production method,
depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building

BF

Machinery and equipment
M2z R R

Computer equipment
EIERE

Office equipment
NS

Motor vehicles

BE#

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period. An
asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’'s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Plant and equipment under construction or pending
installation are stated at cost impairment losses, if any.
No depreciation is made on assets under construction
in progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and available for their intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the profit or loss.
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e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets 28 BMILEE

Co-operation Rights

The Co-operation Rights represent rights to cooperate
with the national oil company of Kyrgyzstan in the
operation of the five oil fields zones ("Co-operation
Rights”). The Co-operation Rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
The Co-operation Rights are amortised using the unit-of-
production method. Unit-of-production rates are based
on proved reserves, which are oil reserves estimated
to be recovered from existing facilities using current
operating methods. Oil volumes are considered to be part
of production once they have been measured through
meters at custody transfer or sales transaction points at
the outlet valve on the field storage tank.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2.11).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The software with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives is one
year. Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change
and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

BIERERE
BIEREREETBAIHNERA
AR A F&E TR MR
MIGHEKER])  AERER
PARR 7530 2 5t 3 35 I AT ) Rk (B /S
BAKR - AERERRBEN
HEREE  BULEEXRDAR
ERAKREE  ABRIKEH
AR ERB R U D & A
B EOHEEBRIEAMFL
MEOREERZHAER - A
WERBEEN &S °

AASEBANEMBETEEER
AR < RET B (EM A
RAFERER)RBEBE(RHE
210 FIBR -

EEERERAFHZELEEN
BHEREEMGAIERAFHER
NESEERaTHR - RAA
REFBFH2EFRARERE
R HAEAANERFHG
—F o EHMR R TATBEE
TEM -

HERAERFHERNET
BETTHE SFERERE
ERERAFHAERZERR
WO NEBEERSAESFHRBAE
B % BEN RAERFY
ER - WA BHRZFFTHRIB
oA ERFHRERNTIRE
Re®8  SHEFHHABEAR
KERZERE EXEBFHAER
MEVEEZBHBRREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
FERE2021

121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.9 Goodwill 29 B8

2 FESHBER w

Goodwill is measured as described in note 8. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i] Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value [either through OCI or through profit or
loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
lii] Recognition and derecognition

QM BREREMEMEE @

lii) 78R AL TE R

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

(iii}] Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL],
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is one
measurement category into which the group

classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
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2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2 FESFHEEw

QM BREREMEMEE @

liii) Measurement (Continued) liii) &1 £ (&)
Equity instruments #am T A

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
is recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Change in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “other (losses)/gains — net” in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment
losses [and reversal of impairment losses] on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

liv] Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note
3.1(b) for further details.
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e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

WM EERmEERE

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready for use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (a CGU). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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2.12 Inventories 2 EE
Crude oil inventories are stated at the lower of cost R A7 & % Ak AR B A] 43R % (B W

and net realisable value. Costs of inventories represent
relevant production costs and are determined on a
weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

213 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.
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2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)
2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank and
deposits held at call with banks.

2.15 Share capital
(i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference
shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

(i) Convertible preference shares

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
issued by the Company that contain the conversion
option components are classified as equity on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of an equity instrument. The conversion option
allows the holder of the non-redeemable convertible
preference shares to convert the convertible
preference shares into a fixed number of the
Company’'s own ordinary shares and therefore
the whole instrument is classified as an equity
instrument.

The convertible preference shares are initially
recognised at their par value in share capital. The
difference between the par value of the issued
convertible preference shares and its fair value is
recognised in share premium.

2.16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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(Continued)

2.17 Borrowings 217 B K

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless EROERRBAE  BRIELRE
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement EHEHABREERABEESR
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the HHIRE Z 12108 A B BG4
reporting period. M e

2.18 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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(Continued)
219 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws] that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b] Deferred income tax (Continued)

lc]

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating
sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)
[b] Pension and employee social security and

2 FESFHEEw

220E EE R (@)
b) BN RIESHERE

benefits obligations

The group companies in the PRC and Kyrgyzstan
participate in defined contribution retirement plans
and other employee social security plans, including
pension, medical, other welfare benefits, organised
and administered by the relevant governmental
authorities for employees in the PRC and
Kyrgyzstan. The Group contributes to these plans
based on certain percentages of the total salary of
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, as stipulated
by the relevant regulations.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

[c) Share-based compensation

The employees receive equity instruments of
the Company as consideration for their services
rendered to the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the equity instruments is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, including any market
performance conditions; excluding the impact of
any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions; and including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of equity instrument that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

2 FESFHEEw

220 EE R (@)

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

[c) Share-based compensation (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (and share premium).

[d) Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for bonus when
contractually obliged or when there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue from
sale of goods of the Group was primarily generated from
production and sales of oil, oil storage and trading.

Revenue are recognised when or as the control of the
goods is transferred to the customer, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the product. Delivery occurs when the
product have been transported to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

Revenue from the production and sales of oil are
recognised at a point in time when the customer picks
up the oil products from the Group, as such the control
of the goods is transferred to the customer. The Group
does not provide shipment of oil products to customers
at any specified location. The performance obligation is
completely fulfilled upon the pick-up and the Group then
has the right to invoice and recognises the revenue for
the oil sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHMTE
2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2 FESFHEEw

2.21 I 22 B &8 (@)

Revenue from oil storage is recognised in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Revenue from trading is generated from the trading of
bulk commodities domestically and is recognised at a
point in time, on the passing of control of goods to the
customer in accordance with shipping terms.

2.22 Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

2.23 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

132 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A

K B fE sz A T B B A
SEOHBA  HEREETE
REREABEEEMEENN R
LR ON o A RE 4 Bk A R
MAIZHENRERSENES
HAFE PR R

BHREREBRARNREMOHR
5 R R B AN S 15 R dn # 72
BEEETEPHNRREIRER

B K 5 BY
EREBRAIESBFAMAR
5 S 1 A& T 4 4 B T B A 1R 4
B - U 0 BY S 170 B 1S AR R R )
IRHER c REEAREMRELR
XE B R E A R R HIE
BEERMEBRSZERBUA -
BAEE-BHEERANHDE
REENREESTIR  RER
BEMAERFHRRARESR
EERZENBEaNERER -

2.23 R B A

NEBRN AR EHER AT EN
ERMEENBWA ITREEGE
TE Ui 28 2% T AR A EL A W AR — D
e
HAMEBMAKERREEERW
MBETMEE  FIERAER
5 7 B E WA o AE fa] Bl ) B UL
AFTAEMBUA -

MEWATIRERMNEEBRE
MEEZRAABSFESE  H
HERBEEREZEREE
b IR EERESZREE
mE ERALMEEZREETF
B(EHRERERB) ERAERF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

2 FESFHEEw

2218 B R 2

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.25 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

2 FESFHEEw

2.5 & @)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

134 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A

HEEENEENMABEVHIAR
BEEEGE HERERETY
HENRHFHRE:

e BEENKEBHEREE LWE
ENFR) - BETMEEEE

B=E:

o ENEEIMEWAEEE
3 ARG B HNE
EERIESEC S

s AEERFHBEEERTE
AR SR

e MAKBEEWMETERE
EERE - A RZOEEENTT
EE: R

o MEEHRRAEEITEZ
EERE - AIXMRLEEED

o= o
SN °

RIFAEMTEERERIMNDN
HENKTHARBEHEZA -

HENFERESEPRESHMNX
HEITREE o WEIXE 5T %A
R(BAEEHEN—REBR)
A8 A AT A B I8 8 15 3R =
BOME B A AEBEUEBERE
R B LUER - BERREEEA
ESEERAEEEAAEUERE
B E E PR A & M A AN B F

3«:( o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

*  makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHMTE
2 Principal accounting policies

(Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

2 FESFHEEw

2.5 & @)

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease [that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leasehold land
TH AL
Shoreline rights

R

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
2 Principal accounting policies 2 FESTHE w

(Continued)

2.26 Financial guarantees

2.26 B 5 AR

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
financial liabilities at the time the guarantees are
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R M R

2 Principal accounting policies
(Continued)
2.28 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

e by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

lii] Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange rate risk

and interest rate risk], credit risk and liquidity risk. The

Group's overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’'s
financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising primarily from the transactions in its
Energy Business with asset denominated in US
dollar ("USD") and borrowings denominated in
USD and Hong Kong dollar ("HKD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency.

Certain trade receivables, other receivables,
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other payables and borrowings are
denominated in USD and HKD which are also
exposed to foreign exchange risk. Details
of the Group’s trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables and
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies
are disclosed in Notes 11, 12, 16 and 17
respectively.

The Group's certain financial guarantees are
denominated in RMB. For the entity operating
in Kyrgyzstan, most of the transactions are
denominated in their functional currency which
is USD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR
3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
{a) Market risk (Continued)

)

i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the USD and
HKD respectively with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year would
have been approximately RMB215,763,000
higher/lower (2020: Post-tax profit would have
been approximately RMB201,030,000 lower/
higher], mainly as a result of foreign exchange
differences on translation of USD and HKD
denominated monetary assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for cash and cash equivalents
with short maturities. Certain of the Group’s
short-term borrowings at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Since
all fixed-rate borrowings are current and at
market interest rate, the directors are of the
opinion that the fair value interest-rate risk is
minimal. The Group analyses its interest rate
exposure on a dynamic basis and will consider
the interest rate exposure when enter into any
financing, renewal of existing positions and
alternative financing transactions.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rate had
increased/decreased by 100 basis points with
all other variables held constant, post-tax loss
for the year would have been approximately
RMB3,064,000 higher/lower (2020: Post-
tax profit would have been approximately
RMB3,148,000 lower/higher].
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b]) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
as well as credit exposures to outstanding trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets which are stated as follows:
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Trade, other receivables and JE U BR F b fE U FRIE 18,691 5,091
deposits (Note 11) iz e (frsEn)

Cash at banks (Note 12] R IT7F R (BT E12) 22,969 15,715

Maximum exposure to credit risk T & #) £z A5 B & & 41,660 20,806

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at banks since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.
Management does not expect that there will be any
significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivables

e  deposits and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of

IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR
3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

i)

Trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
under Expected Credit Loss model on trade
receivables individually or based on provision
matrix. Except for credit-impaired trade
receivables, the remaining trade receivables
are grouped under a provision matrix based on
shared credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 12 months before 31 December 2021,
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified forecast economic
conditions to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments for a period of
greater than 1 year past due.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

142 TEERERRDERA A

3 BIEERERE @w
31 KRR EZE@®
b) =& &k (&)

(i)

Vi

AEEFEREREER
BEAEBRENEE
Fb ek S5 e LA PR A O 1T 0K
BFfE - REEERE
H) FE AR RS - BR T
W B AR IR E N RME
ERRSEETNEE
S KE -

BHEBERENR-Z
——F+=-A=+—H”
AT+ M8 A EE gl &
T FRIE S A K bt HA el 4R
EHELEEBBRLE
B BELEBHEEGHET
HE URMEERR
BB IR IARE IR
Bl B R KM E AT X AT
EHEER - AEEEH
1) BRI 4 78 R B & AR
BRE  TREZER
=M TEHECEERE
fEsE R -

J& U BR 3 A 2R TR B
BRI o 538
BHEERE T REE
(AP EE)BEBAEZL
BN £ B KO8 KA
g AREEEE—
FUENRRELELH
(DE/N



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

i)

Trade receivables (Continued)

aRE B IS R R M R

3 BRERERE w

31 MERREE @
b) 15 E &z (#)

i) 4 B 2 ()

Movement in the loss allowance in respect of FAEREBRIE B
credit-impaired trade receivables during the TEOBEREEH M
year is as follows: N
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFTT
Balance at T January R—A—BM&E& 2,827 —
(Reversal of]/provision FARRBIREFE
for impairment losses (B m), B#E
recognised during the year (1,977) 2,827
Balance at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
B 45 B 850 2,827

For the remaining trade receivables, given the
track record of regular repayment of trade
receivables, the directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers
is not significant and does not expect any
losses from non-performance by customers.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the
remaining trade receivables is assessed to be
closed to zero and no provision was made as at
1 January 2020.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is closed to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBBRME
3 Financial risk management continies 3 FIEREBEEE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B E be E & m)
lc) Liquidity risk lc) TEE=EE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a deficit
of RMB7,893,114,000 (2020: RMB7,899,066,000]
and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB6,988,267,000 (2020:
RMB7,423,414,000). The Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents of RMB23,883,000 (2020:
RMB16,064,000) as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, borrowings of the Group,
amounted to RMB3,580,089,000, out of which
RMB597,969,000 were overdue, while borrowings
of the Group amounting to RMB8,618,000 contained
cross-default terms as at 31 December 2021 and
become immediately repayable. Total overdue
interest payables of the Group amounted to
RMB431,040,000. These borrowings are further
explained below:

i) The Group had promissory notes with
an aggregated principal amount of
RMB?2,209,229,000 outstanding as at 31
December 2021, out of which approximately
RMB235,947,000 and RMB13,037,000 had been
overdue since 2020 and 2021 respectively. The
outstanding promissory notes amounting to
RMB8,618,000 became immediately repayable
pursuant to the cross-default terms under the
relevant loan agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
lc) Liguidity risk (Continued)

ii)

iii)

The Group had other borrowings of
with an aggregated principal amount of
RMB1,064,434,000 outstanding as at 31
December 2021, out of which approximately
RMB42,559,000 had been overdue since 2020;
and

The Group had recurred borrowing of
RMB306,426,000, which was overdue in
accordance with the repayment date of
the agreement as at 31 December 2021.
The borrowing has been transferred to an
independent financial institution in December
2021.

The above conditions indicate the existence of

material uncertainties, which may cast significant

doubt upon the Group’'s ability to continue as a

going concern. In view of such circumstances, the

directors of the Company have, during the year and

up to the date of the approval of these consolidated

financial statements, taken the following measures

to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve

the financial position of the Group, to refinance its

operation and to restructure its debts:

)

i)

The Group has been actively negotiating
with the relevant banks and lenders of the
Disposal Group to release or discharge
the Relevant Guarantees. Since the date of
disposal until 31 December 2021, guarantees
of RMB2,210,636,000 had been discharged
while RMB4,709,049,000 are expected to be
released in year 2022 and RMB924,965,000
that did not meet the recognition criteria for
Financial Guarantee Contracts are recognised
as contingent liabilities (Note 35) .

The Group is also maintaining its relationship
with the banks and the lenders of the Disposal
Group so that no action will be taken by
them to demand immediate repayment of its
outstanding borrowings under the Relevant
Guarantees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR
3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
lc) Liguidity risk (Continued)

i)  The Group has also been actively negotiating
with the relevant financial institution and

promissory note holders regarding the
borrowings of RMBb597,969,000 to take the
following actions:

(a)

(b)

(c)

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding
promissory notes amounting to
RMB248,984,000 were not extended nor
repaid upon the schedule repayment
dates and thus became overdue, and
RMB8,618,000 became immediately
repayable pursuant to the cross-
default terms under the relevant loan
agreements. The Company is in the
process of negotiating with these
promissory note holders for further
arrangements, including the extension of
maturity dates and obtaining waiver from
the lender for the due payment pursuant
to the relevant cross-default terms.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
other borrowing of RMB42,559,000 which
was overdue. The Group is in the process
of negotiating with the relevant lender for
extension of repayment and renewal of
such borrowing.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
secured borrowing of RMB306,426,000
which was overdue. The borrowing was
transferred to an independent financial
institution in December 2021. The Group
is in the process of negotiating with the
relevant financial institution for extension
of repayment and renewal of such
borrowing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
lc) Liguidity risk (Continued)

iv)

V)

vi)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
drawn down RMB388,541,000 from an entity
controlled by a close family member of Mr.
Zhang Zhi Rong. As at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount is RMB321,466,000 and it is
repayable in December 2023.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
drawn down USD129,393,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB821,915,000), in total
from the loan agreement, provided by an
entity controlled by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong,
who agreed to provide a loan facility up to
USD250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,588,025,000) to the Group for the
funding of the oilfield operation of the energy
exploration and production segment. As at
31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
this loan facility is RMB691,343,000 and it is
payable by 31 December 2023.

The Group has focused on its operations in
development of the energy exploration and
production segment. During the period, a
number of wells were in production in the
Republic of Kyrgyzstan ("Kyrgyzstan’).
Management expects to realise an increase
of oil output through further development and
expansion of this segment, thereby generate
steady operating cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
lc) Liguidity risk (Continued)

vi)

(Continued)

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has
drawn down RMB9,066,000 from the loan
agreement provided by an entity controlled
by a close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi
Rong, who agreed to provide a loan facility up
to RMB40,000,000 to the Group for the funding
in respect of the energy exploration and
production segment.

In addition, the Group also entered into a Co-
operative Framework Agreement during
the year ended 31 December 2018 with an
independent third party who agreed to provide
materials for the exploration and production
of crude oil with an aggregated amount up to
UsD500,000,000, in exchange for an option
to purchase up to 70% of the total crude oil
produced by the Group at 92% to 95% of the
market price as a form of repayment until all
the liabilities are repaid. Such facility has not
been utilised up to 31 December 2021.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

148 TEERERRDERA A

3 BIEERERE @w
31 KRR EZE@®
lc] 7B & %7 F (&)

vi)

(&)

RZE—F+=A
=+—H AEBHKE
E A R TR
HIEBRERHNE R
IR ELA R 9,066,000
T RERREMAS
ERETZAARE
40,000,0007T /) & X B
B ARREEMEERY

BRREERREHE
{ﬁ o
AN BEZFT—N\F

+-—A=+—HItFE -
AEBRE—-ZBILE
ZHEANAEEZRR
HORBYFE=ARE
REFAMIEREEM
¥ 48 %8 = 3%500,000,000
ETLUNRBA B TS
B 1892% Z=95% AE B A
EERHAEAERER
Z70% R HEEREE
MmA BHEEEMA
BE-HEE-ZE_—F
+ZA=+—H ¥ &
BRAZmE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
lc) Liguidity risk (Continued)

vi)

3 BRERERE w

31 KRR EZE@®
lc] 7B & %7 F (&)

(&)

(Continued] vi)
The Group has further expanded its business AEBBEBANR_-_T_—
presence within the oil sector through the F-ATK Y EREEE
acquisition of Nantong Zhuosheng which REE—FBAERA
completed on January 2021. Nantong B EER - BlE
Zhuosheng possesses the facility, capacity RRREHRMERS S
and expertise in the provision of oil storage HEBZRE IkE
services. The management expects by FHE - -EREEERE
acquiring Nantong Zhuosheng shall reflect the MY ERBRERER
Group’s strategy of investing in oil-and-gas- MASEHREEE
related storage and logistic projects, which ERMRBBNRER
shall enable the Group to extend its energy B SAEEEEFE
business vertically. RNERRER -
Repayable on
demand/less Between More than
Group rEE than 1year 1and 2years 2years Total
REX
®E/ —FR —EWF MENL @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTE ARBTR ARETR
At31December 2021 ~ MZT=—%
+ZA=+-H
Borrowings fE 1,417,415 2,162,674 - 3,580,089
Financial guarantee RBERSD
contracts 4,709,049 - - 4,709,049
Trade and other payables & BR 3 I E ft JEf
excluding contract FEAAEANE
liabilities and other tax & R E MK IBIBE fE
related payables 1 508) 902,274 - - 902,274
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTF
+ZRA=+—H
Borrowings f& 3R 1,943,569 1,449,322 - 3392891
Financial guarantee BBEERAN
contracts 4,545,132 - - 4,545,132
Trade and other payables & R 5t [ H i FE {7
excluding contract RE(TREANE
liabilities and other tax &R At HIEARE
related payables HIE) 942,597 - - 942,597
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3 KERERE w
31 B REREZE®

[c) Liquidity risk (Continued) lc) %EE = (&)
Maturity Analysis — borrowings based on scheduled FRIA T — 125 BB H
repayments .z &

Certain borrowings contain a repayment on demand ETERMERTATDE
clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole BT R EREEIE K -
discretion. Taking into account the Group's situation, KREBAEEZIER - w8
arrangement and the transaction as described in KRB 5E2.1(b) 7R BT B 2t /9 32
Note 2.1(b), the directors do not consider that it is 5 EBERRBRIT TR &
probable that the banks will exercise their discretion SITEERAIRER 2 BB
to immediate repayment. The analysis below W o AT TR ET 818 3B
shows the cash outflows based on the scheduled HIrBReRnbE - AHES
repayment. The amount includes interest payments BEEASHONERGFEZF
computed using contractual rates. The directors Bis-EFMHEE AHEE
believe that such borrowings will be repaid in REERBEERBEAER 2
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set FFEIERBHER -
out in the loan agreements.
Less than Between More than
Tyear 1and2years 2years Total
—FR —EWF MENE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBETR ARETR
At 31 December 2021 i —
+=-A=+—H 1,848,455 2,162,674 - 4,011,129
At 31 December 2020 RZFZFF
+-A=+—"H 2,636,055 1,449,322 - 3,885,377
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

3 KERERE w
3.2 EREE

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

AEEERERNBERDHRER
SERFELLEHNREN  U/BRER
@RI A EAMNSEERE T R

and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an Bz FARERRENERE
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. BUREE KA -

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, RERLHABRERNEH  A&H
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to ﬁ%;ﬁﬂ%s‘zﬁﬂx%ml& 8

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

CARRERLEER - BEITHR
1’73&%%%?&%%5@2%%% °

The capital structure of the Group consists of AEENERARERERRE
shareholders’ equity. Capital is managed so as to #@ e EAXEEUMSREE D&

maximise the return to shareholders while maintaining
a capital base to allow the Group to operate effectively in
the marketplace and sustain future development of the
business. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities divided
by total assets.

The Group’s total liabilities and total assets positions and
debt-asset ratio at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as
follows:

RELEFERAERAEAKH
BRAET S LARRERTELE
TTRREBERE - EZHZY‘B?Q,%@
BERAREEE

AEEBR-_ZE_—FR-ZZ_Z
FHZA=T—HHNEAGERE
BEMRAARBEEEE L XM
T

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETFTT

Total liabilities mafE 9,274,823 8,904,999
Total assets REE 1,381,709 1,005,933
Debt-asset ratio BEEEELX 6.71 8.85

3.3 Fair value estimation

The director consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair value.

3.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

4 Critical accounting estimates,

4 BAREEEET BRRR

assumptions and judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates
(a] Going concern

The Group prepares cash flow projections that cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2021. Taking into account the plans and
measures as described in Note 2.1(b], the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the date of the statement of financial
position. The consolidated financial statements is
prepared on a going concern basis.

Significant uncertainties exist as to whether
management of the Company will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described in Note 2.1(b).
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group's
ability to generate adequate financing and operating
cash flows through the successful fulfilment of the
plans as described in Note 2.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

L BREETHEE BERR
H) )

41 BRERE MA@
(b) L EERE

4 Critical accounting estimates,
assumptions and judgement
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
(b] Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” to determine when assets
are impaired, which requires significant judgment.
In making this judgment, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent to
which the recoverable amount of assets is less than
their carrying balance, including factors such as the
industry performance and changes in operational
and financing cash flows. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest level for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (a CGU). The recoverable
amount of the CGU has been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or fair value less cost to
sell, whichever is higher. These calculations require
the use of estimates, including operating results,
income and expenses of the business, future
economic conditions on growth rates and future
returns. Significant changes in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount of the assets
is based could significantly affect the Group’'s
financial position and results of operations. Based
on management’'s assessment, no impairment was
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB1,157,185,000). Details of which have
been disclosed in Note 8.
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4 Critical accounting estimates, L BARETHLE BER
assumptions and judgement FIER a0
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
[c] Useful lives and residual values of

41 BRERE MA@
lc] W% BERZEWT

property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation expense for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation expense where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

4 Critical accounting estimates,
assumptions and judgement
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
(d] Current income tax and deferred tax

le)

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination
Is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is likely
that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. When the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such

estimates have been changed.

Estimation of oil reserves

Estimation of oil reserves is a key element in the
Group's investment decision-making process in
energy exploration and production segment. It is
also an important element in testing for impairment.
Changes in proved oil reserves, particularly
proved developed reserves, will affect unit-of-
production depreciation, depletion and amortisation
recorded in the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements for property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets related to oil production activities.
A reduction in proved developed reserves will
increase depreciation, depletion and amortisation
charges. Proved reserve estimates are subject
to revision, either upward or downward, based
on new information, such as from drilling and
production activities or from changes in economic
factors, including product prices, contract terms or
development plans.

L RS

SR BR R

S

41 BRERE MA@
(d] BIEGAr 13 B R i 4 F 7

le)

AREBARZ ERDEERA
BMAER - RETHRMAE
Bt iR BB R AFHEXRH
- ZIERXZNETEGH A
AEEE&RAHIEA - NEE
/Jﬁrﬁrﬂi?}i BB I

MR BN IBER K
%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁwéﬁ%
FEENRKANALRA
ENMARNERETE  ZF
ERBTERREE AN
MR ELEMSHREERE

& o

EEIEER AR KERS A
BRE R EEKN AR
KoRIEETEREZRLHK
HERABBEZELEMFHE
ETAER - ERAMFE
RERAFEEZE MER
%%%%;Mﬁ#&mﬂw
HIEEFT ST & B S FT S IR
ST HERR o

Vap::h-3-4:04 T8
AR E N E T EAEEmR
BER BN IR R A E R SR 3%
BREBREZWEE N A
ﬁﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ%éxl%
RARHEE  LH2ES
aﬁ%ﬁgmﬁﬁﬁ%;m
&= B4 B 5 MR BB A
EEZHEBNOYE BB
SRR E L E TR
MEBMESHE BERS
B FHECHEHENR D
EIITE  BERENE
B RGBT IR B
BREETHHTERNE
DEH  ANBE SRS

EERLBERREZMmETH
ﬁE& o
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FRRE2021

155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 Critical accounting estimates,

4 BAREEEET BRRR

assumptions and judgement
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
[f] Recognition of financial guarantees

The Group makes estimate on costs required to
fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts
when the guaranteed amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Such estimation is
based on the available information as at reporting
date and is determined by the Group's practical
experience, the default history, the collateral held
and financial position of guaranteed assessed on
an individual basis in the industry and taking into
consideration of industry information and market
data.

4.2 Critical accounting judgment

The Group applies (i} IFRS 3 to transactions and other
events that meet the definition of a business combination
within the scope of IFRS 3 and (i) the principle of control
defined in IFRS 10 in the preparation of consolidated
financial statements. Judgement is required to (i)
determine the fair values of the assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, the date of acquisition, and the
purchase consideration, and on the allocation of the
purchase consideration to the identifiable assets and
liabilities; and [ii) assess whether the Group has obtained
control over the subsidiaries as disclosed in note 25.

5 Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker
that are used to make strategic decisions. These reports are
prepared on the same basis as these consolidated financial
statements.

The chief operating decision-maker is identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. The Executive Directors
consider the business from both a geographic and product
perspective and has identified two reportable segments of its
business:

1) Energy exploration and production: this segment derive
its revenue from sales of crude oil in Kyrgyzstan;

2} Oil storage and trading: this segment derive its revenue
from a) renting its capacity in the provision of oil storage
services which is established through the acquisition of
Nantong Zhuosheng [note 25) and b trading the relevant
commodities in China.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

5 WIEER @

Segment information (continuea)

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the

reportable segments based on a measure of revenue and =
—E—-F

—= —=

gross profit. The segment information provided to the
Executive Directors for the reportable segments for the years

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

=

A A] 2 AR LR 7 #

AR

Energy exploration and

WITEZRBERERENGT2FHA
BIREHORR - HE_ZT-_—FR
FH+-_A=+—HIFE "

TEFRHMRRE

Oil Storage and trading production Total
HRRES HEROARREE @5t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--§ -T-TF ZB--§ _F-TF -B--f -T-%TF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARETRE ARETT ARETR ARETR AR®TR ARETI
Revenue lg:
— Revenue from sales of crude oil - RERAEEN KR - - 34,425 22,000 34,425 22,000
— Revenue from trading - REEHM N 224,486 12,800 - - 224,486 12,800
— Revenue from oil storage - REMmEN RS 57,863 - - - 57,863 -
Segment revenue RAY R 282,349 12,800 34,425 22,000 316,774 34,800
Segment results RREE 37,931 162 15,145 (6,589) 53,076 (6427
Selling and marketing expenses HERTHEERT (2,654) - - - (2,654) (14)
General and administrative expenses —-BRRAKER (10,780 - (12,979) - (28,852) (48.473)
Provision for impairments of property, plantand ~ #1% - BER X &
equipment HERE - - - - - (296,559)
Provision for impairments of intangible assets & B E ARG - - - - - (864,374)
Other income A m - - - 22 -
Other (lossesl/gains it (58) /Wi - - 6,309) - 252 16,393
Finance costs — net BERA-FE - - - - (29,331) 35,592)
Change in provision for financial guarantee BBERANZ
contracts BEZY - - - - 1e3m 2000011
Profit/[loss) before income tax BEEHRANE/ (58) 2,769 162 (4,143) (6589)  (171,154) 764,945
Segment assets RREE 428227 WA I3 13T6A04 997943
Unallocated AR - - - - 5,305 7,990
Total assets BEE 428,227 - 948,177 997,943 1,381,709 1,005,933
Segment liabilities REEE 134,035 - 346,734 373,662 480,769 373,662
Unallocated ROE - - - - 8794054 8531337
Total liabilities BRE 134,035 - 346,734 373662 9,274,823 8904999
Other segment disclosures: HtRAEE:
Depreciation e 15,031 - 9,179 18,165 24,210 18,165
Amortisation B 365 - 1,124 1,966 1,489 1,966
Additions to non-current assets REFRPEE 4,389 - 6,002 13743 10,391 13743

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from the
top customer of the Group amounted to RMB129,703,000 e
(2020: RMB6,228,000), representing 40.9% (2020: 17.9%) of the

total revenue.

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLF
REAEEGZAEFHZEE A
R #129703,000c(ZFE =2 F: AR

#4,228,0007T) 1R ZEAI40.9% (=
T-FF 179%) o
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5

Segment information (continuea)

There is one individual customer contributed more than
10% revenue of the Group’'s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: 3 individual customers). The revenue
of this customer during the year is RMB129,703,000 (2020:
the revenue of these customers were RMB6,228,000,
RMB4,973,000 and RMB4,404,000 respectively).

Geographically, management considers that the operations of
the energy exploration and production segment is located in
Kyrgyzstan (sale of crude oil), and the oil storage and trading
segment is located in PRC, with revenue derived from different
geographical locations, which is determined by the country in
which the customer is located.

The Group’s revenue is analysed as follows:

W ER @
HE_fT-_—4F+=-_A=+—81
FE —ZENFEFP(ZE_ZF:
—HERERP)ERMAER BB
0% - FAZEFERRZmAARE
129,703,000 (—E - ZTF: ZE TP
HEUE DRI A AREES228,0005T
A R #4,973,0007T K A R #4,404,000
JT) °

REME  EEERFERDER
EERBUREMEH GEERM)
o R E SRR R HE - i
ARBTARBE - RIFRREFHAE

AEBHUWEDTMT

2021 2020

—E-—F —=E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBF T
Kyrgyzstan SRE A 34,425 22,000
PRC H 282,349 12,800
316,774 34,800

Geographically, total assets and capital expenditures are
allocated based on where the assets are located.

Non-current assets (excluding intangible assets and goodwill]
are analysed as follows:

RMEMS  BEMEARRAXEES
REEMEMNENR -

FRBDEENBREVEERBE)

DHT

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARETFTT

Kyrgyzstan EHREE 249,003 258,315
Hong Kong B 67 68
PRC s 340,835 530
589,905 258,913
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Property, plant and equipment

6 "% MENKRE

Machinery
Construction and Ol Buildingand ~ Computer Office Motor
inprogress  equipment properties  structure  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
EEIR RERZE RANE BTREE  EERE  BORB L] it
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMBI00C
AEBTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Yearended 31 December 2021~ BE-E--E+Zf
ST-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENREFA 1249 - 185,879 - pill 26 42 258913
Acquisition of subsidiary [Note 25) 458 K B 2 &1 (B 25) 121 571812 - 52,306 826 0 55 118,809
Additions RE 9,254 813 - 14 148 2% 1 10,364
Disposals hE (3,510) (é1) - - 31) (2) (75) (3,659)
Transfer LE (39,075) 578 38,497 - - - - -
Depreciation g - (2,573) (8,830) (6,385) (88) (52 (632) (18,360)
Exchange difference ERZE (767) - 2,003) - (2 ] - (2,773)
Closing net book amount EREDEE 45,292 56,589 213,563 46,033 1,070 265 502 363,294
At 31 December 2021 R-g--£128
=t-A
Cost or valuation KAfEE 132,09 59162 546500 52,418 1252 1325 M T3
Accumulated depreciainand  EAFAERFESE
impairment loss (86,802) (2573 (332,957) (6,385) 182) 1,060 (1,210 (631,169)
Net book amount ERFH 45,292 56,589 213,563 46,033 1,070 265 502 363,294
Year ended 31 December 2020  EZ-E-FE+2f
St-RLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEEE 187,290 - 408409 - 0 512 1933 598,369
Additions hE 50 - 13186 - - T - 13743
Disposals it & - - (405) - - - (1103 (1508]
Transfer EH (20,250 - 0250 - - - - -
Depreciation ik - - (17520 - ) (293 3] (18,165)
Impairment loss Note 8]* AEEE(MTY) (84,741 - (211818) - - - - (95
Exchange difference EXEE (10,700] - (26203 - - - (44) (36,367
Closing net book amount EXEMRE AL - 185879 - il 0 14 298913
At 31 December 2020 k33
=t-f
Cost orvaluation RAafEE 158,184 - B - 309 1233 1200 668949
Accumulated depreciaionand  EFHERFEES
impairment loss (66,033 - (322124) - 92 (1.007) 78 [410,034)
Net book amount EHEE 72149 - 185,879 - 7 26 442 258913

*

Impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly arose

from the impairment of certain oil properties in energy exploration

segment.

HE-_Z-_ZF+_F=+—HILFEHD
BMEEBBEXEREERYFRRTETA
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6 Property, plant and equipment 6 Y% -BMERZHE @

(Continued)

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment has AEEME BELRBITECHER
been recognised as follows: R
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR¥EFTT
Cost of sales Ficl-J N 17,347 17,872
General and administrative — M RATH A X
expenses 1,013 293
Charged to profit or loss FAE T 18,360 18,165
Please refer to Note 8 for the impairment assessment EEME - BERZECGER MRS
associated with the property, plant and equipment, together WEE)ZBENEBELHM S o

with the related intangible assets.

The machinery and equipment and building and structure with IREE A A R®58374,000(=ZF =
carrying amount of RMB58,374,000 (2020: N/A) have been TETEROEIRREARET
pledged to a financial institution for the borrowing owed by the LiEwe st ESBMARAGERE
Disposal Group. ToRME -
7 Right-of-use assets 7 ERHEEE

Shoreline rights Leasehold land Total

FARE AL et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR TR AR®BTR

Year ended 31 December BE-_Z2-_—%+=A8
2021 =t+—HLFE

Opening net book amount FHREFEE - - -

Acquisition of subsidiary g 1ap==NGT

(Note 25) (Pt 5E25) 103,500 115,818 219,318
Depreciation heE (2,745) (3,105) (5,850)
Closing net book amount FAREREFE 100,755 112,713 213,468
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—%+=AH

=+-—H

Cost or valuation B AN S (b B 103,500 115,818 219,318
Accumulated depreciation 25T E (2,745) (3,105) (5,850)

100,755 112,713 213,468
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7 FHEEE @

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Group has acquired shoreline rights and leasehold
land through business combination [note 25). They are
recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition and are
subsequently depreciated on a straight-line based over their
estimated useful lives.

Shoreline rights

The shoreline rights represent rights to occupy and use of
418 meters of the Yangtze River coastline and corresponding
waters. Lump sum payment were made upfront to acquire
the shoreline rights from the previous registered owner, and
there are no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of
the lease agreements. The shoreline rights are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The shoreline rights are depreciated using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives of 33 years.

Leasehold land

The leasehold land relates to the land located in Mainland
China which was acquired through a long-term agreement on
land use rights. The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the whole or part of undivided
share in the underlying land. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests from their previous
registered owners, and there are no ongoing payments to
be made under the terms of the land lease. The leasehold
land is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The leasehold land is depreciated using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 33
years.

The shoreline rights and leasehold land with carrying amount
of RMB100,755,000 and RMB112,713,000 respectively (2020:
N/A] have been pledged to a financial institution for the
borrowings owed by the Disposal Group.

AEBEZEXHAARBFRRERE
P34 3 (P &E25) - s FHEA R U B A
HRARA R ERRLBRIZES A
FERAFRERTE -

FRE
FREERILEBFRROSKNEREEE
MMEE REME - DEN —RMEFRIA
NBEREfMmAEEERFRE M
BERBEEEHRGEIMEFELNR
BNR - EREURNBEATER
ERDRER B - FARBZEEMS
ERAFR=ZT=ZFUNERENE -

AL

BRUNTERN T E R Ly
FRLTHWHERRERAHZIG - A&
BRZEnEEz(BREAELILNE
BB AR D RIF A BAD) WO FEMAAAE o
EFRN—RERIBEAB LA EMAAE
EEGZEMERED  MBEREL
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A £ b AR AN R 5T 37 8 R AT (] BB
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8 Intangible assets and goodwill

Co-operation

8 BFEENREE

rights Software Goodwill Total
EELERE HE e @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARB®ETRT ARBTRT ARETR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E-—-%
+TZA=t+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount HOREFE 714,757 - - 714,757
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 25) W B 9 8 A =] (B 55.25) - 398 33,347 33,745
Additions NE - 27 - 27
Amortisation (Note 19) B (R E9) (1,124) (365) - (1,489)
Exchange differences ERZES (19,105) - - (19,105)
Closing net book amount HRRHEFE 694,528 60 33,347 727,935
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-%
tZA=t-H
Cost N 1,550,234 425 33,347 1,584,006
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T &5 L R EF 1B
losses (855,706) (365) - (856,071)
Net book amount REFE 694,528 60 33,347 727,935
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-E-%F
TZA=+—-BLEE
Opening net book amount HMOEEFE 1,686,779 - - 1,686,779
Amortisation (Note 19) (M 9) (1.966) - - (1,9¢6)
Impairment loss REBR (864,374) - - (864,374)
Exchange differences EREE (105,682 - — (105,682)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 714,757 - - 714,757
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-2F
+=A=1+-H
Cost N 1592845 - 1592845
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 15 8 & 5L (B &5 18
losses (878,088) - - (878,088]
Net book amount REFE 714,757 - - 714,757
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Intangible assets and goodwill

(Continued)

The intangible assets include rights to cooperate with the
national oil company of Kyrgyzstan in the operation of the five
oil fields zones (‘Co-operation Rights’]. The Co-operation
Rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. As at 31 December 2021, 69 wells
(2020: 63 wells) were at production. As a result, amortisation
of RMB1,124,000 has been charged to profit or loss during the
Year (2020: RMB1,966,000) based on the units-of production
method.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into a loan agreement with a related party who agreed to
provide a loan facility up to RMB40,000,000 to the Group for
the funding in respect of the energy exploration and production
segment. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has drawn down
RMB9,066,000 for exploration and drilling wells.

In respect of energy exploration, impairment losses have been
recognised in 2020. Management has reviewed the operational
performance and considered the operation’'s sensitivity
to a range of factors including commodity prices, capital
expenditure and concluded that there is currently no indication
of further impairment or reversal of the previously recognised
impairment.

Impairment Assessment

At the end of each reporting period, the management of the
Group performs impairment assessments on its assets. Each
segment represents an individual cash generating unit ("CGU")
in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less cost to
sell, whichever is higher. The management of the Group’s
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs is
determined based on a value-in-use calculation, by using a
discounted cash flow ("DCF"] model, which requires various
parameters and inputs, among which the projection of
amount and timing of future capital expenditures to enable
the exploration and development of new oil production wells
is a critical input. This projection, nonetheless, hinges on the
overall financial position of the Group. The fair value on which
the recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a Level
3 measurement.

8
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e B IS R R M R

8

Intangible assets and goodwill

(Continued)
Energy exploration and production segment

When measuring the carrying amount of the energy
exploration and production segment CGU, management
mainly took oil properties, construction-in-progress and Co-
operation Rights into account.

Despite the local oil price and demand have improved in the
past few months, the management of the Group is foreseeing
the consumption of oil will continue to be restrained by
COVID-19 and the slow recovery of the global economy.
Coupled with the recent outbreak of the Russo-Ukrainian
war, the unpredictable market price in Kyrgyzstan, and globe
demand on refined product, it is expected that expenditures in
the Energy Exploration would only start to be resumed by the
Group by 2024, the earliest.

With internal judgement of the international market
environment, combined with the delay of the discharge of the
Financial Guarantee, the management of the Group decided to
keep the conservative parameters and inputs in the projection
of the amount and timing of the capital expenditures to be
invested in the energy exploration and production operation
that were used in the 2020 impairment assessment.

The management of the Group assumed that no further
capital expenditure shall be invested in the energy exploration
and production operation until 2024. Accordingly, the energy
exploration and production operation will be relying on its own
production and cash flow to sustain its operation over the next
two to three years.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

Intangible assets and goodwill 8 BIEEKRBE w

(Continued)

Energy exploration and production segment
(Continued)

These calculations use pre-tax (2020: pre-tax) cash flow
forecast covering a period from year 2022 to year 2059 based
on production plan for wells within the operating periods
granted under the Co-operation Rights. The impairment
assessment is not prepared under the perpetual aspect,
and the management of the Group determined 2059 as the
operation terminal year.

In addition, the principal parameters used in determining
the recoverable amount of the Group’'s assets include
estimates of proved and unproved reserves, future commodity
prices, as well as best estimates of development costs. The
management of the Group has applied consistent estimation
of proved and unproved reserves as of 2020, which is in
accordance with a competent person’s report prepared in
September 2018. The expected exploration volume by the end
of 2059 is 23.5 million tonnes, which represented 99.9% of
proved reserves as at 31 December 2021.

Among other things, the management also scrutinized other
assumptions and updated them where appropriate, including
crude oil price which outline as follow:

BE R BY BR R A E R (@)

ZEFECABRBEIELCERETR
&L BN EH EEEED
WRE_T__FE_FTRNFHH
MBA (ZZE=ZF A RenEE
Bl o BT AW IR KB T AR E
AEEBEEES-_ZTANFETAL
IEEEFE -

N AREBEEASBEEENRE S
ENTE2HYRIEHERBRARER
HENGHET - RAREREBAKLEHA
BERANREGR - ASEEEESH
HE-_Z-_ZFNEEARAGTHRE
SRA—ZE B -_ZT—NFAN
AREMNEEAERE —Z - BN
TERANFFREAHEES A58
Bl R E—F+=ZA=+—
HERBPRKEN99% °

BRHEMEEIN  EERENEFAES
HiBR(BREFEAER) L HEET
(@A) BT

US$/Barrel 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
—EB-—F —E-EF
EY e +=—HA=+—8 +-—A=+—H
Forecast Year FERAFEE
2021 —E-—F N/ATE A US$32.403E JT
2022 — T US$42.70% T US$33.80% 7T
2023 :ZEZZEE US$41.00% T US$37.20% T
2024 —E & US$39.90% T US$37.903 7T
2025 == _ﬁ¢ US$40.703% Jt US$38.70% 7t
2026/After forecast period ZEZNFE /BRI E US$41.50E jt  US$39.40E jLtoE
US$55.00% 7T
After forecast period T8 R B fE 2 US$42.303% T N/AT i@ A

to £US$61.70% T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

8

Intangible assets and goodwill
(Continued)

Energy exploration and production segment
(Continued)

The Group referred to the weighted average cost of capital of
the oil and gas industry when determining the discount rate
and made relevant adjustments according to specific risks in
Kyrgyzstan. In 2021, the pre-tax discount rate adopted was
11.97% (2020: 11.33%).

Oil storage and trading segment

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's oil storage and trading
segment CGU. When measuring the carrying amount of the
oil storage and trading segment CGU, management mainly
took machinery and equipment, building and structure,
construction-in-progress, shoreline rights, leasehold land and
goodwill into account.

The recoverable amount of the oil storage and trading
segment CGU was determined based on value in-use
calculation, by using a DCF model. The fair value on which
the recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a Level
3 measurement. The underlying inputs were in accordance
with the financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by the board of the Company. The free cashflow
was predominantly based on revenue driven by the utilization
of the storage facility, less the relevant operating costs. The
Group has estimated the utilization of the storage facility range
between 80-90%. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projection was 14.49% (2020: N/A]. Whilst the assessment
was prepared under perpetual aspect, the growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period was 3%
(2020: N/AJ.

As a result of the above assessment, the recoverable amount
of the CGUs exceeds their carrying value, and the Group
concluded that there was no impairment for the year ended 31
December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
a total impairment loss of RMB1,157,185,000 on the
energy exploration and production segment, of which
RMB864,374,000 was allocated to Co-operation Rights
and RMB292,811,000 was allocated to property, plant and
equipment proportionally in accordance with IAS 36.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

9 Financial instruments by category 9 Z¥EF|E|lozERmIT A
TR ERIE S 2RI AN

The following is an analysis of financial instruments by

category:

Total
#et
RMB’000
ARMT T

Financial assets as per consolidated FEMBERRARNEBEE

statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2021 R-2B-_-%+-A=+—H
Trade receivables (Note 11(a)) JE U BR SR (BF 5E1(a)) 11,924
Other receivables and deposits (Note 11(b)) H W 58 R iR & (M FE1(0) 6,767
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) Re kB EEYHE12) 23,883
Total AT 42,574
Total
@5t
RMB'000
ARB T T

As at 31 December 2020 R-Z2-Z2F+-A=+-—H
Trade receivables (Note 11(a)) JiE I B FR (BT 5E11(a)) 1,005
Other receivables and deposits (Note 11(b)) b fE SR TE KR & (M EE1(b) 4,086
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) RekBF&EEY(HE12) 16,064
Total AT 21,155
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e B IS R R M R

9 Financial instruments by category 9 Z¥EF|E|lozERmIT A

(Continued) (&)
Total
et
RMB'000
ARBF T
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of HREMBRARNER

financial position

As at 31 December 2021

Trade and other payables excluding contract
liabilities and other tax-related payables
(Note 16)

R-B-_-%+-A=+-—H

FE - BR 3% K B th B A 3IE 902,274
(TEFEEHNBERHEMIIAEH

JE A5 SR 38D (Bt 3E16)

Borrowings (Note 17) & R (W sE17) 3,580,089
Financial guarantee contracts BT IS EIR A 4 4,709,049
Total MGt 9,191,412
As at 31 December 2020 R=Z=%

+t=A=t—-H
Trade and other payables excluding contract JE ~F AR SR I EL A FE < SR 1B 942,597

liabilities and other tax-related payables
(Note 16)

(TERANABEREMB AR
J& A 308D (Mt 5E16)

31 December 2021 (2020: RMB16,073,000).

168 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Borrowings (Note 17) & (KT 5E17) 3,392,891
Financial guarantee contracts MBERE L 4,545,132
Total BET 8,880,620
4
10 Inventories 1078
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥ETTT
Raw materials R 924 —
Finished goods X G 3,381 818
4,305 818
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in e Z-—4F+-_A=+—8I1t&F
cost of sales amounted to RMB226,858,000 for the year ended B BRARAIERFAAHEK AN

Bk A A A RE226,858,0007T (ZF =
T A R#16,073,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1M EWERRR - EfbEURRR
HRFENFE
(a) FE U BE X

31 December

11 Trade receivables, other receivables

and prepayments
(a) Trade receivables

+=—B=+—8
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBETF T
Trade receivables JE U BR 53R 12,774 3,832
Less: loss allowance T B IR B E (850) (2,827)
11,924 1,005

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers
up to 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, net of loss allowance, based on invoice date

AEE-RAZTPEHRZI0X
ERNEEDR - EREBERAH
B FE U BR R (PR B R B R ) MO BR

is as follows: oo :
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBETF T
0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 9,023 —
31 to 60 days 31E60K 1,053 171
61 to 90 days 190K 128 —
Over 90 days @0k 1,720 834
11,924 1,005

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate
their fair values. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the reporting date is the fair value of RMB11,924,000
(2020: RMB1,005,000).

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in USD and RMB.

RSB &R B EAEARIES

A -

JEW BRI BREE B A N A EHE
HoRBEAH ZREERR
EEH DA B A RE924000
T(ZZEZF F: A K #1,005000

JL) ©

EUEROERMENETEAR

5t -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R M R

11 Trade receivables, other receivables 11 FEUR BR X - H b FEUL X
and prepayments (continued)
(b) Other receivables and prepayments

HEENTE @
(b) At A8 U 378 % 44 30

31 December

+=A=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETF T
Other receivables H fth B W 5K T8
— Third parties — %= 6,767 4,086
Value-added tax receivable FEWIEE 7,150 8,554
Prepayments TE FRIB
— Third parties —%=H 22,983 1,736
36,900 14,376
Analysed as: DT
Current Bl ER 23,757 14,376
Non-current prepayments JE BN HA 78 1~ 3R 18 13,143 —
36,900 14,376

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate
their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of each class of receivables
mentioned above.

The carrying amounts of other receivables and
prepayments are denominated in the following

Hib R AN REERLA L
BERE -

P& B AT E B & K E B AR

AL B R EWFIRN D AE -

H A 8 W R TR e TR S FROR Y R
BNATIE®E:

currencies:
31 December

+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
—EC-—F —EZFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®ETF T
RMB AR 24,900 741
HKD BT 11 12
usD ETT 11,249 10,934
KGS ES 740 2,689
36,900 14,376
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12 RERREFEY

31 December

12 Cash and cash equivalents

+=-—BA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETF T
Cash on hand FHEES® 914 349
Cash at banks H|ITHER 22,969 15,715
Total cash and cash equivalents BekReEEBYWES 23,883 16,064
Maximum exposure to credit risk T & ) & A5 B & B 22,969 15,715

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

REeMREEEMATIEEFE:

currencies:

31 December

+=—B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETFTT
RMB AR 14,639 10,581
usD D 1,305 2,247
HKD BT 217 1,892
Others H b 7,722 1,344
23,883 16,064

RITERFERREEL - FE - RAF
SREREHORLSREE  HY
BEROES -

Cash at banks are placed in major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong, the PRC, Australia and Kyrgyzstan where there
is no history of default.

& & I K BR8P B O 2 A
ZHNEE B AR A ROAR ©

The remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.
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13 Ordinary shares, preference

13 EEKR EBERRRG

shares and share premium eyl
Equivalent
Equivalent Nominal nominal
Nominal nominal Number of value of value of
Number of value of value of convertible convertible convertible
ordinary ordinary ordinary preference preference preference Share
shares shares shares shares shares shares premium Total
EEREE GE: TER  TEREXR
EEREE EBRAE S$ER BrREE BERAE HESER RHEE @t
HKD RMB'000 HKD RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
BT AREFL BT ARETR ARBTT ARBTT
Authorised: EE
Ordinaryshares of HKD0S  H=F-F§-F—-H-
cachat 1 January 2000,  —E-FE+-f
31 December 2020 and ST-AR-E--%
31 December 2021 TZA=+-B5RkE
H0SETHERR 4770491507 2,385,2645,753 - - - - - -
Convertible preference
shares of HKD0.5 each at
1 January 2020,
31 December 2020 and g
31 December 2021 [notea)  EOSELMTEAE
ER (M) - - - 7,006,000,000 3503,000,000 - - -
Issued: EELE
Ordinary shares of HKDO0.5
eachat 1 January 2020, z
31 Decernber 2020 and “t+-ARZZ=-%
31 December 2021 TZA=+-BERAE
ESETHERR 4770491507 2,385,265,753 200153 - - - 8,376,605 10,398,139
Covertible preference shares — -A-A-Z
of HKDO.5 each at RRETZA=T-
1 January 2000, “E-E+ZR
31 Decernber 2020 and t-BERER
31 December 2021 [notedl ~ 05BTLAVATBEREER
(Fiite) - - - 7,006,000,000 3503,000,000 3100000 - 3,100,000
Note: B 2
(a)  In December 2018, the Company issued a total of the 7,006,000,000 a) RZZT-N\F+h  KXRAREMRITERE
convertible preference shares with nominal value of HKD0.50 each, ABETTA H7,006,000,0000% & I E(E0.5078
amounting to HKD3,503,000,000 (equivalent to RMB3,100,000,000] ﬁE’JTE}ﬁES‘EJ& 48 %8 7%3,503,000,000
to a bank creditor to settle bank borrowings and interests totaling % t(8 B » A R #3,100,000,0007T)
RMB3,100,000,000. The 7,006,000,000 convertible preference LA 18 {5 4 E TEREFNEEHEARK

shares consisted of three classes, 2,330,000,000 of class A shares,
2,330,000,000 of class B shares and 2,346,000,000 of class C shares.
Ordinary shares converted from convertible preference shares can be
transferred without restriction, while the ordinary shares converted
from class B and class C convertible preference shares will be subject to
a lock-up period of six and twelve months, respectively.

Holders of the convertible preference shares are not entitled to the right
to vote at any general meeting of the Company, yet they have the right
to attend such meetings. They have the rights to receive any dividends
pari passu to the holders of ordinary shares on the basis of the number
of shares converted. Except for the mentioned, each Convertible
Preference Share shall have the same rights as each of the Ordinary
Shares.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, no convertible preference shares had
been converted into ordinary shares.

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R
14 LR BERRN —

AEERAD
(a) HRABESAIBRES

14 Share-based payment — Group
and Company
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the Shareholders
dated 24 October 2010, selected employees were granted
a total share options of 62,500,000 shares [the “Pre-IPO
Share Options”) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The exercise
price per share under the Pre-IPO Share Options
shall be equal to a 50% discount to the Offer Price (i.e.
HKD4 per share, the exercise price of the outstanding
share options granted has been adjusted to HKD20 per
consolidated share of HK0.50 each with effect from 29
March 2016). Each of the Pre-IPO Share Options has
a 10-year exercisable period, from 19 November 2010
("Old Grant Date’), and ending on the expiration of the
tenth anniversary of the date of acceptance of the grant
of options, on 26 October 2020. As at 31 December 2020,
the number of outstanding share options granted has
been adjusted for the effect of share consolidation and
no share options were vested and exercisable after the
share consolidation adjustment. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme has expired during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Commencing from the date on which trading in the
shares of the Company first commenced on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, being 19
November 2010 ("Listing Date”], the expiry of first,
second, third, and fourth anniversaries of the Listing
Date, the relevant grantee may exercise options up
to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100% respectively. No
additional share options were granted pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year.

gl
RIEREA-—ZT—ZTF+A T
AMRREEAZE  FRES
EETER ARSI ERER
S((ERAEREANBRETS )
TH T4 $£62,500,0008% f% 17 & B8 A%
(B AHBREABERE]D -
BERAREENBREETSE
IR ITEEREEENZE
50% (Bl g 4B T B —~
FZAZt+hLBBEEEMRT
FHEBRENTEEEARATR
H{E0.50% T &R & #1920
BIC) o B BE R ARBEAER
EHBTFOEH AT %
F+—AThhA(EREAH))®E
EEMENERBEETBRAFTER
B  BI—E2E-FF+ A=+~
HeRZZEZTEF+_H="1—
B &lRiheHARE  R1TE
EREHEIBROHEHTEM
FARRYEERECRBRAT
fF o BXAFEEERETE
BEREE-_ZT - TF+_A=1+—
BIEFE &R °

AARRRMDABRE BB A
FREEER BT —ZTF+—
A+hAB(LEwE®))  EWHEEH
F— B BZRFNEFE
WEB  BEAR AR D BIITHE
BERENSZRZ20% ~ 40% ~ 60% -
80% K100% c FATZIRIEBE X
AHAEEREREFESTRD
B RE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R M R

14 Share-based payment — Group

and Company (continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 24 October
2010, determined using the binominal model (the
“Model”), ranging from HKD4.38 to HKD5.17 per option.
The significant inputs into the Model were the share price
of HKDS8 at the Listing Date, exercise price shown above,
expected dividend vyield rate of 1.32%, risk-free rate of
2.09%, an expected option life of ten years and expected
volatility of 55.0%. The volatility measured is based
on the average annualised standard deviations of the
continuously compounded rates of return on the share
prices of comparable companies with similar business

operations.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

and their related exercise prices are as follows:

14 BURDBERBH X —

AEBRALNTE @

(a) BX AR EABERES
gl
RZE—ZEEF+AZTHEAED
MERENAEFER AR
BRX(ERXDET SHBERE
NF4.388 T ES17HETT o B H

BLEBERN LT ABOKRE
88T~ FulifTE(E - TEEIR B U
= %E1.32% ~ &R B F E2.09% -
TEHEREFRTFRBEHK
855.0% ° & 18 Ty 4R & &8 & s (L
E¥EBMA LB AT RENTEE
B R R W T FE AT R =T

= °

RTEEREHENZEFH N AN
FRITEEEW T

Average exercise
price in HKD per Number of share

share options
BRET
FHTEE BREHE
(thousands)
(F19)
At 1 January 2020 R_EZZEF—H—H 20 875
Lapsed [ 20 (875)

At 31 December 2020
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aRE B IS R R M R
14 LR BERRN —

AEBRALNTE @
(b) BB FEETE

14 Share-based payment — Group
and Company (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally approved and adopted a
share option scheme on 24 October 2010 (the "Share
Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme became
unconditional on 19 November 2010 when the Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Directors
dated 30 April 2012, selected employees were granted
a total of 348,580,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise price per share under
the Share Option Scheme is HKD1.94 per share of
HKDO0.10 each (the exercise price of the outstanding
share options granted has been adjusted to HKD9.70 per
consolidated share of HKDO0.50 each with effect from
29 March 2016). No share option is exercisable prior to
the first anniversary of 30 April 2012 (the "New Grant
Date”). On each of the first, second, third, fourth and
fifth anniversaries of the New Grant Date, a further 20%
of the share options granted to the selected employees
may be exercised, provided that no share option shall be
exercised after 30 April 2022. As at 31 December 2021,
the number of outstanding share options granted has
been adjusted for the effect of share consolidation and
16,800,000 share options were vested and exercisable
(31 December 2020: 16,800,000 share options] after the
share consolidation adjustment.

The fair value of the share options granted on 30 April
2012, determined using the Model, ranged from HKDO0.63
to HKDO.64 per option. The significant inputs into the
Model were the share price of HKD1.94 at the New
Grant Date, the exercise price shown above, expected
dividend yield rate of 4.66%, risk-free rate of 1.14%, an
expected option life of 10 years and expected volatility of
54.50%. The volatility measured is based on the average
annualised standard deviations of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the share prices of
comparable companies with similar business operations.

KRR ZZE—FTF+A=-+T
B A & 1 R B — 18 fE IR
FrEl((ERESE) - BRER
ER-_ZE—ZF+—A+HILAR
REROEERH I ER LW
RE K = AR o

BEAHRA-_ZT——EMWA=1+
HRNESEEMrRrEE BFRE
EERTHERBREASETAH
348,580,00017 & A 4 - BE AR 5T
SETHERTEEASREA
010 T E R MI.4E (B
—TE-RE=ZA-TABREET
HARITEBRENTEES AR
ABEREEISE THERA G
BE 159707 0) e RZE——F I
A=Z+R(#HBEEHDEE—A
FHT - WEBREN TITE - A
IR EERE - FF=
FNrMFERRFERER  EBE
ERENFEEBNE—HITE
AT HERI20% 0 M —ZF = —F
A=Z+BHETaTEERE - ®
—E-—F+ZA=+—H &
D E GraRE - RITEBRE
HEXBHEHTEMAERE
16,800,00017 8 Ax 7 2 55 8 R A1 1T
F(ZEZZ2F+A=+—H:
16,800,00017 B8 A% #E) ©

RIE——FNMA=+EHRENE
RENARERAERETE
BHEBEREN T0.63%8 T E0.64
B - BANMEZL2HBIERHT
RO HEARRE1.948 T ~ FalifT
FE  TBEIR B EEL66% - &
BB FIR114% ~ THEAE EF R
104 % 78 B K 18 54.50% ° R 1@ T3
BIEEEEUEEN LS AR
BENFEEARFENFHF
EEEREFE -
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14 Share-based payment — Group 14 ARG AERNZN —

and Company (continued) REERAQT @
(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) BB #EST & (®)

Average exercise
price in HKD per Number of share

share options
BERET
FHTEE BREHE
(thousands)
(F1%)
At 1 January 2020 R-_ZE-_ZEF—H—H 9.70 25,972
Lapsed B R 9.70 (1,211)
At 31 December 2020, RZF-FTFE+-A=+—H0"
1 January 2021 and —E—F—A—8BK
31 December 2021 —E-—F+A=+—H 9.70 24,761
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no expense BHE-_Z-_—F+-H=+—H
was recognised in the consolidated statement of IEFE - TERGEE 2EWRE
comprehensive income for share options granted to FHETESEREEBRERR
directors and employees (2020: Nil). No expense is AX(ZT=TF &)  WERE
recognised for the Pre-IPO Share Scheme (2020: Nil) or RARBEEERESE(ZE
Share Option Scheme (2020: Nil]. The Group has no legal “EF E)KBERETE(ZZE
or constructive obligations to repurchase or settle the —EF E)BRAAX  c AKEY
options in cash. BATHEEEEUNR & EDOK

REEBE -

176 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

15 Other reserves

15 Hiti{#E

Share based
payment Translation
reserve reserve Total
URHAER
HXARE EifE #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT ARBTTT
At 1 January 2020 RZZ_ZF5-H—H 18,099 193,048 211147
Exchange difference on translation R E G EERE K ZH
of foreign operations - (102,612) (102,612)
Lapse of employee share options B B B RE X (5.336) - (5,334)
At 31 December 2020 RZFZFF
+ZRA=+—H 12,763 90,436 103,199
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—H—H 12,763 90,436 103,199
Exchange difference on translation  # &GN & EME K £ 5
of foreign operations - (17,750) (17,750)
At 31 December 2021 i
+ZR=+—H 12,763 72,686 85,449
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16 Trade and other payables 16 FE{SRR A ELA B K

18

31 December

+t=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR¥EFTT
Trade payables JE 151 BR 3K 256,325 262,493
Other payables H At JE 5K IE
— Third parties - =] 84,241 91,877
— Related parties — B 39,511 42,706
Contract liabilities (note a) AR aEF ) 7,682 -
Receipts in advance (note b) 78 U8R R (B 7Eb) 25,650 —
Accrued expenses FEETRX
— Payroll and welfare — I&EREF 24,827 23,807
— Interests — F B 431,040 492,486
— Custodian fee —-EEE 26,521 26,521
— Other tax-related payables — Eh T 75 48 B8 FE A~ 3R 0E 15,716 1171
— Others — H 14,159 15,915
Total trade and other payables J& <t B 3% % EL h & A< R 1A
HE 925,672 966,976

RZE——FR_ZF_FTF+_A
—t+—H ERBZHHNEMNER

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables based on invoice date were as follows:

MR DTN

31 December

t=ZRA=t—8H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TZTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T AR¥EFTT
0-30 days 0&30K 737 2,081
31-60 days 3NE60K 24 —
61-90 days 61290K 50 —
Over 90 days B E90K 255,514 260,412
256,325 262,493
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16 B RRF R HA RS

16 Trade and other payables (continued)

18 )
Notes: B 2
a)  Movements in contract liabilities: la) BHEEZH:
2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBFT
Balance at 1 January RN—A—B&&E & - —
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of FRAURMAEERERES
receiving forward sales deposits during the ~ EEHH A& 4 & E1E 0
year 232,168 —
Decrease in contract liabilitiesasaresult of FAERKZEHRHEL
recognising revenue during the year BERD (224,486) —
Balance at 31 December R+-_A=+—HBRN&% 7,682 —
(b)  Receiptsin advance b)  TEUERK

Receipts in advance mainly included an amount of RMB25,650,000
received by Nantong Zhuosheng in relation to a sales agreement
to dispose of certain machinery and equipment (the "Assets to be
Disposed”] to an independent third party. Since the Assets to be
Disposed had been pledged by Nantong Zhuosheng to a financial
institution for the borrowing owed by the Disposal Group, the Assets to
be Disposed are not available for immediate sale and the transaction
is not yet completed as at 31 December 2021. As a result, the disposal
proceeds received from the purchaser is included in receipts in advance
as at 31 December 2021.

The carrying amount of trade and other payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

ERERFEREEERBLIE=-FTHE
ETHELLE(BEEEEDNHEER
i BB R UE A A R 25,650,000
T -HARBHEEECHEBERME
BERHESENEBERERTFSREE B
i HEREARENBLHE  MZXHN
—E-—F+ A=+ -—BEATK - B
b BE KRB EEMEREF AR
T F+Z A=+ B BERER-

JE A B R e EL At FE A SRR RV BREE D
T3 EH5IE:

31 December

+=—B=+—H

2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETF T
RMB AR 53,570 22,201
UsD ETT 377,179 389,732
HKD T 494,877 555,043
Others HAib 46 —
925,672 966,976
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. I+ =
17 Borrowings 17 &K
31 December
+t=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR¥EFTT
Non-current JEBNHA
Other borrowings H b {8 5% 1,012,809 532,267
Promissory notes A ER 1,149,865 917,055
2,162,674 1,449,322
Current B &8
Borrowings from a financial R B R
institution 306,426 —
Bank borrowings RITE K — 314,849
Promissory notes AR 1,059,364 1,028,537
Other borrowings H A {83 51,625 600,183
1,417,415 1,943,569
Total borrowings BB 3,580,089 3,392,891
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17 BorrOWingS (Continued)

Borrowings amounted to RMB2,391,543,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB2,262,072,000] were secured
by guarantee from a director of the Company, certain
shareholders of related parties and the Company and share
capital of certain related parties.

As at 31 December 2021, borrowings of the Group amounted
to RMB3,580,089,000 (2020: RMB3,392,891,000], out of which
RMB597,969,000 were overdue (2020: RMB1,365,178,000),
while borrowings of the Group amounting to RMB8,618,000
triggered cross-default terms as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 and became immediately repayable. Total overdue
interest payables of the Group amounted to RMB431,040,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB492,486,000). As at
the date of the approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has not obtained waivers to comply with
these cross-default terms from the relevant lenders; nor have
these lenders taken any action against the Group to demand
immediate repayment.

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

aRE B IS R R M R

17 B @

RZZE_—F+ZA=+—H &R
AR #2391543,000L (ZF =T 5
AR #2,262,072,00000) B AR A —F
B HEIRARANE TRER
HEER - ARE T BT A RAE
S

RZE-—F+-_A=+—H A5E
B 18 A R #3,580,089,000 T (Z & —
T AR%3,392,891,0007T) - EFA
R#597969,000cEBmE (=TT F :
AR #1365178,0007T) - RAEBR-Z
TFRZIEZEFFA=+—BH
BB A RS 618,000t KB KT
B NENIET  AMEEE - K&
BER—E_—F+-_A=+—Hma
HipE < 7| B 4858 A A R 431,040,000
(ZZEZZTF : ARM492,486,0007T) °
REZEGRETHRREMELR K
EEHMARESHEBERABTZER
NEHNGERZEH G  ZEERALE
HAEERREMTEERIBAER
FRIE ©

AEBEERERGHENAT

31 December

+=A=+—8
2021 2020
—E=-% —F-%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR T T
Within 1 year —F R 1,417,415 1,943,569
Between 1 and 2 years —5 2,162,674 1,449,322
3,580,089 3,392,891

The Group's borrowings repayable based on the scheduled
repayment dates is the same as the above table.

The carrying amounts of the non-current borrowings
approximate their fair values.

N LN A IDE S [P b =
M8 FRMER -

FEOREFRNEEAEREEQLEM

E o
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17 BorrOWingS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

17 B @

fERNEmELA NI EEEE:

31 December

+=B=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBFT
RMB AREE 124,112 12,573
HKD owi 2,572,091 2,444,281
usD ET 883,886 936,037
3,580,089 3,392,891

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate

AEEERAEONEZEHRANE

changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

MEEBBHERDT

31 December

+=—BA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETF T
6 months or less ~NEA%ZA 1,395,026 1,363,547
6-12 months NE+ A 22,389 580,022
1-5 years —ZRE 2,162,674 1,449,322
3,580,089 3,392,891
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17 BorrOWingS (Continued)

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

17 B @

AEBAEATREREREE

31 December

+t=ZA=+—H
2021 2020
= —EoFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR¥EFTT
Expiring within one year —FRNHH - -
Expiring beyond one year —F1E B 797,044 881,275
797,044 881,275

The effective interest rates and details of borrowings at the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position are as

follows:

REAEMBRAKRAMZERNER

NFIN
EREEmT

31 December

+t=A=t—-H
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ZT-THF
Borrowings from a financial © R (R R
institution 7.97% —
Bank borrowings RIT &K - 7.97%
Promissory notes EESTE ¥ 7.00% 7.00%
Other borrowings (excluding H & X
interest-free loans) (TERFEREER) 5.00% 5.00%
31 December
t=HA=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
Gross debt — fixed interest rate B AR — BTN X 3,273,663 3,078,042
Gross debt — variable interest rate & %5 48 %8 — )% ) FI| & 306,426 314,849
Borrowings from a financial institution SRIBBER

Borrowings from a financial institution of RMB306,426,000
was transferred from bank borrowings in December 2021
(2020: Bank borrowings of RMB314,849,000) is overdue and

immediately repayable.

RIB-—F+-_AEB AL mEHERE
SR ITIE TR A R #306,426,0000T (=

FoTE RN

AN E#314,849,000

BB AR AERE -
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17 BorrOWingS (Continued)

Other borrowings

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 B @
HitfER

31 December

+=ZA=+-—H
2021 2020
—B=-—fF —TETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥EFTT
Loans from an entity controlledbya REREREELHREB
close family member of Mr. Zhang  #E#I 8 Z & M) & 3
Zhi Rong (Note i) (PR D 321,466 368,793
Loan from an entity controlled by & B 3R & 48 55 & 15 %1 &9
Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong (Notes ii and Eiﬁfﬁﬁ?iﬁi(MTuinlinO
iii) 700,409 719,927
Loan from a third party (Note iv) KEE=ZFTWER
(B 3Eiv) 42,559 43,730
1,064,434 1,132,450
Less: Non-current portion ko JEBNHEAER o (1,012,809) (532,267)
Current portion of other borrowings £ {& 3k = Bl B8 £ 5 51,625 600,183

Notes:
(i) As at 31 December 2021, the Group has drawn down RMB388,541,000
(2020: RMB404,136,000] from an entity controlled by a close family
member of Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount is RMB321,466,000 (2020: RMB360,140,000) and it is repayable
in December 2023.

(ii) As at 31 December 2021, the Group has drawn down USD129,393,000
(2020: USD119,708,000) (equivalent to approximately RMB821,915,000),
in total from the loan agreement, provided by an entity controlled
by Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong, who agreed to provide a loan facility up
to USD250,000,000 (2020: same] (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,588,025,000) to the Group for the funding of repayment of
the secured bank loan, the oilfield exploration and operation, and
the general working capital of the Group. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amount of this loan facility is RMB691,343,000 (2020:
RMB719,927,000) and it is payable by 31 December 2023.

[iiil  As of 31 December 2021, the Group has drawn down RMB9,066,000
(2020: RMB?9,100,000] from the loan agreement provided by an entity
controlled by a close family member of Mr. Zhang Zhi Rong, who agreed
to provide a loan facility up to RMB40,000,000 to the Group for the

funding in respect of the energy exploration and production segment.

liv]  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has drawn
down USD6,700,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB42,559,000] loan
from an independent third party at 5% per annum and is overdue and

immediately repayable (2020: USD6,700,000).

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A

GEE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZE-—FE+-_A=Z=+—H KA&EH
R 5B ST T B PT IE BI ) BB 4R B
AR 388541000 (ZE T F: AR
#404,136,0000T) c R=ZFE=—F+= A
=+—B  EEEAARKE321466,0007T

(== 4 : AR¥360,140,0007T) © AR
T =FFAEE-

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—8 &Xx&£H
REREBREEMEGERBIER—NER
% 3% 4% HR 129,393,000 T (Z T = &
F:119,708,000% ) (B & RO AR
821,915,0007T) ' ZERBRAEMAEEIRMH
%74250,000,000F 0 (ZZ=FF : {HRA)
(8 & R # A R #1,588,025,0007T) H) B 3
BE - REEAEBRITER  HAHE
ke AEE—REEECRBES -
RZZEZ—F+=-A=+—8 ZEXa&
BIREEAARE$1343,000L(Z 2 =%
F:ARMKET199270007T) AR -E -
F+ZA=+—BZHIEREZ-

BE-_ZT-—&#+-A=+—8 A&£H
ERREBREETHEMITHNEBREMH
KB IR IA R #9,066,0000 (=%
—TE ARKE9000007T) REERE
M A 5 B 12 1 % R A R #40,000,0007T
MERME  AAKENERYEREE

REERES -

HE-_Z-_—F+=-A=+—HLEFE"
ANAR— BB E = IREHE IR
6,700,000 7t (A8 & R 49 A R #42,559,000
L) ZERIRF K% E BHE &
N ESLENEE (=T = F 4 :6,700,000%
JT) e
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17 BorrOWingS (Continued)

17 B @

Promissory Notes AHEE
RMB'000
AR¥EFTT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZF+-A=+—HL
FE
Opening amount as at 1 January 2020 RZEZTF-—A—AWVIE%E 2,140,289
Repayment BN (74,268)
Exchange difference X =5 (120,429)
Closing amount as at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-_ZTF+_A=+—8BH
ARG HE 1,945,592
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—f%t+=-A=t+—HL
FE
Opening amount as at 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—A—H0NHYE% 1,945,592
Repayment B (28,282)
Purchase consideration (Note 25) 8 B (B (P 5225) 115,993
Unwinding interest FRAE 8,119
Reclassification from accrued interests dueto B E & & K RIEE £ EET
renewal of promissory note MEEFHHE 229,986
Exchange difference M H =5 (62,179)
Closing amount as at 31 December 2021 RZFEZ—F+ZH=1T—88
HIRE#8 2,209,229

18 Deferred tax liabilities

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and

18 EXERIBEEE

UTMELEHRAAERFRNERRE

movements thereon during the year: #:

Fair value

adjustments on

acquisitions

WE=EE

DNREHAE

RMB'000

ARBF T

At 1 January 2021 W_ZE_—F—H—H -

Deferred tax arising from acquisition of WENB AR EAEIELERIE

subsidiary (Note 25) (Pff 5£25) 62,034
Credited to profit or loss HAEZR (2,021)
At 31 December 2021 R-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H 60,013
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19 Expenses by nature

19 EMHEE & 2B

2021 2020
— —E-FHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBF T
Amortisation of intangible assets | & EEE (M Es)

(Note 8) 1,489 1,966
Auditors’ remuneration % BRAD B €

— Audit services — %R 2,484 2,665

— Major transaction —EBARRS - 1332
Bank charges RITHE 99 47
Consultancy and professional fees ~ AN EEE A 4,939 17,210
Cost directly associated with BT EHEEMEBNKAR

inventories 226,858 16,073
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #% - BB M 58 & A K F A i

equipment and right-of-use assets & E#T & (K 76 &% 7)

(Notes 6 and 7) 24,210 18,165
Employee benefits expenses EERAMX 19,537 16,298
Insurance premiums R 718 399
Other expenses Hab & 14,870 15,559
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKA - HERTIHHEE

marketing expenses, general and A —MRITBRERES

administrative expenses 295,204 89,714

20 Employee benefits expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)

20 EEEAREX (BEE
Exad)

2021 2020

—E-—fF —EETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARETF T

Salaries and wages HehIE 17,935 15,433
Social security costs HERERAK 1,542 756
Contribution to pension plans RN® 5T 8% 60 109
19,537 16,298
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20 EERAAX (BfEE

20 Employee benefits expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
five directors (2020: Five directors). The emoluments of
the five directors (2020: Five directors) are reflected in
the analysis presented in Note 26.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no directors or
the five highest paid individuals received any emoluments
from the Group as an inducement to join, upon joining the
Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2020: Same).

The Group provides retirement benefits to all eligible
Hong Kong employees under the Mandatory Provident
Fund ("MPF Scheme’]. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group and its employees make monthly contributions
to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ salaries as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation.
Contributions of both the Hong Kong subsidiaries and
their employees are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary
and are not subject to any limitation. The MPF Scheme
is administered by an independent trustee and its assets
are held separately from those of the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2021, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under the retirement
benefits scheme utilised to reduce future contributions
(2020: Same).

EHM) @

(a)

(b)

(c)

TS HFMAL
HE-_Z-_—F+=-H=1+—8H
HFEE AEERUESHFMA
TARRES(ZE_TF A%
EF) mARESR(ZZE=F
AHER)NIES R 262 2T
A o

HE-_Z-_—F+-H=1—8H
IHFE - AEEBEARSIES
AN e HA TN RER
0 B8 ok Bk 5 AR 55 B AR ok DA B B
HEAAMNESIMEMME (=
TZFF MR -

REBRERHEAESE
(BB E D AT EMESE
HiEERERKETR - B ER
Beitd AEEREREEAR
BEZH 2 (ERIZAHFNEQE
©EB) 5% % Ao TE &t 8l
N BEWBRARAREREBZE
A&m 55 A15008 T - B
hHBE o ERBEREMEREE
NEZAERRS - wfES T30 Hh
BUETEAMER HEEHEAN
EENEESHERE -

HE-_Z-_—4F+-_A=+—H
IEFE  AEBBERERBRA
DRI B IR R AR B 5T EL Uk
HE(ZZ-ZFF|HR) -
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21 Other gains — net

2021 2020
B —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AR T T
Net foreign exchange gain (Note 24) %M & U 2z /5 B8 (P 5£24) 3,632 16,287
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BEIZED
plant and equipment (EB18) W= (3,380) 106
252 16,393
22 Finance income and costs 22 @B WA R A
2021 2020
—E-— —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Finance income: mEWRS:
_Imputed interestincome  EEMEMA 73,965 . .36641
Finance costs: RMERA:
Interest expenses AR
— Borrowings — R (45,072) (51,427)
— Promissory notes — & EE (155,603) (155,868)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) #MNEU S,/ (E518) 558
(Note 24) (B 5F24) 97,379 135,062
(103,296) (72,233)
Finance costs — net MERE—FHE (29,331) (35,592)

188 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Income tax

Income tax expense of RMB5,998,000 (2020: RMB8,000]
represents current tax provision for EIT in the PRC for the
year of RMB8,019,000 (2020: RMB8,000) net off by deferred tax
credit of RMB2,021,000 (2020: Nil).

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Group had no
assessable profit in Hong Kong. All PRC subsidiaries and
Kyrgyzstan subsidiary are subject to EIT rates of 25% and 10%,
respectively.

The tax on the Group’s results before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to results of the consolidated
entities as follows:

aRE B IS R R M R

23 g

FA - FAEHAS ARKS9980005T

—E_ZFF: AR¥S000T) B
B 3 A5 R A R #8,019,000 (=&
—T 4 ARES0007T) HIE IE AR 18 K
B ARE2021,000c(ZE-TF: F)
TEH R BV EARR TE B 8 -

HRAEBY EERBSEEERBRF
HoOBREE - —FER T T
FH+-_A=Z+—BHULEFETEREE
%‘J?%W’Etlj%éﬁoﬁﬁﬁﬁtﬂifﬁ%ﬁﬂ
LEBTHMB AR AD RKR25% R
10%’9@%?&%&%&%%&%&0

7R SR B R B AT AR RO BIR A RIS BR A
FABERXEMERNINEFIRE
EEMERESE  WTIAR:

2021 2020
—E=—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥EFTT
(Loss)/profit before income tax B PSR (B 18) FIE (171,154) 764,965
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates  ¥&2 74 B8 72 &) ) B A i F A B A
applicable to profit of respective MEFE KR IA
companies (25,744) (126,018)
Income not subject to tax HART M A (29,571) (32,924)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR B X
purposes 59,488 150,653
Effect of tax losses not recognised ~ KRERRIEEIEMNTE 2,054 8,297
Utilisation of previously B AR ABROBIEEE
unrecognised tax losses (229) —
5,998 8

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB532,189,000 (2020: approximately
RMB560,036,000] available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of such
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams. The
tax losses in Hong Kong may carry forward indefinitely. The
unrecognized tax losses in the PRC and Kyrgyzstan will expire
from 2021 to 2025.

RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H8 &
%lﬁﬂiiﬂﬁmlﬂéﬂa AR
532189000 L (ZE T F : HARK
560,036,0007T) 7] FA 7A #5 88 R 2R FI ) o
FR A 7R 3 OB 2R 2 DA TE ORI - A 4
BRZEEERRELERIE B0
HEENERBLEZ  FBELERS
ﬂﬁﬁ’\]*ﬁﬁuu%ﬁlﬁﬂgﬁgﬁ—rﬁ’\ =E-—F
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24 Net foreign exchange gains

24 FNER #2778

The exchange differences credited in the profit or loss are
included as follows:

FPABEMERZBMT:

2021 2020
—F=—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
Net foreign exchange gains taken to: &9 A &9 I [E U 25 75 %8 ¢
Other gains — net [Note 21) Hoftb Uz — JFRE (B 7 21) 3,632 16,287
Finance costs [Note 22) Bh & A A (B 5E22) 97,379 135,062
101,011 151,349
25 Business combination 25 K6t
Summary of acquisition WIBEEME

On 22 January 2021, the Group acquired equity interest and
obtained control in Nantong Zhuosheng (the "Acquisition”).
According to the article of association of Nantong Zhuosheng
and agreement between all shareholders, it was agreed that
the Group has 50.46% voting right in appointment of the board
of directors and:

e  Before the completion of capital contribution of RMB143
million by the Group, the Group is entitled to 50.46%
share of any net profit made after the Acquisition. The
accumulated net profit before the Acquisition (the “Pre-
acquisition Profit’) will be shared by the ratio of total
paid capital of the Group to the total authorised capital;
and

e Upon the completion of capital contribution of RMB143
million by the Group, the Group is also entitled to 50.46%
sharing of the Pre-acquisition Profit.

Nantong Zhuosheng is principally engaged in provision of
tank storage and associated services for fuel oil and related
products in the PRC.

The Acquisition reflects the Company’s strategy of investing in
oil and-gas-related storage and logistic projects, which would
enable the Group to expand its energy business vertically. With
current secured contracts on hand, Nantong Zhuosheng is
expected to bring a positive financial impact to the Group by
contributing stable income and cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 Business combination (continued)
Summary of acquisition (Continued)

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired,
and goodwill are as follows:

aRE B IS R R M R

25 £S5 0t @
KWEBEESEEZEm

EMBERE BHBEESERS
B HENT

RMB’000
AR¥ T
Purchase consideration BERE
Promissory Note (Note 17) A R (M 5E17) 115,993
Contingent consideration receivables JE s 3X AR B (B RE ()
(Note (i)) (3,110)
Total purchase consideration BEREHALE 112,883

The total considerations paid by the Group with respect to the
Acquisition will be satisfied by:

. Promissory Note in the principal amount of
RMB132,800,000 issued by the Group to the Vendor for a
term of two years from the date of the Acquisition; and

e Subsequent to the date of the Acquisition, the Purchaser
will make capital contribution of RMB143,000,000 to

74 82 5 B B S B R (B
BBIAT 5 R

cRb

LR

s AEBEREBESHITAZSEA/A
E< #£132,800,0007T &) 7% X ZE 4 -
BRBEREARESSHAMFE:
54

e RUWBEBEBAHE BEHFEHR
e R EE A RE143,000,000

Nantong Zhuosheng. JT °

Fair Value

DNAE

RMB’000

ARBT T

Cash R&E 159
Trade receivables JE I BR X 3,295
Other receivables H & W R IE 34,529
Inventories TFE 1,766
Property, plant and equipment (Note é) L E Sy E AR 118,809
Right-of-use assets (Note 7) AL E(FET7) 219,318
Intangible assets (Note 8) B & &= (i 5E8) 398
Trade payables JE 1 BR 3K (28,123)
Other payables H b & 5K 1AE (8,651)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIBAAE (62,034)
Net identifiable assets acquired BRI AR EEFE 279,466
Less: non-controlling interests R FE 1R AR R (199,930
Add: goodwill (Notes 8 and 25 iv) o R (M EEs k25 iv) 33,347
Total purchase consideration EEREAZE 112,883
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25 Business combination (continued)

Summary of acquisition (Continued)

Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiary is as follows:

25 £S5t @)
U Bg = TE A E ()
eI BATMNES R A FELD

T
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Purchase consideration paid ERNEERE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EREREEREEEY 159
159

(il Significant estimate: contingent consideration

receivables

The contingent consideration receivables are complied
with a profit guarantee and put option. The profit
guarantee is for the exchange of control for Nantong
Zhuosheng and therefore considered as contingent
consideration receivable and measured at fair value.
The valuation of the contingent consideration receivable
is valued by an independent valuer (the "Valuer”), in
accordance with IFRS 13 and is based on probabilistic
approach. The value of contingent receivable is derived
from the cash flow compensation as a result of the
possibility of failure to meet the guaranteed profit
by Nantong Zhuosheng. As such, the Valuer adopted
the probabilistic approach to consider the probability
weighted distribution of the possible outcomes.

The fair value of the put option was estimated by the
Valuer and was calculated by multiplying the value of
the put option of approximately RMB21,874,000 and the
probability of the put option being exercised of 10%.

lii] Accounting policy choice for non-controlling

interests

The Group recognises non-controlling interests in
an acquired entity either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets. This decision is made
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. For the non-
controlling interests in Nantong Zhuosheng, the Group
elected to recognise the non-controlling interests at
its proportionate share of the acquired net identifiable
assets.

192 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A

(il

(i)

B EREARE

e K ARE D BT M BRE
ROHHIRE - MBREBEDANARE
MR G  BURER R
ERIAREBLIZAREFE -
FEU S ARAE 2 B E T R IB LA
18 B ([ 18 B0 1) AR & B0 B B 7% ¥R
SRR EBRRAR LR ERE
EITHE - RBUWRKZEE
THE B I8 R A BE R 2 AR &
MEMEFEL 2R e R EMER
g At - HEMRAHREE
NEBAREEROBEMED
f o

ROHEE R E T m G ER G
oW ARABREENARE
21,874,0007C € 33 ) BB P GEJE 1T
FHR10%TE -

PR o ) &5 B E
P

A E R A R R I R
R i 7 B R T 3 B R
16 #0171 B 32 4 B R ¢
Bt a5 - HORTE YRR T
PEH o B RIIRIS B A0 FE I AR AR
3 R B S (5 TR
7 5 B 7 1A 0 L ) R R 1
B 35



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

25 £S5 0t @

25 Business combination (continued)
Summary of acquisition (Continued)

(iii)

liv)

vl

i

Trade and other receivables

The gross amount of trade and other receivables at the
date of the Acquisition amounted to RMB4,990,000 and
RMB35,930,000 respectively, net of loss allowance of
RMB1,695,000 and RMB1,401,000 respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill of RMB33,347,000, which is not deductible
for tax purposes, comprises the acquired assembled
workforce and the value of expected synergies arising
from the combination of the acquired business with the
existing operations of the Group.

Non-controlling interests

The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling
interests at its proportionate share of the acquired net
identifiable assets.

Post-acquisition financial performance

The total revenue and net profit contributed by
Nantong Zhuosheng from its date of the Acquisition to
31 December 2021 and included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
RMB57,863,000 and RMB18,449,000 respectively.
Had Nantong Zhuosheng been consolidated from 1
January 2021, there would not be any material impact
to the Group's consolidated revenue and profit for the
year ended 31 December 2021. In determining these
amounts, management has assumed that the fair value
adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on
the date of acquisition would have been the same if the

acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021.

WEEEESEm
liii) JE U4 R 70 R B it JE 4 74 1B

BAuﬁzH%%IEEHﬁ JE U AR 3K R

EMERREBEBLEBESAAAR
#4,990,0007T & A R #35,930,000
T MBEEBEESNAARE
1,695,0007T & A R #1,401,0007T °

livl B &

A FR#33,347,000TC O 2 H /B R
oA BERES %bjjﬂﬂA&
WRBEBEALEBEIRFEE
EENBEHBRAEEE-

vl FEZREZ

(il

AEBEZE A EBRESIZL S
f(EE’]%&H&Z%TE&%Ué%@@ﬁﬁ
ORI AR o

W B EIE 1% B & B

mEEFAKESTERREE
T-—F+-_A=+—BE:tA
HE-_ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
IFFEMGEEE R EME2EK
HRANATE B S 28 XOFFE
D RAANR#57863,0007T & AR
#518,449,0007T ° WEBIER N
T-_—F—A—HESLE - TTe
HAEEHE_ZT-_—F+=A8
=+t —HIFEMNEGEE R ERF
/FEJFEEEK?/E EA?ZIE;Z#%
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26 Benefits and interest of directors 26 EEflz ER

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) == % i
The emoluments of every director are set out below: BREZHFMEHINOT
For the year ended 31 December 2021: HE-_ZT-_—F+=-HA=+—H
IEFE:

Emoluments paid or payable i respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAFRRRALASENRLR) ERESRATAIRNFR

Emoluments paid
orreceivablein
respect of director’s
other servicesin
connection with
the management
Basic salaries, Estimated money Employer's  Emoluments paid of the affairs of
housing allowances, valueof  contributiontoa orreceivablein the Company or
other allowance and Discretionary share based retirement  respect of accepting its subsidiary
Fee  benefit-in-kind bonuses payment  benefitscheme office as director undertaking Total
Exge. RERALTY
i34 PUUEEL L4} PEEL
EREER Waff  BWERNE  ABNESRR  ESEMRR
K3 ROz BEEL  hiteHEE WEIRE  CHAEKEN  SHIABNEN &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARRTR AR¥TR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARETR ARRTR

m et

Executive directors EGEE

Chen Giang i Rl - 1500 - - 15 - - 1515
Hong Liang a - 1,000 - - 115 - - 1115
ZhuWen Hua 3¢ - 9% - - 1 - - 1,08
Niu Jianmin i) AR - 1,540 - - 8 - - 142

Independent non-executive directors

Wang Jin Lian 4] - - - - - - m
Zhou Zhan Vi3 - - - - - - m
Lam Cheung Mau 5 - - - - - - 15
Total emoluments BERH %] W - - ki - - 6131
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26 ESN @ RER @

26 Benefits and interest of directors

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person's services as a

REAFRRRIDAZENE

(a) EEHM (&)
B2 Z2-_FF+-A=+—H
HFEE:

R

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
EEESRAERY

Emoluments paid
orreceivable in
respect of director's
ofher services in
connection with

the management
Basic salaries, Estimated money Employer's  Emoluments paid ofthe affairs of
housing allowances, valueof  contributiontoa orreceiablein  the Companyor
ofher allowance and Discretionary share based retirement  respect of accepting fs subsidiary
Fee henefit-in-kind bonuses payment benefitscheme  office as director undertaking Total
BV El
fERRE WEOAER
Ef2ER WER RRENHE  RRREIRE b
e EniE BEEL  HFeAEE WEEHR  ENIEUEH SENEH i
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
NEETT NRETT NEETT ARETT NEETT ARETT NEETT ARETT
ji|
Eveculv directors EGEH
Chen Qiang (] REl 1500 15 1515
Hong Liang iR 100 § 1067
Thu Wen Hua 3¢ 100 8 - 108
Niu Janmin i EERI 120 8 128
Independent non-executive directors
Wang JinLian 0 n
ThouZhan il n
Lam Cheung Mau 0 - n
Toal emluments 25N % 6] n 58
Notes: oY AE
(i) Being the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. (i) BARNBERRITE °

(i) Niu Jianmin was appointed as executive director on 1 March 2020.

i F#ERER=

T_THE=A—H%

A

ERPITES -
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26 Benefits and interest of directors

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any

retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2020: Nil.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Group had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2020:
Nil).

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

27 B (B8) BF

27 (Loss)/earnings per share

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the results attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

(a) BREAXR(EHR) BT

SRERBR)/ BRNHES
VY LN EE LN AEE T
S DASE PYUE B 4T BB AR 0 D04
T -

2021 2020

—E-—& —E T

RMB RMB

AR®T AR

(Loss/earnings per share R (EB), &7 (0.02) 0.07

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are the same as
basic (loss)/earnings per share as the potential dilutive
ordinary shares were not included in the calculation of
diluted loss per share as their inclusion would be anti-
dilutive.

(b) ZR#EF(ER) B

HE-Z-_—F+=-A=+—H
F—E-_ZEF+-_/=+—HI
FE - SREF(ER) AFE
BREAN(EE) BANER T
AR ETREEBEERRTA
BEHSTRRGIAKBELER
Bg) o

Reconciliations of (loss)/earnings used in c) ALGTEER(ER) &
calculating (loss)/earnings per share Mz (E8), BALEHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBF T
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings SRE XK #% (&i8) 2R
per share
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AR E A A FELL
holders of the Company (&18), /78 (185,0686) 782,599
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27 (Loss)/earnings per share icontiniess 27 F8R (E518) " BH @

(d) Weighted average number of shares used (d) RS B2 mEFLIR G5
as the denominator S|
2021 2020
—E-— & —E-THF

Weighted average number of ordinary F{E# & 2 I F15 & i@
shares used as the denominatorin =~ BB EER A F

calculating earnings per share 4,770,491,507 4,770,491,507
Adjustment for calculating earnings st E &M & F 6 FH &

per share:
— Convertible preference share —AEBREER 7,006,000,000  7,006,000,000

Weighted average number of ordinary F{E 5 & 2 hi#& 19 % i@

shares used as the denominatorin =~ REEBFEER AT
calculating earnings per share 11,776,6491,507  11,776,491,507
28 Dividends 28 IR 2.
The Board has resolved not to declare for the payment of final EEgCRBINEBEBRE_T_—F
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). TZA=T—HEFEZRERE (=

TRFE) o
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29 IFER T MEBRM

29 Notes to the consolidated

statement of cash flows

(a) Cash generated from/(used in) operations la) ®&EmMB (FRA)RE
2021 2020
— —TFHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥EFTT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrRETIS R AT (E518) /FI A (171,154) 764,965
Adjustments for: HATRBEELAE:
— Amortisation of intangible — | A E (MY EEs)
assets (Note 8) 1,489 1,966
— Depreciation (Notes 6 and 7) —rE(MFERT) 24,210 18,165
— Provision for restoration cost  — V& 18 Ak 7 % 4 877 2,774
— (Reversal of)/provision for — BRSO EE B (B E)
impairment losses on trade A
receivables (1,977) 2,827
— Impairment loss on property, — ¥ BERZERE
plant and equipment BB — 296,559
— Impairment loss on intangible  — &2 & ZE BB & 18
assets - 864,374
— Imputed interest income — fl B R S A (B 5122)
(Note 22) (73,965) (36,641)
— Interest expenses (Note 22) — 25 s (Bt 5£22) 200,675 207,295
— Loss/(gain) on disposal —HEVE BEEZRED
of property, plant and &8, (W) (B E21)
equipment (Note 21) 3,380 (106)
— Net foreign exchange gains — HNE W &5 JF R (101,011) (151,349)
Change in provision for financial M EERENNBEEEH)
guarantee contracts 163,917 (2,000,011)
Changes in working capital: HEE#EE:
— Inventories —-FE (1,721) 899
— Trade receivables, — R R - H At B URIA
other receivables and R I FIE
prepayments 41,023 1,060
— Trade and other payables — AR R I EoAth JE - R IE (51,735) 24,650
Cash generated from/(used in) rmeEms/ AR
operations 34,008 (2,573)
Interest paid B FLE (1,866) (6,443)
Income tax paid ERFEH (3,783) -
Cash generated from/(used in) rmems/ AR E
operations 28,359 (9,016)
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29 Notes to the consolidated 29 HRERERERMETE @
statement of cash flows (continuea)
(b) Net debt reconciliation b) EXFEHIER
Movements in net debt for the years ended 31 December HE-Z-_ZER-_ZT-_—F+=
2020 and 2021: A=+ —HBLEFEMEK FHE
& :
Liabilities from financing
Other assets activities
HwEE MEETHEE
Borrowings

and advances  Borrowings
Cash/bank due within due after

overdraft 1year 1year Total
BRe/ -FRIE -F£IH
BITEX WERRBR HEX @t
[Note iii)
ka0,

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRE ARBTT ARBT:R

Netdebtasat 1 January2020  R-ZE-FHF

—A-BREKTE 42,851  (2,657,418)  (937,125) (3,551,692)
Cash flow Ben (26,242) (220,094) 234,540 (11,79¢)
Foreign exchange movement HNEZH (545) 81,307 53,755 134,517
Other non-cash movement HEwrRe e (HFi)
(Note i] - 837,133 (800,492) 36,641

Net debt as at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-Z&+_H

S+ -BMEBFE 16,064 (1,959,072) (1,449,322) (3,392,330)

Cash flow BeR 8,022 28,282 (18,330) 17,974

Foreign exchange movement f) B % (203) 44,816 52,563 97,176
Other non-cash movement EwdERe 28 (T

(Note i) - (499,910) 220,884 (279,026)

Extension of Borrowings (Note ii) & X X & (Bff % ii) - 968,469 (968,469) -

Net debt as at 31 December 2021 RZZ=-—%+=-f
T+ -HMEBKFE 23,883 (1,6417,415)  (2,162,674)  (3,556,206)
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29 Notes to the consolidated

statement of cash flows (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Other non-cash movements during 2020 mainly include (i] a
decrease of RMB36,641,000 due to imputed interest income of
interest-free loans, (i) RMB837,133,000 of overdue loan extended
beyond 12 months.

(i)~ Other non-cash movements during 2021 mainly include (i] a
decrease of RMB73,965,000 due to imputed interest income of
interest-free loans, (i) RMB968,469,000 of overdue loan extended
beyond 12 months, (iii) an increase of RMB124,112,000 due
to acquisition of Nantong Zhuosheng and [iv] reclassification
from accrued interests due to renewal of promissory note of
RMB229,986,000.

(i) As at 31 December 2021, there is no advances (2020:
RMB15,503,000 included in “Trade and other payables”) included
in borrowings and advances of RMB1,417,415,000 (2020:
RMB1,959,072,000). The advances are interest-free and repayable
on demand.

30 Financial guarantee contracts

The Group has provided guarantees to certain financial
institutions in the PRC in respect of borrowings owed by the
Disposal Group (the "Relevant Guarantees”). Under these
guarantee contracts, the Company is required to make
payments to the financial institutions should the Disposal
Group default on the borrowings and claims are made against
the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Relevant Guarantees
provided by the Company to the Disposal Group that were still
in the process of being discharged or released amounted to
RMB5,634.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB5,440.1 million),
inclusive of principals and interests. Out of this total amount,
this Relevant Guarantees that met the recognition criteria of
financial guarantee under IFRS 9 “Financial Instrument” was
RMB4,709,049,000 (2020: RMB4,545,132,000). Despite the risk
of such guarantee to be exercised by the financial institution
considered to be low, the Group has recognised financial
guarantee contracts of RMB4,709,049,000 considering the
maximum exposure according to the contractual obligation.
Both the guarantee and provision shall be released upon the
completion of the transfer and discharging of the Relevant
Guarantees.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the change in
provision for financial guarantee contracts of RMB163,917,000
(2020: released RMB2,000,011,000] mainly represents the
accrual of interest expenses on the outstanding guaranteed
borrowings since the disposal day of the Disposal Group.

aRE B IS R R M R

29 FERERERMT @

(b) EBFEHER®@

M EE

[l R-ZE_TF HRSEHE
ZRENEBERMEER A
=R D A R #36,641,0007T - (ii)
EHRAREANSHERARE
837,133,0007T °

il RZTZ—F HMIFRLEHE
ZEENEBERWHEEF B A
B UM > A R #73,965,0007T - (i)
EHEBANEANBHERARE
968,469,0007T - (il EmAERE
i A R#124,112,000T K (v B &=
BEARZREENESFNEETD
A R #229,986,0007T °

i) R=ZT=Z—F+=ZA=+—80" &
R B A R %1,417,415,0007T (=
T2 F: AR #1,959072,0007T)
BMEFABI(CE-_ZTF: ARE
15,503,0007T &+ A [ FE - BR 3% J& H
BAZFE]D S8R AEEERE
REJEE -

30 B IEAREH

AEEEREEERARNERAFE
ETormMEREER(HEEERD -
BREZSEREGY  MEEEEER
B ARAFEARSHREENTR B2
BEEANARAERRBDRE - KN
——#H+-A=+—8  KAFALE
EERHARESCLIEET(ZZT =
TFF+_A=+—H8: AR¥544018
Bn)(BREAS R E)REEIERTD
FEHRBRRBHRIBES - ZBEEF
A ARKL7090490000(ZF =
T AN R¥4,545,132,0007T) H) #H B8
BERESHBTEHRELERFEIRE
BTAEITHTBERERIZE - &
EXHeRMEBBITENZSERER
BRBRE  EAEECRESNE
BEEmReRRERTEERAEDOA
R¥4,709,049,0007T ° R EEEE
EEERAEE R FRTHRE TR
|3/§¢ °

BHE-_ET-—F+-_A=+—HItE
B MBERANNBHEESHAAR
#163917.000L (ZE T F : iRl A
R#2000,01,0007T) " FBHEEHES
ErzHERRKREERREROES
FMBFAZ-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
FERE2021

201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R M R

31 Capital Commitments

There is no capital expenditure committed at the end of each
reporting period but not yet incurred (2020: Nil).

32 Related party transactions

Fine Profit Enterprises Limited (a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands) (“Fine Profit”) owned 9.43% of the
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
9.43%), before taking into account the additional shares issued
upon conversion of various convertible instruments. Fine
Profit was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang as at 31 December
2021.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
companies were related parties that had transactions or
balances with the Group during the year:

Name

nE/E8

31 EAEGE
AR R 4 B ok O 4 B ARG B MR A
HERABS(ZE_TF M|)-

N2EHAIRS

FRECEERARI(REBERELHES
EER g A /NI DICE 5 DDA ey
FH+-_A=+—H RetkingiE
Al IR T AR B 81T RSB AR 1) B 7
BARRAILINBEITER G (ZE_Z
F:943%) c AR ZZEZ—F+=H
=t —HAREEZEHES -

ARREZRRTIARRNEANR
REBETR Sk 2 FB 48 B o
5

Relationship with the Group
EASENBE

Shanghai Ditong Construction (Group) Co., Ltd.
@R (RE)ERAR

Fine Profit Enterprises Limited
HMERBERDT

Smart Frontier Limited

Shanghai Sunglow Investment (Group) Co., Ltd
tEBXERE(EB)ERAA

Zhang Jiping
oK 4

New Continental Oil & Gas (HK] Co. Limited
FIREHRR (BB ERAA

202 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A

Entity controlled by a shareholder/close family
member of Mr. Zhang

R—EBWRE/ REEORAMEHNNER

Entity ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang
RREERKEHNNER

Entity controlled by a close family member of
Mr. Zhang
REAEOHAEHNER

Entity controlled by a shareholder/close
family member of Mr. Zhang

F—RIRE TR EE

Director of a subsidiary

MEBARES

Shareholder
fi% &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

32 Related party transactions icontinueas 32 BEEET X H @0

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group carried HE_ZT-_—F+T-_A=+T—HILHF
out the following transactions with the related parties: B AREEEBERFTETATRS:
(i) Year-end balances with related parties (i) EREE S MNERGEER

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the balances are
interest-free, unsecured and approximate their fair
values. All these balances are repayable on demand.

RZE-Z—FR_TE-_FTF+=
B=+—B #&&#haes EiX
HREENAERE - FTIBE&ZS
EREBERBERBEE -

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBT T

Other payables — non-trade HiENHIE - EESUE
(Note 16): (B 5%16) -
— Adirector of a subsidiary —-WEARES 39,511 42,706
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

32 Related party transactions icontinueas 32 BEEET X H @0
(i) Guarantee by the shareholders and lii) REREBHLRENER

related parties

As at 31 December 2021, certain borrowings totaling
RMB2,391,543,000 (2020: RMB2,262,072,000) are
secured by from a director of the Company, certain
shareholder of related parties and the Company and
share capital of certain related parties.

(iii) Borrowings from related parties

As at 31 December 2021, certain related parties
provided security — free facilities up to USD250,000,000
(2020: USD250,000,000] and RMB40,000,000 (2020:
RMB40,000,000) [totalling equivalent to approximately
RMB1,628,025,000 (2020: RMB1,671,675,000) for use by
the Group for working capital purposes.

(ivl Key management compensation

Key management includes directors. Details of key
management compensation are disclosed in Note 26.

204 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A

RZEZ—F+ A=+ —
H A TEREHEARE
2391543000 (ZEZFF : A
R#%2262,072,00070) A AR AR E
£ BB ARARRETREMN
M AE TRARMEER -

(iii) B8 B¢ 75 B9 18 =X

RZE_—F+=_A=+—8"
HETEBLTREREEKFRED
% $2250,000,000% T(Z &2 = &
£ : 250,000,000 L) & A R &
40,000,000 (ZZE 2T F: AR
#540,000,0007D) (A EBEERLOA
R#51,628,0250000 (2T 4
A R #1,671,675,0007T) 4 A &=
EEEES AR -

liv) 8 88 & 32 JE % A

MREEERRES  -BREHRE
EH ey S B0 AE 263 B8 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMEE
33 Particulars of principal B EEMBARFFE
subsidiaries

(a) As at 31 December 2021, the Company Q) R=E=——F+=-RA=+—

has direct and indirect interests in the
following subsidiary:

B ARTRUTHEBR
AEREEKEEERS:

Place of incorporation/ ~Date of incorporation/ Principal activitiesand Issued/paid-  Equity interest attributable
Name establishment establishment Type of legal entity place of operation in capital tothe Group
aRAL/ iR/ £§f/
£H ALY AL EERERE IEXBREELY HRER ARAEERE
2021 2020
nk Snbt
Rongsheng Capital Limited# ~ Cayman Islands 14Jul2010 Limited liability Investment holding : HKD10 100% 100%
o company Hong Kong
BEERERAD ReRs Z2-ZELATAE BRAR RERR: EA 0%
Ocean Sino Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islends 18 Jan 2010 Limited liability Investment holding : st 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
LERREE Z2-RE-ATAR BRAR RERR EA B3
Capital Sign International British Virgin Islands 26 Mar 2009 Limited liability Investment holding : st 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
LBRREE ZETNEZR ERAA RERR EA B3
~t7H
Dragon Courage Investments  British VirginIslands 2 Apr 2009 Limited liability Investment holding : st 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
LERLEE “ETAEMAZE  BRAA RARR: TR B3
Glory Source Limited Hong Kong 25 Jan 2010 Limited liability Dormant HKD! 100% 100%
company
RERRAA 5 “F-TF- ERAF ez 1T
ZTIH
World Profit Corporation Hong Kong 5Feb 2010 Limited liability Dormant HKD! 100% 100%
Limited company
ENERAR B “Z-35288R  BRAA £gez 187
Radiant Business Global British Virgin lslands 3 Sep 2014 Limited liability Investment holding : st 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
BERRARLT LERLEE ZE-MEAAZR  BRAA REER FA B3
Kbiproiaxep Kyrgyzstan 13 Aug 2013 Limited liability Oil and gas exploration KGS5100,000 60% 60%
HewTteras Kyrgyzer company and production and
Neftegaz Limited Liability sales of petroleum
Company’ product : Kyrgyzstan
EREIAERRERLD EREH “E-ZENATZE ARRA BaRXRARYRR ZEEHER
FENRRAERH 100,00070
R
Crown Winner Investment Hong Kong 8 Nov 2013 Limited liability Investment holding : HKD10,000 60% 60%
Limited company Hong Kong
REREARAR &k “E-Ft-ANE BRAF REER:5A 100007 ¢
Central Point Worldwide Inc. -~ British VirginIslands 19 Jun 2014 Limited liability Investment holding : Usp100 60% 60%
company Hong Kang
LERLEE “T-MERATAR BRAF REER:EA 100% 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

33 Particulars of principal 33X EMBARIFFIE

subsidiaries
(a) As at 31 December 2021, the Company a) R=FE=—F+=-A=+—
has direct and indirect interests in the B ZIK'A\EB’Q‘U\-F By I A
following subsidiary: AETEEREERESR:
Place of incorporation/ Date of incorporation/ Principal activitiesand  Issued/paid-  Equity interest attributable
Name establishment establishment Type of legal entity place of operation in capital tothe Group
ERAL/ ERAL/ \ B84/
tH Rty RIAH EERBEY IREBREELY HRER AEREERE
2021 2020
nt Sabt
Huarong Energy Australia Pty Australia 14:Nov 2018 Limited liability Investment holding : AUD 1,000 100% 100%
Limited company Australia
B “R-NET-R 0 BRAA RERR: 2N 100087
tHA
Greatest Time Limited British Virgin lslands 28 Sep 2018 Limited liability Investment holding : USD50,000 100% 100%
company Ausralia
LERLEE ZE-\ENA ERAF REZR: 2N 0000%TT
ZthA
Xinjiang Huarong Haijia Energy - PRC 4 May 2018 Limited liability Oil and gas exploration ~ USD1,050,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd company and production and
sales of petroleum
- product ; PRC
FEEREZRRERAT TH “B-\fLABE  BRAF BARKRRHER 105000057
RENRARERS
£ hE
Archewell Enterprise (HK) Hong Kong 22019 Limited liability Commodity trading : HKD!1 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
BROZ(ERERAT  FR ZERELA BRAF Bals Bk 17T
“tZH
Shanghai Huijiu Energy PRC 2 Jun 2019 Limited liability Commodity trading : USD100,000 100% 100%
Technology Limited company China
LEEDRERRERLT A “ENER ERAF A 100000% 7T
~tma
Ocean Power International Hong Kong 28 Jan 2010 Limited liability Investment holding; HKD! 100% 100%
Industrial Limited company Hong Kang
BRAREZERLT B “5-%%-§ BRAF RERR: EA 17
-+Nn
—/\
Ocean China Investments Hong Kong 12 Jan 2018 Limited liability Investment holding; HKD!1 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
BERERRAR Bk ZE-\E-ATZE ERAF RABR:ER 17
Fancy Asia Limited Hong Kong 21 Mar 2018 Limited liability Investment holding; HKD!1 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
EHERAT Bk “F-N\§=ZR ERAF RABR:ER 17
s
Shanghai Yunxiang PRC 23 June 2000 Limited liability 0il & Gas Trading RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
Petrochemical Co., Ltd. company
LEEARLERAR hE ZZCRERRA BRAF RHRXRRES ARE
“t=H 5,000,007
Zhoushan Shurong PRC 3 July 2020 Limited liability 0il & Gas wholesale and - RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
Petrochemical Co,, Ltd. company distribution, China ’
RUFRERLIERAT 28 ZECRELRZR BREA FRRAARBERD ARE
HineE 50,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

33 Particulars of principal
subsidiaries
(a) As at 31 December 2021, the Company

has

direct and indirect interests in the

following subsidiary:

B3 EEMELTFIE

(a) RA=FE=—F+=A=1+—
B> ZXATRUTHEBR
AEEEEREEES:

Place of incorporation/  Date of incorporation/ Principal activitiesand  Issued/paid-  Equity interest attributable
Name establishment establishment Type of Legal entity place of operation in capital to the Group
AL/ AL/ B&f/
£% RIS RIAH EEERED IERKREERY HRRE rREEGRE
2021 2000
Zgz-f CZC%%
Nantong Glory Petrochemical ~ PRC 2 November 2020 Limited liability 0il & Gas wholesale and - RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. company distribution, China

BRRXERRLIERAT #E

“E-ZE+-A-H ARAA

Nantong Zhuosheng PRC 8 May 2003 Limited liability
Petrochemical Co,, Ltd. company
BRERAALCIERAN 48 “TR=FRANE  ARAA
# Shares held directly by the Company

Note:

For identification purpose only

As disclosed in Note 25, according to the article of association
of Nantong Zhuosheng and the agreement between all
shareholders, the Group has 50.46% voting right in appointment
of the board of directors upon the completion of the Acquisition,
and has entitlement to 50.46% of any net profit made after the
Acquisition.

BRRAARBERD ARE

#:78

50,000,0007

0il & Gas storage, China - RMB307.000,000 28.46% (note)

RHRRRRER:
hE

#

*

GEE

ARE
507,000,0007

BB ARREERRE

EXRAT

MM RS TE  REBEBER
ARERLEZEREZHMD
WiE - RRBEETKE A%
ERETEFSHA0L%EE
W EETAKREEEEFRN

B EY50.46% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R M R

33 Particulars of principal
subsidiaries (continued)

33 FEMBATFE @

(b) Summarised financial information on each
of the Group’s subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

li] Kyrgyzjer Neftegaz Limited Liability

(b) BEREARFZERESR(3F
Z R |) B2 5 B
BLRANMBERRBE
THIMBANEEREEN Y
RIEY S o

il ZEEZHAEIRE R

Company A=)
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EFTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETF T
Current 7t Eh
Assets BE 23,209 19,371
Liabilities afE (2,372,467) (2,446,280)
Net current liabilities mEBaEFRE (2,349,258) (2,426,909)
Non-current ERB
Assets & E 967,968 985,485
Liabilities afE - -
Net non-current assets FERBEEFE 967,968 985,485
Net liabilities BEFHE (1,381,290) (1,441,424)
Revenue W %5 34,425 22,000
Loss for the year FEEE (3,020) (41,248)
Total comprehensive loss THEBEER (1,331) (37,548)
Cash flows from operating REKLEFHHR SR
activities 11,524 132,060
Cash flows used in KEETBMABR SR
investing activities (6,072) (12,129)
Cash flows from financing KEMEBEHHIR SR
activities - —
NCI% EERERAS L 40.6% 40.6%
Loss allocated to NCI A EIFERE S E B (1,226) (16,747)
Carrying amount of NC| FERERREE (25,060) (23,834)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

33 Particulars of principal

subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Summarised financial information on each
of the Group’s subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (Continued)

lii) Nantong Zhuosheng Petrochemical Co.,

33 FEMBATFE @

(b) BEERFEZERER (3F
ERES )NAEEF
MEBARNMBERBE
(%)

li) BBEEREHIETER

Ltd. AY=T|
2021
—E-—F
RMB’000
ARET T
Current &

Assets BE 66,467
Liabilities afE (36,007)
Net current assets MEEEFE 30,460

Non-current ERB
Assets BE 339,896
Liabilities 81E& (60,013)
Net non-current assets EMEBEETFE 279,883
Net assets BEFE 310,343
Revenue U = 57,863
Profit for the year F 18,449
Total comprehensive income 2HEWEERE 18,449
Cash flows from operating activities KEKLEHNEDR 4,218
Cash flows used in investing activities REZBMAEER (4,313)
Cash flows from financing activities KEREZHHNE N —
NCI% (note] FEERERA DL () 71.54%
Profit allocated to NCI DR EIEERER N E 9,140
Carrying amount of NC| EE R R R E 209,070

Note:

As disclosed in Note 25, according to the article of association
of Nantong Zhuosheng and the agreement between all
shareholders, the Group has 50.46% voting right in appointment
of the board of directors and entitlement to profit made post the
Acquisition. As a result the NClI's voting right of 49.54% is different
from that of the ownership interest above.

GEE

WK 25T - BIBEEBER R
AIERKREXERR ZENTE -
AEBREFESSHAE046%IE
ZRRZHWRBEBEEEFE - At -
FEVE AR M 2SS AY49.54% 1% S E F it
HEEEEZTR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHMTE
34 Statement of financial position

and reserve movement of the
Company

34 ANARI VB IEAR MR K
EEEE

Statement of financial position of the Company AT HY B AR R R
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—EZ—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREEF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIEARIRIZE 510,508 510,508
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments i i U 5018 & 78 1+ 5k 1B 961 992
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGIE @] 2,290 452
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 99 1,774
3,350 3,218
Total assets BEE 513,858 513,726
DEFICIT &5 A
Capital and reserves attributableto AA T ERFHAEN
the Company’s equity holders EAXARFEE
Ordinary shares TR 2,021,534 2,021,534
Convertible preference shares AERE LR 3,100,000 3,100,000
Share premium % 173 % B 8,374,605 8,374,605
Other reserves (Note a) i (st a) 12,763 12,763
Accumulated losses (Note a) ZErEE (N a) (21,630,513) (21,439,420)
Total deficit 48 A (8,121,611) (7,930,518
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Statement of financial position
and reserve movement of the

Company (continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

aRE B IS R R M R

34 AT AR R TR K
REEZE w

ANND T B 7 AR R R @)

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H”
2021 2020
—E=-—F —_ET_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREET T
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities knBERE
Borrowings EEN 1,717,096 1,089,182
Current liabilities nEBEE
Other payables H b & 5R I8 495,386 559,337
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 1 B 8 2 B 5RO 305,589 315,678
Borrowings B 1,408,349 1,934,915
Financial guarantee contracts BHEREH 4,709,049 4,545,132
Current liabilities REBEE 6,918,373 7,355,062
Total liabilities wmeE 8,635,469 8,444,244
Total deficit and liabilities HEAREE 513,858 513,726

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2022 and signed on its
behalf by

ARABHWPERAREEETSRN
- E=ZRA=-+NB#EL
HRNIATRERESTEESE

Chen Qiang
PR 3@

Director

EF

Hong Liang
Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R M R

34 Statement of financial position
and reserve movement of the

Company (continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)
Note (a)

34 AT AR R TR K
REEZE w

ANND T B 7 AR R R @)

it & (a)

Other reserves

Hit % E
Share-based Accumulated
payment losses Total
URGHER
) RITEBR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2020 NZZE-TF—A—H 18,099 (22,270,682 (22,252,583)
Profit and total comprehensive FEMBER2EK & B
income for the year - 825,926 825,926
Lapse of employee share options & B B IR K% (5,336) 5,336 —
At 31 December 2020 ANZEZEF+=ZA=+—H 12,763 (21,439,420) (21,426,657)
Loss and total comprehensive FEBELTEERER
loss for the year — (191,093) (191,093)
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—AH 12,763 (21,630,513) (21,617,750)

212 CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
TEERERRDERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE B IS R R M R

35 Contingent Liabilities 35 HAREE

As at 31 December 2021, we had contingent liabilities of RZBZ—F+ZHA=+—8" %M
RMB925.0 million (as at 31 December 2020: RMB895.0 BERAABARKEIDBIAEL(RZ
million], which was resulted from financial guarantees EZ_FEF+-_A=+—H: AR¥895.0
provided by the Company to Disposal Group. BEL)  IHRAARREESEE
R BERMAE -
36 Subsequent event 36 HARE18

On 25 March 2022, the Purchaser and the Company R-_E-_—_F=ZA-_+HH BEHA
had entered into a sixth supplemental agreement to the RABRI M M E RO E T -
Agreement. According to the sixth supplemental agreements, BEEMExTHE  EAKREKE
the Purchaser will procure the release or discharge of the Mot R ER YR ZE—=F
Relevant Guarantees and complete the relevant registration TZA=+—HAIEXB@EZE -

before 31 December 2023.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A FERBEHE

Consolidated results

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F —E-FE —E-NF -\ ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
[Restated)
(Z5)
Revenue g 316,774 34,800 47747 48,956 45,207*
Gross profit/(loss) B/ (BR) 53,076 (6,427) 13,067 14,929 10,729*
Operating profit/(loss) cERE/ (FE) 22,094 (1,199 454) (51,765) 579,222 (870,464)*
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FE2HE (F#E)/
income for the year WEaE (193,978) 664,439 134,906 (195,720 (2,028,226)
Attributable to: BER:
Equity holders of the ARAEERHAA
Company (202,816) 679,987 160,282 (74,521) (1,977.658]
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E 122 i ## 25 8,838 (15,548) (25,376) (121,199) (50,568)
Consolidated assets and liabilities
REEEHSE
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--§ “ECEF —E-NEF -\ ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Total assets MEE 1,381,709 1,005,933 2,348,984 24,900,742 22,506,238
Non-current assets HRBEE 1,317,840 973,670 2,285,148 2,450,716 21,378,876
Current assets RBEE 63,869 32,263 63,836 22,450,026 1,127,362
Total liabilities #waE 9,274,823 8,904,999 10,912,489 34,530,868 33,752,593
Non-current liabilities EL eI B=N 2,222,687 1,449,322 937,125 754,638 208,445
Current liabilities MEEE 7,052,136 7,455,677 9,975,364 33,776,230 33,544,148
Total deficit a5 i (7,893,114) (7,899,066) (8,563,505) (9,630,126) (11,246,355)

December 2017 were restated accordingly.
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BB FEHEST -

On 9 October 2018, the Group announced the disposal of its Shipbuilding and ~ * RZZE-N\E+ANLE AKESMHEHEEEM
Engineering Business. The Shipbuilding and Engineering Business is classified
as Discontinued Operations. Comparative figures for the year ended 31

RIRER ZMRIEEBIERELRILE
BeoBEE-—LFTRA=T-HILFEN



"2022 AGM”
ZEIFRREFAE]

“Articles of Association”

[ 48 A1

“bbl”
[ ]

“Board”
Ex -

“China” or "PRC”
[ B

“Company”, “our Company” or "Huarong
Energy”
[RE] - [RRA] S [EREER ]

“Consolidated Share(s)” or “Share(s)”
[& 0f B o sk [ B 17

“Director(s)”

[E %]

“Disposal Group”
[HESE]

GLOSSARY
AR

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 8 June 2022
ARBBR-_ZE-__FRANB(EHDBTHORRESF
e

the amended and restated articles of association of the
Company adopted by special resolution passed on 24 October
2010 which became effective upon the Company’s listing on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as amended from time to
time
ARBRETRETNEABERANR_FT—FF+A
“HHEBERNARABRRAL R AR ET BB
EWRER)  REKLTEZER

barrels

1

the board of Directors of our Company

ARAMESEE

the People’'s Republic of China excluding, for the purposes of
this annual report, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
PEARANE  BAFERSHE  TEEESE R
k& &

China Huarong Energy Company Limited (F7 B Z 28 € R %
3 B R A 7F]) (formerly known as China Rongsheng Heavy
Industries Group Holdings Limited (7 Bl 48 5% & T £ B4 i
BBRZAF]), a company incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 3 February 2010
PEEXERROBERAG(AIBPEERETEEER
BRAR) —KR_ZE-—ZEF_A=REHSHESTM
B RERRHBR AR

ordinary sharels) of HKD0.50 each in the share capital of the
Company upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective on
29 March 2016
BOEHR-E—AF=ZAZTNBERBRARRAF
BREESBITZERMK

director(s) of our Company

ARBINES

Able Diligent Limited together with its subsidiaries engaging in
the Shipbuilding and Engineering Business
Able Diligent Limited F E 7 % 35 it T2 ¥ 7% 2 Mt & 2 7
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GLOSSARY
AR

“Group”, “our Group”, "we” or “us”

ENRES SRR 4 Gh

"HKD”
[T

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or “Stock
Exchange”

[ 78 Bk 22 P ) 38 [ B <2 o

“Kyrgyzstan” or "Kyrgyz"
[ =& A Hria | [ @ & A

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Date”
[ =7 B Hf )

“Listing Rules”
[ £ R Al

“RMB” or "Renminbi”
[ AR
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the Company and its subsidiaries or any of them or, where
the context so requires, in respect of the period before
the Company became the holding company of its present
subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company
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Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
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the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China
FEREERFITERR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBARHMARRE

the Kyrgyz Rupublic (a Country in Central Asia)
TREHAMNBE (PR —EBER)

the listing of the ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each of the
Company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange
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19 November 2010, being the date on which the ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each of the Company are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
—E-FTF+-ATABR ARFESEREECIOETHE
BEBRONBABAER L™ EH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as amended and
supplemented from time to time
EEBARPHERATDES LTRA - EREETR
fii ot

the lawful currency of the PRC
PEEEER
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“Share Consolidation”
[ & 10 & BF)

“Share Option Scheme”
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the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, as amended and supplemented from time
to time

BEEDIESNEF F LB EERD EAEER] L 5E)

with effect from 29 March 2016, the consolidation of every five
issued and unissued shares of HKDO0.10 each in the existing
share capital of the Company into one Consolidated Share of
HKDO0.50 each
ARARBERATBARSREEI0E TZ EEITRA
BIRGOAEHR—IREBREEISGE T ARG - WR
ZE-RFZAZThHBEK

the share option scheme we conditionally adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed by our Shareholders on 24 October 2010
BB ERMOBRERZZE—ZEFTATEHABADN
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United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

BREREH

Listing Information

Listing : Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock Code : 01101

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,

P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel : (852) 2862-8628
Email : hkinfoldcomputershare.com.hk
Registered Office

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business and Headquarters

Suites 1508-10, 15/F,
Shui On Centre,

6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Contact Enquiries

Investor Relations

Tel : (852) 3900-1888
Email : cosec(@huarongenergy.com
Website : www.huarongenergy.com.hk

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,

P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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Executive Directors

CHEN Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

HONG Liang [Chief Operating Officer]
ZHU Wen Hua
Niu Jianmin

Independent Non-executive Directors

WANG Jin Lian
ZHQOU Zhan
LAM Cheung Mau

Audit Committee

ZHOU Zhan (Chairman]
WANG Jin Lian
LAM Cheung Mau

Corporate Governance Committee

WANG Jin Lian (Chairman)]
CHEN Qiang
LAM Cheung Mau

Nomination Committee

WANG Jin Lian (Chairman)
/HU Wen Hua
/HOU Zhan

Remuneration Committee

ZHOU Zhan [Chairman)
CHEN Qiang
WANG Jin Lian

Finance and Investment Committee

CHEN Qiang (Chairman]
HONG Liang

WANG Jin Lian

ZHOU Zhan

Company Secretary
LEUNG Yin Fai
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EER

Auditor

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

Legal Advisors

Paul Hastings
Commerce & Finance Law Offices

Company Website

http://www.huarongenergy.com.hk

CHINA HUARONG ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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